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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

To establish differentiated competitive advantages through structural

reform and enhancement under the guiding principle of “CMEC
Strategic Development Plan for the Next Five Years” (CMECAK % &
FEERBBEIEE), and strive to become an integrated world-class
engineering contractor and services provider banking on our leading
edges in innovation and value-creation.

Dear Shareholders,

Throughout 2013, the global economy, albeit volatile at times,
experienced a general recovery. Major economies showed signs
of bounce-back after hitting bottom previously, though growth in
developed countries remained sluggish. China’s economy achieved
steady growth during the transitional period. Meanwhile, the Third
Plenary Session of the 18th Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China convened in the year further outlined the direction of
development during the transitional period of domestic economy,
with an ever faster pace set for the urbanization process. As
regards our industry, the global infrastructure engineering industry in
general maintained a promising trajectory for strong growth, thanks
to the continuous and escalating market demand in developing
countries and the increasing demand for infrastructure renovation
in developed countries.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEEBREIRROERAT

SUN Bai Chairman
BH EFL

IATCMECAR R A B REMAR S| %3
B OBBBEUARBEEZRALCHETED
M RRBIFESL  BEAE  BAKAE
R—m4RE B B T2 A B BRAR TS -

BHH SRR

20135 2% 2HRKRERSTAMEE -
ITERERHZABERETR - B3 E
BREEERNBEZS - PEKBEEFIE
HERRERE  t\E=h280N 48
FEHRETEALEELROERETE - W
MLERBE TR - HITEME @ X
BRERTPERTEHFRFESRERIN
REBZEBREWREEHF RO E
me RRERREERTEEERS A
B EEBRFROERDHE -



Looking back on our business development in 2013, with the
“CMEC Strategic Development Plan for the Next Five Years” (CMEC
RIEAFEEHMEEFZ) (the “Development Strategy”) as our
guiding principle, the Company has extended our business reach
across the global market, adjusted our business structure, and
upgraded our managerial standards while closely monitoring risk
factors. Meanwhile, we have achieved satisfactory results in all three
sectors of contracting, trading and ancillary services and further
cultivated the superior brand image of CMEC in the global market.
During the period under review, the Company’s business operation
maintained a steady growth and successfully achieved the set
target for the year. The total revenue of the Company showed a
steady increase of 0.6% to RMB21,426.3 million as compared to
last year; net profit amounted to RMB1,960.2 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 1.7 %. In particular, revenue and profit
contribution from the International Engineering Contracting Business
in China increased substantially, representing 71.8% and 84.1%
of the Company’s total revenue and total gross profit respectively.
As at December 31 2013, the Company’s backlog amounted to
US$8,216.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.4%.
The solid financial performance and the excellent growth in results
have provided the Company with strong support and a powerful
momentum for future development. Furthermore, the Company’s
market potential was further expanded through CMEC'’s ever-superb
project-contracting capabilities and its long-established superior
brand-image in the overseas market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year of 2013 marked the first year of CMEC as a listed public
company, as well as the first year of CMEC's strategic reform. During
the period under review, the Company has successfully adjusted
and consolidated our business structure, actively integrated internal
and external resources and proposed to transform and upgrade
the existing business units into three new business segments,
namely international engineering contracting, trading services
and investment. By fully leveraging the synergy among each
business segment, the Company will fortify the leading position
of our International Engineering Contracting Business within the
industry, while maintaining a steady development of trading services
business, proactively extending our industry chains vertically and
exploring new investment opportunities. In the meantime, in order
to lay a solid policy and structural foundation for the development
of each segment, the Company has refined our internal organization
and established professional functional management departments
for each segment.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

In regard to the International Engineering Contracting Business, the
Company has further polished the CMEC brand which was widely
recognized in the international engineering contracting market
by leveraging on our abundant experience accumulated over the
years in contracting overseas projects and on our leading project
management and commercial operation capabilities. Drawing
on our expertise in power infrastructure projects, the Company
also ventured into other contracting business areas such as
transportation and telecommunications. Moreover, by integrating
global industry resources, we have secured the core design
technology and industry support for the International Engineering
Contracting Business, thereby consolidating the Company’s overall
strength in the business.

In 2013, the Company’s International Engineering Contracting
Business achieved excellent results across Asian, African, South
American and European markets, while new markets were
successfully secured, further bolstering the global geographical
coverage of the Company’s business. During the period under
review, high value projects were carried out in traditional markets
such as Equatorial Guinea, Sri Lanka, Iraq, Nigeria, Venezuela
and Serbia. On the other hand, the successful procurement of
the student apartment project in Canada, the highway project
in Papua New Guinea, the heat supply project in Mongolia, the
university town project in Jordan and the hospital project in Kenya
marked the Company’s first entry into these countries’ markets and
an expansion of our global business reach. In the area of market
resources integration, the Company, by intensifying the localized
strategy and regional market strategy in well-established traditional
markets, managed to gain regional business foothold, strengthen
core-market establishment and explore the local market demand,
altogether providing a strong drive for the Company’s future growth.

By implementing a scientific control system in regard to project
expenditure recoverability and project execution, the Company
enforced strict regulation in terms of project quality, construction
period, cost and safety. The orders of the Company’s International
Engineering Contracting Business were well executed during the
year, with a series of major projects delivered smoothly during the
period under review. High-end market projects, such as the central
power plant and emergency power generation project in Venezuela
and the power plant project in Belarus, overcame difficulties in
various aspects such as project design and transition of standards,
which, apart from having ensured project earning and profit level,
also elevated the Company’s integrated capabilities of project
execution.
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As for trading and other ancillary services business, the Company
has maintained a tight control over market risk factors and
relinquished projects with low added value, thus ensuring a healthy
and steady business development. During the period under review,
despite a decrease in trading business income, the Company
has exerted great efforts, spanning from proactively adopting
adjustment measures, carrying out extensive market demand
analysis and scientifically establishing sustainable trading business.
Besides, the Group laid a solid foundation for business reform
and upgrade through expanding into new domestic and overseas
markets, integrating business teams and facilitating coordination
and cooperation within the Group.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Moreover, during 2013, the Company has taken several significant
steps which provided a favorable ground in terms of strategic
deployment and business expansion for the Company’s future
development.

In 2013, the Company embarked on integrating the resources under
SINOMACH and managed CNEEC and CNCEC, two resource-rich
corporations within the industry, through entrusted management of
their equity interests, which created complementary advantages,
maximized the synergistic effect and further sharpened the
integrated competitiveness of the Company, thereby setting up
the preliminary work for the next asset reorganization. In June 2013,
the U.S. government duly announced that the sanction previously
imposed on the Company in accordance with the U.S. Chemical
and Biological Weapons Proliferation Sanctions was lifted. Hence,
the Company now enjoys a greater business freedom in the U.S.,
and enters into a fresh period of rapid business expansion in the
markets of developed countries. In addition, the Company entered
into a memorandum of understanding with the U.S. General Electric
International, Inc. through cordial negotiation, so as to achieve rapid
overseas expansion via the sharing of information and technology
with the world’s leading corporations.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

OUTLOOK

During the period under review, for the purpose of coping with the
changing market demand and remolding CMEC’s core competitive
advantages, the Company carried out extensive analysis on external
environment changes and our own business structure, and executed
astute assessments on future market trends according to the actual
market environment; in August 2013, the Company published
its “Development Strategy”, which set out the direction of the
Company’s future development, and put emphasis on establishing
leading and unique differentiated competitive advantages in areas
such as brand reputation, operational model, business network,
professional team, commercial operation and financial planning.

The Development Strategy envisaged a developmental vision
where the Company paves its way to becoming the world’s
leading international engineering contractor and service provider,
by achieving business breakthrough and by dedicating ourselves
to establishing a synergistic developmental layout among the
three sectors, namely international engineering contracting,
trading services and investment. Under such strategic guideline,
the Company shall accelerate the integration and optimization
processes of each business sector, and thereby strike ever forward
towards the goal of becoming the world’s leading engineering
contracting service provider.

In the future, the Company shall focus on establishing a diversified
business layout primarily comprising three sectors, namely
engineering contracting, trading services and investment, and
boost the Company’s integrated strength by fully utilizing the
synergistic advantage derived from each sector. The focus of the
engineering contracting business will be on the power sector and
the coordinated expansion of diversified business will be carried
out while differentiated strategy with respect to regional market
and localized strategy will be adopted in order to maximize the
synergy effect and optimize resources allocation between different
business segments. The focus of the Trading Business will be on
business consolidation, materialization of transformation of business
model and remolding of the overall competitiveness of the business;
meanwhile, we shall explore the investment business, which is the
Company'’s strategic emerging business. All in all, we look to poise
ourselves as a leading integrated corporation that is rooted in the
infrastructure industry while pursuing diversified development along
the industry chains.
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In terms of market planning, the Company will continue its earnest
endeavor to form a balanced market layout of overseas market
and domestic market, thus providing ample momentum for the
Company’s future development. Through constructions in key
overseas markets and expanding into new markets, the Company
will fully seize the new round of market opportunities brought about
by the escalation of demand in the global infrastructure industry.
In line with the development of trading services and investment
business, the Company will provide the world market with superior
and comprehensive infrastructure construction services, and thus
achieve another rise in CMEC’s brand value.

Looking into the future, as the world’s economy starts to recuperate,
the demand for global infrastructure construction also increases
gradually. Determined to firmly grasp this historical opportunity
for development, the Company, with the three business segments
as our launching platform, will consolidate our leading businesses
and mature markets while proactively exploring new business and
emerging markets, driving the rapid transformation and upgrading
of traditional businesses, providing comprehensive support to the
construction services of the international contracting projects and
facilitating a diversified business development as well as a further
increase in profit. In the meantime, the Company will continue
to optimize the scientific planning of our businesses on a global
scale, and by paying close attention to the trend of domestic
infrastructure construction market on top of having fully explored
the significant growth potentials in the emerging countries’ markets,
the Company will utilize our accumulated superior resources and
project experience to progressively explore various commercial
opportunities from both domestic and overseas markets, thus
bringing exceedingly good results to our mass of shareholders in
return.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express our sincere gratitude to the shareholders and people
from various sectors for their concern and support, and to all of
the Company’s staff who joined us in our endeavors!

SUN Bai
Chairman

Beijing, China
April 15, 2014
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Company Profile
RAEEN

The Company was established in 1978 and was the first state-
owned industrial and trading enterprise in the PRC. The Company is
a subsidiary controlled by SINOMACH. The Company was listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on December 21, 2012 at an
issue price of HK$5.4 per H Share. As at December 31, 2013, the
Company had a total of 908,270,000 H Shares and 3,217,430,000
non-tradable Domestic Shares issued. The Company has a primary
focus on EPC projects and particular expertise in the power
sector, capable of providing one-stop customized and integrated
engineering contracting solutions and services. The Company also
conducts the Trading Business and Other Businesses.

Prospects for Enterprise Development: Becoming the world’s
leading international engineering contractor and service provider
and transforming itself into a first class conglomerate in the world
through cutting-edge innovation and value creation.

Competitive Strengths: Brand reputation, operational model,
business network, professional team, business operation, financial
planning.

International Engineering Contracting Business: With over 30
years of experience in the International Engineering Contracting
Business, the Company is able to provide project owners with one-
stop customized and integrated turnkey solutions and services to
manage and implement engineering contracting projects, especially
in developing countries, and also undertake engineering contracting
projects in more than 47 countries, primarily in Asia and Africa.
Power, transportation and telecommunications sectors are the
Company’s Core Sectors. The Company is also engaged in the
non-Core Sectors, such as water supply and treatment projects,
building and construction projects, manufacturing and processing
plant projects and mining and resources exploitation projects.

Trading Business: The Company conducts the Trading Business
through its sales and marketing network which covers over
150 countries and regions. The sales and marketing network is
established through years of international engineering contracting
and trading experiences and business transactions involving export
and import of products and services to and from these countries
and regions.

Other Businesses: To a lesser extent, the Company is involved
in the Other Businesses that provide logistics services, exhibition
services, tendering agency services and other services (including
design services and export-import agency services).
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Company Profile

REIRIT

Corporate Structure: As at December 31, 2013, the Company’s EZEE  P2013F12A31H » AR AR
corporate structure was as follows: EREWT

100.00%

22.01%

COMPANY
&

AL

| Overseas Subsidiaries 1
1 BHHBEATR 1

International Engineering Trading Business Other Businesses International Engineering

Trading Business

Contracting Business BREH RS Contracting Business
BB IERERS BEIRRARE LLLLS
CMEC International 5 CMEC Petrochemical-General o CMEC Senegal S.A. (Senegal) Sino American Machinery
J100% | Engineering | 100% | Machinery Co., Ltd 100% | CGMEC Tendering [00% | Cviec =rm@EmRGEEA 100% Corporation (Delaware, USA)
ks EEEXE =
PRERTE PRECRHARRR (ErmE) fer
CMEC Engineering Machinery CMEC Nigeria
100% o 9 % | China Machinery & E 1t (HK
100% China Machinery R&D 22 1 import & Export Co., Ltd. 100% CM%‘E% JE_XES 100% Development %mit;ij (Nigeria) 100% ggmpaacnyml_e\z\(ed ?ﬁggeﬁoég) j
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GMEC General Machinery
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| Import & Export Co., Ltd. CMEC Beijing Prcpeny China Machinery Engineering
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CMEC International
100%
— g ;f"”g;ﬁoﬁg ufi . 100% | CMEC Comtrans 99.9% | GMEG Engineering C.A. (Venezuela) | |1000; Euro M.E.C. Import &
HARRAES R WERERMLTIRA R (ERHT) Export GmbH (Germany)
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100% COMEC Machinery & CMEC International Economic & . CMEC Narmibia
e 100% Le;;\é Agv)sicérs ()B;. @3?) \%c. 100% 1Propnétary)o L\Zr;;' d (Namibia) 92.95% Ausino Pty. Ltd. (Australia)
3 (Ib ) B AT 4 BAMERERBERDA)
SEREMAEREAR CRAFIE)
China National Machinery
: Shanghai International
& Equipment Import & 100%
[ 1o0% | Export (Wuxi) Co., Ltd ] Tra"s‘)ma“%.o o Ld 80.00% | CMEC Japan Co,, Ltd. (Japan)
P8 (85 ) BN CMEC AR &4t (A7)
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China National Machinery 100% Shenzhen CMEC Industry
100% & Equipment Import & — Corporation Limited 77.00% L oM Enmei Co, Lid. (Japan)
Export (Suzhou) Co., Ltd AT R EEABRAR CMIC ZBABA &AL (AZA)
R (RN ) R
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90% gws IntegaﬂoLn:\
1 xhibition Co., Lt
100% China Machinery Industrial PERBRREFRAR
—— Products Co., Ltd
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— Import & Export Co. Ltd.
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100% Shanghai Zhong Jing Import
——— & Export Corporation
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67% Henan Machinery &
Electric Import & Export Co., Ltd
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BEPREREFHEHOARAR
China National Machinery & Equipment
51% Import & Export (Hubei) Co., Ltd.
AR B
RIEEHOFRAR

Annual Report 2013
2013FFH

09




10

Key Operating and Financial Data
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Revenue Structure in 2013
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Gross Profit Structure in 2013
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Unit: RMB million
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LON

Revenue
15,386
12,266

830
800
1,490

4,908
1,133

21,426

£
Gross Profit

3,148
2,850
94

87
116
281
315

3,743

L ON 4
Revenue Breakdown
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7%
23%
5%
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Gross Profit Breakdown
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Key Operating and Financial Data

1. Revenue
A
Unit: RMB million
B AREBET

21,426.3

21,2061 I

2012 2013
20124 20134

3. Basic Earnings per Share
BRERZEF
Unit: RMB
B AR

0.58
I |

2012 2013
20125 201345

5. Backlog for the International Engineering
Contracting Business
BERIRERGEBRTREEE
Unit: US$ million
B BEET

8,216.9

7,058.4

As at December 31,2012  As at December 31, 2013
7#2012612H318 72013512H31H

ERRERMBRE

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins
EFRERNE

Unit: RMB million

B ARBEBEET

3,742.5 B Gross profit
3,731.5 EH

A Gross profit margin
ESIES

2012 2013
20124 20134
Net Asset Per Share

BREEE
Unit: RMB
B AR
2.85
2.47
2012 2013
20124 201345

Newly Effective Contract Value for the
International Engineering Contracting
Business

B IBREEENHEREREHE
Unit: US$ million

Bf - BEET

4,634.7

3,367.3
2,955.3

2,226.8

2010 2011 2012 2013
20104 20114 20124 20135
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Key Operating and Financial Data

ERRERNBRE

7. Signed Contracts Pending to be Effective for the International Engineering Contracting Business
BERIBREBEBNEENFENRER
As at December 31, 2013
7201312 A31H
Unit: US$ million
A EBET

5,798.9
4,058.0

B Power sector
BHRERITE

Total 485
13,475.9

[ Transportation sector
IBERITE

1 ) Teleqorpnjynications sector
00.0 BF@EATE
Non-Core sectors

FERLITE

3,5619.0

8. Gross Margin for the International Engineering Contracting Business (“IEC”)

TRREERER
o, —
30% 27.2%
25% [ 23.2%
—0
- —
20% . 20.5%
il
o 17.8% 17.5% 17.5%
15% 15.4%
10.5%
13% 9.5%
10% [
6%
5% [—
0% 1 1 1 J
(o]
2010 2011 2012 2013
B Power Sector Gross Margin M IEC Overall Gross Margin W Company’s Overall Gross Margin Non-Power Gross Margin
BNRRERNX TRERMREGA EFE RAERAEER X FEEHEFE
1 2 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Financial Highlights
NBRE

Year ended December 31,

HZ12ANALEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

20135 20124 20114 2010 2009

RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

ARETT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIL

Revenue WA 21,426,272 21,296,063 20,517,769 19,077,015 19,287,696

Gross profit eS| 3,742,458 3,731,510 3,659,031 2942373 1,759,611
Other revenue and other income/ Hipl AREMBBA /

(expenses), net (%) ¥8 365,826 22,115 6,637 9,166 (12,053)
Operating expenses BERR (1,780,132)  (1,690,383)  (1,521,026)  (1,416,200)  (1,189,516)
Profit from operations eyl 2,328,152 2,063,242 2,144,642 1,535,339 558,042
Profit before taxation BH AT 2,664,105 2615878 1,987,369 1,561,417 834,669
Income tax it (703,864)  (687,716) (515,026) (429,248) (224,520)
Profit for the year ERER 1,960,241 1,928,162 1472343 1,132,169 610,149
Total other comprehensive income FREMEGE K& 14,745 (8,720) 1,285 3,042 (270)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRN4A W25 1,974,986 1,924,442 1,473,578 1,135,211 609,879
Profit attribute to: RAEER -

- Shareholders of the Company - ADARR 1,959,257 1,927,689 1,474,893 1,136,475 613,600

- Non-controlling interests - RS 984 473 (2,550) (4,306) (3,451)
Total comprehensive income BANGEBRER

attributable to:

- Shareholders of the Company YIS 1,974,823  1,925325 1475096 1,137,945 613,647

- Non-controlling interests — JEiE R 163 (883) (1,518) (2,734) (3,768)
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERF

(expressed in RMB per share) (NEET) 0.47 0.58 0.45 0.34 0.19
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 6,049,264 6,833,778  7277,172 6,768,437 6,841,762
Total current assets THEELE 25,903,900 27,936,051 19,331,069 18,619,812 13,037,629
Total assets BERE 31,953,164 34,760,829 26,608,241 25,388,249 19,879,391
Total non-current liabilities FnBABLE 407,162 581,888 737,109 1,976,772 2,372,515
Total current liabilities mEA AR 19,789,941 24270518 20,497,237 19,446,465 14,486,335
Total liabilities BEAHE 20,197,108 24,852,406 21,234,346 21,423,237 16,858,850
Equity attributable to shareholders of A2 FRE L

the Company 11,739,625 9,920,341 5379736 3,969,407 3,022,038
Non-controlling interests R R 16,436 (2,918) (5,841) (4,395) (1,497)
Total equity Enad 11,756,061 9,917,423  5373,805 3,965,012 3,020,541
Total equity and liabilities BaRakEes 31,953,164 34,769,829 26,608,241 25,388,249 19,879,391
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2013, the global economy continued to undergo slow
recovery and the growth was stagnant. The economic recovery
of the developed countries was influenced by a series of factors
and the growth momentum did not offer optimistic prospect.
The economy of the United States recovered modestly, but
being clouded with financial deficits, the United States was
forced to reduce its expenditures. The unemployment rate
in the United States still maintained at a relatively high level
and the monetary policy of quantitative easing reached a
turning point. Being embattled and crushed by the debt crisis,
the European economy continued to be mired in recession
and started to limp out of recession with the economy still
recording negative growth throughout the year.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEIEMRE IRROERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DM

TRHE

201BFE K FHRBRNEENER
BEF - BREZN - BEBEREH
EEX-RIRAENTE  ERDLH
BAS ALE -  XEKERMER
BRPHRRAFRERE - TS THIR
X REXRDABFERSKFE
ELRREREBFRDRENE - BUM
REXBEHREREREBERRRER
REA RENHRERRE B2
FREDRBER -



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

The overall economic performance of the developing countries BRPAEZFIHNS B AR E
was better than that of the developed countries and the pace R IBMERENERBARR  EL&HE
of growth of the developing countries was still obviously e FBEE N ETOEFR R ED o
faster, therefore continued to reduce the difference with the EBEIMFERFHEHE HEEHEEE
developed countries in terms of aggregate economic volume. HE o 2013FBREFRBHRGDPE 2L
Pursuant to the latest forecast of IMF, as calculated by the GDPHLLERF S FEIAHBIETER -

purchasing power parity, the proportion of the GDP of the
developing countries in the global GDP exceeded the GDP of
the developed countries for the first time in 2013.

Annual Report 2013 1 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DN

INTERNATIONAL ENGINEERING CONTRACTING
INDUSTRY

Global infrastructure engineering investment value
increased at a CAGR of approximately 5.7% from 2009
to 2013. The economic recession in 2011 resulted from
the European sovereign debt crisis had minimal impact on
global infrastructure engineering investment value which
maintained a positive growth of approximately 5.3%, from
approximately US$3,770 billion in 2010 to approximately
US$3,971 billion in 2011 as infrastructure engineering
projects were mostly funded by the governments. The
global infrastructure engineering investment value was
approximately US$4,508 billion in 2013, with growth
contributed mainly by developing countries. Developing
countries’ infrastructure engineering investment
value grew at a CAGR of approximately 7.8%, from
approximately US$2,872 billion in 2009 to approximately
US$3,879 billion in 2013. After the global financial crisis,
international engineering contractors started venturing
outside their home countries that were experiencing
market downturn, and tapping into new markets in
developing countries which usually enjoy stronger
economic growth with increasing private and public fixed
capital expenditure in light of their ageing infrastructure.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

PEEMREIRROERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

). AR

-_-@ hise

The total new contract value of infrastructure engineering R20134F » 2B ERETR
projects in global market was approximately US$947.9 BEHHFARLSEEL H,479E
billion in 2013, whilst the total new contract value of ET 0 BERERERBEZRN2013F
infrastructure engineering projects in developing countries WNERTREBHARESREE
reached approximately US$864.3 billion in 20183, 48,6438 E T HERT S
accounting for approximately 91.2% of the total new MERTIRBEBEHARESTED
contract value of infrastructure engineering projects in 91.2% o

global market.
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Total New Contract Value of Infrastructure Engineering 2006 FEE2013E T EREXEFEHRE
Projects for Global Market and in Developing Countries BIREENHAEALEE
from 2006 to 2013

USS billion
10f83% 70

1,000 [~ 905 948

800 [~

600 [~

556

400 [~

200 [~

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

—@— Global =—f—= Developing countries
2R PP R

1 8 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Note:

Sources:

Sources:

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

i

Data includes the infrastructure engineering projects in the Bat - HEPERENER (Eh) £& -
sectors of power-related (electricity) infrastructure, transportation RiBEREELEFRAMEES B2
infrastructure, and telecommunications infrastructure HETEER
China International Contractors Association; ENR; Ipsos Report BRI - REEINERBTERS  TIEMERD
B mEERWRE

The new contract value of power, transportation and R2013F - ERFBERMNEN -
telecommunications sectors in developing countries TEEBEHNEFEA DI
together contributed approximately 84.5% to the total ARSHEAEEEERRERABEZRD
new contract value of infrastructure engineering projects ARTRBEFARESEY
in developing countries in 2013, of which power-related, 84.5% EHE N gbﬁ RiAE
transportation and telecommunications sectors each BINEFBADTS R LS
accounted for approximately 37.3%, 29.3% and 17.9%, E84937.3% ~ 29.3% N 17.9% °
respectively, of the said value.

New Contract Value of Infrastructure Engineering 2006 F 22013 F IR EZE 5|

Projects by Infrastructure Types in Developing 2INEETBEREREIRER
Countries from 2006 to 2013 WHERE£4E

USS billion
10270

800 T~

600 T~

400 T~

b ] I I

0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

B Telecommunications infrastructure
B A
B Transportation infrastructure

B Power-related (electricity) infrastructure

HHREIR (FBT))

China International Contractors Association; ENR; Ipsos Report

TEHIMNEBETRERE

Ti2FMEEC
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DM

Asia and Africa remained as focuses of infrastructure
projects undertaken by Chinese contractors
internationally, accounting for approximately 38.9% and
34.9%, respectively, of the total value of international
engineering projects undertaken by Chinese contractors.

According to the Ipsos Report, the top 5 Chinese
contractors contributed approximately 48.6%, or
approximately US$11,311 million, to the total revenue
of the international power-related projects in the global
market in 2013 and among those top 5 Chinese
contractors, our Company ranked second.

According to the Ipsos Report, Chinese contractors are
having increasing share in the global market, especially in
the international power-related (electricity) projects, owing
to the fact that the international engineering contracting
players in China have stepped up on a continual and
fast growing pace, resulting from the PRC government’s
policy of the “Go Global Strategy”.

TRADING INDUSTRY

China’s international trade value grew dramatically from
2001 to 2013. Import value of China grew at a CAGR of
approximately 18.9% while export value grew at a CAGR
of approximately 19.3% from 2001 to 2013. Pursuant
to China’s accession to the World Trade Organization in
December 2001, the country committed itself to additional
reforms. Sustained implementation of these commitments
further deepened China’s internationalization.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEEBREIRROERAT
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BEENWE DN

Import and Export Value of China from 2001 to 2013 2001 FE Z2013FFEEHOEE
US$ billion
1083 7T
2,500 [ 2,210
2,000
1,500 [
1,000 [
326 438
— 660
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244 1 295 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 J
0
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
=—@— Import value of China
Hh B3 1B
=—@— Export value of China
) AR
Sources: China Customs; Ipsos Report BHANE  hEER L RWE

Trends and Developments of China Trade

1. Increasing demand for machinery and mechanical
appliance, and electrical equipment made in China

e The recovery of the global economy drove an
increasing demand for the imports of machinery and
mechanical appliance, and electrical equipment from
China, due to their quality and reasonable price.

TEESHNBERER

1. HEENENENESRE
REEL L

o HRFHBMZERETH
HEEHERGE @Rk
MEEMGBHENREKE
ﬂ—o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DM

o Developing countries, such as those in Latin America,
the Middle East and Africa, were less affected by the
financial crisis and the European sovereign debt
crisis. These developing countries maintain a stable
economic growth whilst they do not have mature
technology for domestic production. Hence they rely
heavily on imported equipment for completing their
local infrastructure and construction projects.

TRIEREEMNTIRES R
BEN T EM - PEREIEM
FRRTEROZER) -
ZEERPERRFREN
REIg R BRZ AR
M FHFEAEE - B+ DK
FEEORBUATHREARLE
ERGERIAR -

2. Steady growth in foreign trade value with more 2. YN\BEEEH 15 AF BT A

evenly distributed trade opportunity amongst
different regions in China

° According to the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, the PRC
government aims to have a more balanced foreign
trade with an annual growth of approximately 10.0%,
in terms of foreign trade value, from 2011 to 2015.
The foreign trade value is forecasted to reach
approximately US$4,800 billion by 2015.

e  The PRC government seeks to improve the foreign
trade development across different regions in China.
For example, the share of foreign trade value in
Central and Western China is aimed to increase at
an annual growth rate of approximately 5.0% from
2011 to 2015, and account for approximately 15.0%
of the total trade value in China by 2015.

1% 7B 5 1% & 7 B 1

BE[+TZRAE ] PEK
FAESREFEHNINEER
BB IZ . F2011F £2015
FHEBENFEERKE
E4910.0% » B INE B
201577 i& & #)48,00018 %
5T o

FRBFRNNEFETE
HMEMIIBERE - RF|Mm
T PRI [RF 2011
FE2015FINE M REAILF
EiE R R H5.0% L F & B
12 B HR2015F G H
B 5 REE15.0% °

3. Rise in trading of electromechanical products 3. HEEREZ FH

° Based on the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, the PRC
government aims to increase the foreign trade
value, including both imports and exports, of
electromechanical products to approximately
US$2,500 billion by 2015, with an annual growth
rate of approximately 10.0% from 2011 to 2015.
Electromechanical products will be the focus of
China’s foreign trade development with an expected
share of approximately 52.1% of the total foreign
trade value in China by 2015.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Il. BUSINESS OVERVIEW

A.

INTERNATIONAL ENGINEERING CONTRACTING

BUSINESS

The Company is a leading international engineering
contracting and service provider with a primary focus on
EPC projects and particular expertise in the power sector.
Our International Engineering Contracting Business is
one of the traditional core businesses of the Company,
representing approximately 71.8% of the Company’s total

revenue in 2013.

The following table sets forth the details of the
International Engineering Contracting Business for the
year ended December 31, 2013 and the comparative

figures for the year ended December 31, 2012:

EBHE

A EBRIBRBER

A 2 R B RE 2 BY BB AR K
BHER%E - FEHFHREPCHE
B HRABERNRENERITE-
BPNBEBRIEABREBRARR
ABERZLER 2 — - 89152013
KR ABWARIAIT1.8% o

R &5 H E2013F12A31H
IHFERBETITRARERHS
LA K 8 2201212 H318 IE F
ERLLERET

Unit: RMB million

By AREBH=ET

Year-

% of on-year

2013 Total 2012 Growth

20134 BEH% 2012%F REER

Revenue Power 9N ENER 12,265.6 79.7% 10,047.3 22.1%
Transportation RipEE 829.9 5.4% 1,202.1 -31.0%
Telecommunications ETEM 800.4 5.2% 733.9 9.1%

Non-Core Sectors FEROITE 1,489.7 9.7% 1,261.4 18.1%

Total @t 15,385.6 100% 13,244.7 16.2%

Gross profit ~ Power E7 ENEER 2,850.2 90.5% 2,437.7 16.9%
Transportation RiBpEH) 93.9 3.0% 78.4 19.8%
Telecommunications EFEA 87.3 2.8% 64.7 34.9%

Non-Core Sectors FLITE 116.0 3.7% 191.6 -39.5%

Total @ct 3,147.4 100% 2,724 13.5%
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As at December 31, 2013, our engineering contracting A £2013%F 128318 & M
projects were undertaken in more than 47 countries and IRABIEBENZHR4ATHE
regions over the world, with a primary focus in Asia and HRMipE - EBDMHERM®
Africa. There were a number of successful completed JEM - FEMAMEBOM A FE Z K
projects and ongoing projects in South America and R TAEZEIER - LT HE
Europe. The following map indicates the locations of our R T2 & B 18 B 20094 &
engineering contracting projects from 2009 to 2013. 2013FHIFLE °

Sa-
Trinidad and Tobago

o

AR FN R

Republic of Ag
s

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue T % & % # £2013F12A31H
from the Group’s International Engineering Contracting I FERBBMNES DN AEE
Business by geographic locations for the year ended BIRR T2 B U A RRAR -

December 31, 2013:

2013 % of
2013%F Total
RMB million BEE %

ANR¥BEET
Asia CEY) 5,195.7 33.8%
Africa JEM 4,605.7 29.9%
Europe BN 3,428.8 22.3%
South America BmEM 2,155.4 14.0%
Total 4t 15,385.6 100%

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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In 2013, the International Engineering Contracting
Business maintained positive growth and its core position
became more prominent. The Company analyzed the
internal and external situations in detail and spared
no effort in procuring the signing and coming into
effect of the projects. The Company also convened a
number of business operation meetings and thematic
conferences which aimed at analyzing practical difficulties
of replicating core projects for development and identified
specific solutions, through which a batch of projects
were contracted and became effective. While achieving
satisfactory progress in the performance and development
of projects, we continued to promote refined management
of projects and optimized project work flow. Continuous
endeavor was made in strengthening the management
and control of various aspects of project execution with
particular emphasis on executive direction and operation,
so as to play a more active and predominant role in the
aspects of project decision and allocation and sharing of
key resources.

Satisfactory Project Performance

As at the end of December 2013, the Company’s ongoing
projects were mainly located in Asia and Africa, which
were the two principal markets of the International
Engineering Contracting Business. The number of ongoing
projects in South Africa and Europe was gradually
increasing. Power, transportation and telecommunications
sectors remained the three core business sectors of the
Company, of which the power sector continued to occupy
the dominant role. As a whole, the quality, construction
period, cost and safety of major ongoing projects were
better controlled. In particular, for projects situated
at the quasi-developed countries such as the central
power plant and emergency power generation project
in Venezuela and the power plant project in Belarus, the
Company successfully overcame the difficulties in various
aspects such as design and transition of standards, thus
ensured a smooth progress of those projects.

BERENWR D

2013%F - R TR ABXBR
FREMIER - RO HAE 2R
e RRIRAD T ASNBS
TEHRNREHEBNRONRE
Mo ZRBRAEBMAGENE
Bew RESTEHFEER
) EBRIR 2 - BB AR ORFE R
HEA /R T —HZ|MOALLE
MHIER - R HEBEHN K
METHOIMSERFHNER
R A BT TR B RS AEE IR -
BB R - TE MR IAE
BITHRIRANEER D TE
REENEENERE  HEBR
R BRERNARMKESET
EEETERENEEER -

HEBWERRE

HZE2013F12AK * RRAIMEE
BEEZMR M EIENE M E
BRIREABEBNETEMS -
FEEMNMBNNEREE HE
B LA BHRR  RBER
MEFBATEDAERRT =K
MLERED - BHRERITEYE
BIETE X BN - BEEKE A
AYEXBERBE AR HIE
SITHEE - ITH - KEAMEZE -
LERZRNImAL P RE R R E
BEINEE - ORI E L,
BEEHSFNRERERRTHENE
B ARIERTERG - FAEH
REFENRE  RET IEE
J‘g °
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In 2013, certain completed projects of the Company
were highly acclaimed: the power transmission and
transformation project and the national dispatching centre
project in the Republic of Congo were approved for final
acceptance and were fully delivered to the project owners;
all three generators of the Thaukyegat (2) hydropower
project in Myanmar achieved early delivery; the project
of Naypyidaw International Airport in Myanmar obtained
the “Final Acceptance Certificate”; and the N’Djamena-
Djermaya 66KV high voltage power transmission project in
Chad was completed and came on stream. Furthermore,
the power plant project in Sri Lanka was awarded the
bronze award of international project management for
the second time by the International Project Management
Association in Croatia, and the project of EREN power
plant in Turkey obtained the first prize of the Excellent
Design Award for Overseas Power Projects issued by the
China Electric Power Planning & Engineering Association.
All of these awards and recognitions further enhanced the
brand image of CMEC.

New Progress on Project Origination and Projects
Becoming into Effect and Breakthrough in
Expansion into New Markets

In 2013, the values of the newly signed and newly effective
contracts of the International Engineering Contracting
Business achieved ideal results and accomplished the
operational goals set at the beginning of the year.

Fruitful results in deepening traditional market. The
Company had new projects signed in countries such as
Equatorial Guinea, Sri Lanka, Irag, Nigeria, Venezuela and
Serbia, which all had a contract value of over US$100
million each.

Breakthrough in the expansion into new markets. The
Company signed definitive agreements in countries and
regions such as Canada, Papua New Guinea, Mongolia,
Jordan and Kenya for the first time, which expanded the
geographic presence of the International Engineering
Contracting Business.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT

2013%F » AR —#TTIER &
BT MRHEEEE RER
AEPLIREEBRBT LS
WEEBREE  AEBHRE)
KEWMIEE - AHMASFTERRE
R AZ M| M AT B BE #3518
BEUS [REBRIEE] EEM
B ISk — B E 15 4heokve [E &
ERREARTARES - BN
HEWREUMIBEE X —RER#
HMEESTHEEREEEERER
BHRBIEEERAE tEH
ERENZE W EEES THFHE
NRERFHBEREBENENTE
BRI BB IRRT—F8
ELRIEMEBREE—SRAT
CMECHIMmEF R -

HEME EREHMER - HH
SHMmAREK

201345 - B TEABEKRH
FELHTFERE RBEHEE THR
TR @ TR T FHIRET K

EEE-

RIZBR T E Y HE - REVETR
BEANTE HEBHK PR
ERAME - TR NEBED
FEYRIT RSB EEBHBI00
BEXTTHFIAR -

Pt #7755 B 28R - NAE IR
MEX BHEHEANE K
HHE BEGEFERMME
ERXABEAR BATEKRIRE
HERIR IR AR E



Management Discussion and Analysis

Innovation of the financing model of projects. The student
apartment project in Canada and the heat supply project
in Mongolia marked the first time that the Company
adopted special credit insurance provided by Sinosure
to undertake and finance projects.

The following table sets forth the details of the
International Engineering Contracting Business for the
year ended December 31, 2013 and the comparative
figures for the year ended December 31, 2012:

BERENWR D

HH#ERA BRI - MEREE
RBER  XHHPREBEAFE
R B{E RV IR E IR R R
fEAEEE  YRHARME -

T X & % # £2013F12831H
I FEEREREIRABESES
LA K & Z=2012F12A318 I F
BRI ERET

Unit: US$ million
#fy : BEZET

Year-
% of on-year
2013 Total 2012 Growth
20135 BEH% 2012 REER
Newly effective  Power HaEN EWIEA 1,444.8 42.9% 4.126.8 -65.0%
contract value  Transportation ERALE RBEH 7211 21.4% 9.0 >100%
Telecommunications E1@ 366.0 10.9% 11.4 >100%
Non-Core Sectors FHTE 835.4 24.8% 217.5 >100%
Total ‘st 3,367.3 100% 4,364.7 -22.9%

As at As at
December % of December Increase/
31, 2013 Total 31, 2012 (decrease)
R2013% 720124 #BR/
124318 BEN% 124318 OR)
Backlog Power AR EWIED 5,869.1 71.4% 6,205.6 -5.4%
Transportation ERE RBEH 875.5 10.7% 287.5 >100%
Telecommunications 1 340.6 41% 105.3 >100%
Non-Core Sectors FROITE 1,131.7 13.8% 460.0 >100%
Total st 8,216.9 100% 7,058.4 16.4%
Signed contracts  Power 2ENE BHitk 5,798.9 43.0% 5,172.8 12.1%
pending to Transportation EMER REEH 3,519.0 26.1% 3,630.4 -3.1%
be effective Telecommunications EFEA 100.0 0.7% 283.2 -64.7%
Non-Core Sectors FZLTE 4,058.0 30.2% 3,015.9 34.6%
Total @st 13,475.9 100% 12,102.3 11.3%
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Emerging Benefits of the Core Market Structure

In 2013, each business team of the Company increased
their working efforts in strengthening the presence in core
markets. We intensified our effort in developing existing
markets and adopted various specific initiatives, which
included the completion of research reports and the
comprehensive implementation of development planning
of certain core markets and localization policies of staff
and procurements. Through the joint efforts of each
business team, newly signed and newly effective projects
in the majority of areas of the principal core markets were
achieved.

Further Enhancement of Engineering Technical
Capabilities

On the one hand, fundamental technological works were
further improved. In 2013, the Company completed the
preliminary work regarding engineering technology filing
and archiving, enriched the standard base of technology
and introduced the business database. On the other
hand, the cooperation between China Machinery R&D and
Zhongnan in the International Engineering Contracting
Business became more adept and the synergy effect
became more distinct. China Machinery R&D established
its Beijing branch this year which was operating well
and provided strong technological guarantee for the
Company'’s engineering contracting projects. In 2013, we
further tapped on the technological potential of Zhongnan
and completed the preliminary technology proposals for
many power projects.
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TRADING BUSINESS

Leveraging on our broad sales and marketing networks
established in more than 150 countries and regions
around the globe, we also engaged in overseas and
domestic trading business. Our Trading Business bridged
the demands of domestic and overseas purchasers and
suppliers who wished to source or sell a wide range of
products outside or in the PRC. We primarily exported
and, to a lesser extent imported and domestically traded,
complete sets of plants and equipment and various
machinery, electrical, and instrumental products including
mining equipment, ship components, automobile parts,
medical instrument, household appliances, office
equipment, electrical hardware and construction materials,
for customers in the PRC and overseas. We conducted
our Trading Business through our Company as well as
subsidiaries in the PRC and other countries and regions
(including Germany, the United States, Australia, Japan
and Hong Kong) and overseas representative offices.

In 2013, the Company adopted a series of initiatives
for mitigating the risks of the Trading Business. Being
influenced by a combination of factors including the
sluggish recovery of the global economy, the aggravation
of market competitions and the transition period of
transformation and adjustment of the Trading Business,
the results of the Trading Business declined to a larger
extent. For this reason, the Company strategically
classified the Trading Business as “business in
transformation and development” and adopted a series
of adjustment policies which laid down the foundation for
a healthy development of the Trading Business.
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The following table sets forth the details of the Trading
Business for the year ended December 31, 2013, together
with the comparative figures for the year ended December
31, 2012:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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T X & % & £2013F12 8318
tFEEZEBFRBRERER
2012F12A31H It FE W L &
HT

Unit: RMB million
B7 - AREEET

Year-

% of on-year

2013 Total 2012 Growth

2013F BEN% 2012 REER

Revenue International trade XA BRES 3,997.0 81.4% 5,854.4 -31.7%
Domestic trade NES 910.8 18.6% 1,308.7 -30.4%

Total act 4,907.8 100% 7,163.1 -31.5%

Gross profit International trade  EFI HERE 5 247.9 88.3% 4726 -47.5%
Domestic trade NES 32,7 11.7% 108.9 -70.0%

Total act 280.6 100% 581.5 -51.7%

Striving to become a trading integrated entity by
internal consolidation

According to the strategic plan of the Company, in order
to foster the transformation and upgrade of the Trading
Business, the Company analyzed the overall condition
of the Trading Business objectively and endeavored to
change the current sizeable but less vigorous conditions
of the Trading Business, so as to effectively develop
large-scale domestic and overseas trading orders and
actively promote the internal integration of each of the
trading business team. The Company strived to develop
and strengthen the Trading Business by means of the
above-mentioned measures and put effort in attaining
the advantage of being a trading integrated entity in order
to substantially change the conditions of a single and
obsolete operating mode of the Trading Business and
rebuild the core competitiveness of the Trading Business.
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Achieving directional transformation and upgrade

Through our continuous efforts, the Company underwent
consolidation in becoming a systemized integrated entity
with financing, planning and execution capabilities as well
as a value-adding service provider.

Fruitful results in expansion of new markets

During 2013, the Company spared no effort in developing
domestic and overseas new markets, new products
and new customers. The number and amount of newly
signed projects by certain business teams increased
substantially and focus was placed on developing areas of
high technology, high added value and high competition
threshold, which obtained significant breakthroughs in
the development of new workmanship and the extension
of product chains.

OTHER BUSINESSES

Other than the International Engineering Contracting
Business and the Trading Business, we also engaged
in Other Businesses, ranging from logistics service to
exhibition service, tendering agency services and other
services (including export-import agency and design
services) and undertook strategic investment.

In 2013, the Other Businesses of the Company
achieved steady growth and each business team
actively explored the mode for business upgrade. The
Company’s international logistics business not only fully
supported the execution of international engineering
contracting projects, but also bolstered the professional
advantage in the industry. The external business income
exceeded half of its total business income. In which,
the successful signing and execution of the oil and
gas pipe vessel transportation business in Tanzania
signified the successful expansion of the Company’s
international logistics business team into the emerging
market of offshore engineering logistics. In addition, the
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Company’s international joint railway business provided
extended customized service to customers based on the
traditional logistics service, which demonstrated the trend
of optimized transformation and upgrade. In the same
year, in terms of the number and scale of exhibitions
organized, CMEC Expo ranked first among organizers in
the country for the first time. It was also recognized as
a top brand in the overseas exhibition industry as well
as being honored the “Excellent Organizer for Overseas
Economic and Trade Exhibitions” (B EI&E R EEF
#H R B (7). At the same time, the Company’s design and
tendering agency businesses ventured into new business
sectors and maintained steady development.

The following table sets forth the details of the Company’s
Other Businesses for the year ended December 31, 2013,
together with the comparative figures for the year ended
December 31, 2012:

oh REMBAREEEELSE
BREYRRBHERL - AES
IREIE R T SIR BN TR
TR BB RS  REE 0 7
ERE B AR KRR RS
EREEEBARER Y S -
SBHARTEE DM LK
FAREHAKEREESA
REf] o FEF - QMR-
BIEREE LB HHAT M
B - RETBERE -

T & & 5 # £2013F12A31H
IFFERBEMERFBERE
Z2012%F12A8318 IEF E A
BRET

Unit: RMB million
Bl ARBEET

Year-
% of on-year
Total 2012 Growth

BEN% 20124 RELR

Revenue Logistics services /9N MR
Exhibition services EER%
Tendering agency services HERBRS
Export-import agency services EHORERS
Design services R IR
Other Hth
Total @

Gross profit  Total E CHY

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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35.3% 284.2 40.5%
17.4% 217.4 -8.8%
1.1% 29.0 -57.6%
6.2% 61.7 13.0%
35.4% 239.3 67.7%
4.6% 56.7 -8.1%
100% 888.3 27.5%
100% 377.6 -16.7%
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND BUSINESS
ACHIEVEMENTS

Introduction of the ‘Five-Year Strategic Plan’

In August 2013, the Company announced the “CMEC
Strategic Development Plan for the Next Five Years”

(CMECKR R B 5 3 R B 3R 8).

CMEC'’s vision of corporate development is to be the
world’s leading international engineering contractor and
service provider. In the future, the Company will endeavor
to promote transformation by breakthroughs and adjust
its business structure to remold the competitiveness of
the core businesses as well as striving to innovate the
business to transform the development model to further
entrench its position in the infrastructure industry, so as
to become a world-class integrated corporation with
diversified and unified development.

In the next five years, the Company will strive to create
synergistic advantages of the relevant diversified
businesses composed of the three principal sectors,
namely engineering contracting, trading services and
investment. In addition, we will endeavor to form a
balanced market layout of “overseas market and domestic
market”. The focus of the International Engineering
Contracting Business will be on the power sector and
the expansion of synergistically diversified business will
be carried out while differentiated strategy with respect
to regional market and localized strategy will be adopted
in order to maximize the synergy effect and optimize
resources allocation. The focus of the Trading Business
will be on business consolidation, materialization of
transformation of business mode and remolding of
the overall competitiveness of business. Businesses
promoted by investment will be the Company’s strategic
emerging business.
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For future business layout, the Company will establish four
main centres domestically, with Beijing’s headquarters
being the decision-making, control and operation
centre, Eastern China being the trading and logistics
business centre, Guangdong and Hong Kong being the
investment and financing centre and Changsha being
the technological research and development centre.
For overseas countries, certain regional centres which
can exert influence on the surrounding areas will be
established in order to ensure a sustainable development
of the businesses.

Signing of Equity Custodian Agreement

According to the undertakings made at Listing and
strategic planning, SINOMACH entrusted CMEC to
manage 100% equity interests held in its subsidiaries
being CNEEC and CNCEC. The daily operational and
management affairs (such as business, investment, equity,
finance and human resources) of these two enterprises
were unified under the management system of CMEC.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on June 26, 2013.
Currently, the business arrangements are fundamentally
completed.

Releasing of the Sanctions by the U.S. Government

On June 27, 2013, the Department of State of the
government of the United States of America (the “U.S.
Government”) published public notice no. 8361 (the
“Public Notice”) in the Federal Register in relation
to a determination to lift the Chemical and Biological
Weapons Proliferation Sanctions against the Company
and CMEC Machinery & Electric as well as their respective
subsidiaries and successors, which were imposed on
them on July 9, 2002. According to the Public Notice,
the Under Secretary of State for Arms Control and
International Security of the U.S. Government determined
and certified to the United States Congress that such
lifting of sanctions is important to the national security
interests of the United States. For details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company on June 28, 2013. This brought new
opportunities to the business development of CMEC, in
particular, offering favorable conditions for the Company
to dip its toe in the markets of developed countries.
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Significant Breakthroughs in Business Negotiations

The Company and the government of Gabon satisfactorily
completed the transfer of the project of Belinga mine
through friendly negotiations. Both parties entered into
the equity transfer agreement on November 27, 2013
and completed the transfer on December 24, 2013.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on November 27,
2013 and December 31, 2013.

In addition, pursuant to the needs of business
development, the Company proposed to establish
domestic and overseas branches which conformed to the
business demands and characteristics of local markets
in a timely manner. In 2013, the Company established a
subsidiary in Namibia.

At the same time, after the stringent review procedures,
on July 11, 2013, the Company and the U.S. General
Electric International, Inc. entered into a memorandum
of understanding under which the parties agreed to
explore the commencement of business cooperation
on a non-exclusive basis in areas of power generation
equipment including gas turbine, steam turbine, wind
turbine, jenbacher, aero, gasification, water solutions, oil
and gas related products and solutions, measurement
control systems, and industrial solutions. The parties
agreed to periodically exchange project intelligence
collected from respective channels in relation to the
cooperation covering energy business, and jointly develop
an engineering, procurement and construction opportunity
pipeline. The parties would also start to cooperate at
the early stage of any given project to jointly determine
product specifications, design element/equipment
financing structure. A consortium may be established
between both parties to pursue certain projects where
appropriate, subject to mutually agreed conditions and
a signed consortium agreement. For details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on July 11, 2018.
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PRIORITIZED DEVELOPMENT, INTEGRATED
OPERATIONS, STRENGTHENED
PROFESSIONALIZED MANAGEMENT AND
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE PROFESSIONAL
STRUCTURE OF INVESTMENT AND FINANCING

In 2013, according to the development strategy of the
Company, the Company carried out the organizational
adjustment in functional departments and business
divisions which streamlined the management structure and
combined and integrated certain functional management
departments. In order to increase the efforts in a refined
management, the Company also implemented a number
of internal management policies. For the purpose of
promoting the professional development and effective
management, the Company established new channels
for professional developments and implemented new
operating mechanisms for effective management.

Targeting at the International Engineering Contracting
Business, the Company convened seminars to conduct
discussions and researches regarding the issues of the
development of the International Engineering Contracting
Business and the methods of strengthening the
establishment of core markets as well as promoting the
localization and regionalization of projects. The Company
made preliminary adjustments of the Company’s internal
organization and structures on such basis in order to
adapt to the requirements of development strategies
and the demands of market development. Through
strengthening the technical support of China Machinery
R&D and Zhongnan in the industry chain, the Company
promoted the connection of the internal industry chains
of the International Engineering Contracting Business.
In order to accommodate to the adjustment of the
organizational structure of the Company, the Company
integrated and improved the system and work flow of
business management which delegated the rights of
approval of certain projects, thus further implemented
the Company’s development principle of “Simplification
and Delegation of Power” (“f&{t + HMUHE”). Specific to the
Trading Business and the Other Businesses, the Company
convened the seminar of trading service business which
gathered, consolidated and analyzed information about
the operational status of such business and issued
the standards of reorganization, merger and closure
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of subsidiaries as and when appropriate, as well as
increasing the registered capital of premium subsidiaries
to enhance its development capabilities. The Company
also strengthened the management of its foreign
subsidiaries and enhanced the platform sharing with
overseas institutions. The above adjustment policies laid
a solid managerial foundation for further transformation
and upgrade of the Trading Business of the Company. At
the same time, the Company established the professional
management department of investment and financing
business, which conducted the overall planning of the
utilization of various financial resources and introduced
professional talents in investment, so as to enhance the
professionalized management of that business.

MARKETING AND PROMOTION OF THE CMEC
BRAND

In 2013, the Company organized a series of brand
promotion and marketing activities, such as the CMEC
Turkish Brand Showcase in Istanbul, Turkey. Seizing
the opportunities of the British Commonwealth Summit
and Chinese Engineering Exhibitions convened in Sri
Lanka, the Company successfully launched a series
of activities displaying the brand image of CMEC. In
these promotional activities, the senior management
of the Company attended and signed new projects
and agreements, which effectively increased the brand
influence of CMEC and at the same time promoted
project development.

ACTIVELY FULFILLING SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company persistently attached importance to
the protection of ecological environment of the areas
where the projects were located. It proactively sought
to understand the livelihood of the local people and
constructed schools, hospitals, stations, elderly homes
and churches, thereby improving the local employment
and economic development through recruiting local
employees. Furthermore, the Company actively
participated in various charitable activities.
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I1l. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS n. EEEUYBRAREERE

ON FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING 2R oA

RESULTS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with EHEBTN NS HE  F5—0288%5
the financial statements of the Group together with the ERNFREEMEESPAEBEN
accompanying notes included in this annual report and other R M BIRE o

sections therein.

1. OVERVIEW 1. BE
The Group’s profitability improved in 2013. Profit for N EEH & FR2013F A BTk
the year increased by 1.7% to RMB1,960.2 million in Z 2013 F FARAm MR/ ARE
2013 compared to RMB1,928.1 million in 2012. Profit 1,960.2F & JT * B2012F M A
attributable to the Shareholders amounted to RMB1,959.2 R#¥1,0281H & LIBR1.7% -
million in 2013. 013 EB IR ANA/ARKE

1,959.2H & T °

2. REVENUE 2. WA
The Group generated its revenue from the International NEBFHIMAKRBBEE TREAR
Engineering Contracting Business, Trading Business and EiE BOEBLRHEMER -

Other Businesses.
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The following table sets out, for the periods indicated, the TR TIPE=ZEEB D
amount and percentage of our total revenue by each of BEENEBMERWANE D
our three business segments: Lk

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE
2013 2012
2013%F 2012%F

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR®EET) (%) (AREEHET) (%)
International Engineering ERIRREER

Contracting Business
Power EWEH 12,265.6 57.2% 10,047.3 47.2%
Transportation i@ 829.9 3.9% 1,202.1 5.6%
Telecommunications BB 800.4 3.7% 733.9 3.4%
Non-Core Sectors IEZOITE 1,489.7 7.0% 1,261.4 5.9%
Trading Business ERE®
International trade IR E 3,997.0 18.6% 5,854.4 27.5%
Domestic trade NE5 910.8 4.3% 1,308.7 6.1%
Other Businesses HAt % 1,132.9 5.3% 888.3 4.3%
Total st 21,426.3 100% 21,296.1 100%
International Engineering Contracting Business 1) EBERIERBER
The Group’s revenue generated from its International 20134 » 7N & @ /9 B PR T 32 %
Engineering Contracting Business increased by 16.2% to BEBKRARARKE15385.6
RMB15,385.6 million in 2013 compared to RMB13,244.7 B8 Mm20125 Bl m A K
million in 2012, primarily due to the increase in revenue 1324478 B L BB A
generated from the performance of the projects in the 16.2% * TEMNEITE HEER
power sector. TR ERIE B U A A1 -
The revenue generated from the power sector increased 2013F E L RITEWA B A
by 22.1% to RMB12,265.6 million in 2013 as compared R #12,265.68 & JU ' 2012
to RMB10,047.3 million in 2012, primarily due to the FAR100473H & TR
significant progress of the power station projects in Asia 221% + EEH A MR E M
and South America in 2013. VELTE B F2013F IS B K#
@ o
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2)

The revenue generated from the transportation sector
decreased by 31.0% to RMB829.9 million in 2013 as
compared to RMB1,202.1 million in 2012, primarily due to
the completion of the construction of the vessel projects
for project owners in Asia and Europe in 2012.

The revenue generated from the telecommunications
sector increased by more than 9.1% to RMB800.4 million
in 2013, as compared with RMB733.9 million in 2012,
primarily due to the commencement of the construction
of telecommunications projects in Asia and Africa in 2013.

The revenue generated from the non-Core Sectors
increased by 18.1% to RMB1,489.7 million in 2013 as
compared to RMB1,261.4 million in 2012, primarily due
to the progress of the cement plant project in Asia and
the commencement of the construction of the medical
and educational projects in Africa.

Trading Business

The Group’s revenue generated from its Trading Business
decreased by 31.5% to RMB4,907.8 million in 2013
compared to RMB7,163.1 million in 2012, primarily due
to the impact of termination of its Trading Business in the
sanctioned countries and the lower transaction volume
as a result of effective risk management of the Company
by not entering into certain transactions with higher risk
profile.

The revenue generated from international trade decreased
by 31.7% to RMB3,997.0 million in 2013 as compared to
RMB5,854.4 million in 2012, primarily due to the impact
of termination of its Trading Business in the sanctioned
countries and the completion and delivery of complete
sets of equipment exported to Africa on non-recurring
basis in 2012.

The revenue generated from domestic trade decreased
by 30.4% to RMB910.8 million in 2013 as compared
to RMB1,308.7 million in 2012, primarily due to the
lower transaction volume as a result of effective risk
management of the Company.
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3)

Other Businesses

The Group’s revenue generated from its Other Businesses
increased by 27.5% to RMB1,132.9 million in 2013
compared to RMB888.3 million in 2012, primarily due to
the increase in revenue generated from the logistics and
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design services of the Group.

COST OF SALES

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 0.7% to
RMB17,683.8 million in 2013 compared to RMB17,564.6
million in 2012. The cost of sales remained relatively

3) HthEH

EERM YR
e

3. HERK

2013F - AEBEMHEMEK K
ABARBEIA329B & T M
20125 Al = A R ¥888.38 &
JL o BIEA27.5%  TERARA
%5 AR T W A 18

2013%F * REERMHEEXNEABA

e —

R¥17,683.8E & T * M20124F
Bl A AR17,564.68 87T @ 18

1B/R0.7% - IHEX AL RIS

stable.
F o
GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN 4. ENRERN=E
Gross profit of the Group in 2013 consists of the (i)
following: T

2013 F A KEER BB RN

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012
2013F 20124

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AREBET) (%) (AE%EZET) (%)
International Engineering BRIBREEY

Contracting Business

Power ENER 2,850.2 76.2% 2,437.7 65.3%
Transportation RmER 93.9 2.5% 78.4 2.1%
Telecommunications BTEA 87.3 2.3% 64.7 1.7%
Non-Core Sectors FERZIITE 116.0 3.1% 191.6 5.1%
Trading Business RS
International trade ERES 247.9 6.6% 472.6 12.7%
Domestic trade NES 32.7 0.9% 108.9 2.9%
Other Businesses Hin g5 314.5 8.4% 377.6 10.2%
Total @st 3,742.5 100% 3,731.5 100%
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(ii) Gross profit margins of the Group in 2013 are set
out in the following table:

(i) 2013FEAREBEFRFRTE -

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE
2013 2012
20135 20124
(%) (%)

International Engineering B IEREER

Contracting Business 20.5% 20.9%
Power B EER 23.2% 24.3%
Transportation EIE 11.3% 6.5%
Telecommunications B 10.9% 8.8%
Non-Core Sectors FERZOTTEE 7.8% 15.2%
Trading Business BREWK 5.7% 8.1%
International trade RE 5 6.2% 8.1%
Domestic trade BAE S 3.6% 8.3%
Other Businesses Hih %k 27.8% 42.5%
Total @t 17.5% 17.5%

The Group’s gross profit

increased by 0.3% to

RMB3,742.5 million in 2013 compared to RMB3,731.5
million in 2012. This increase is mainly attributable to the

increase in gross profit from the International Engineering

Contracting Business. The Group’s overall gross profit

margin remained relatively stable in 2013.
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1) International Engineering Contracting Business

(@)

Gross profit

The gross profit generated from the International
Engineering Contracting Business increased
by 13.5% to RMB3,147.5 million in 2013 as
compared to RMB2,772.4 million in 2012,
primarily due to the increase in gross profit
from the power sector.

The gross profit generated from the power
sector increased by 16.9% to RMB2,850.2
million in 2013 as compared to RMB2,437.7
million in 2012, primarily due to the significant
progress of the power station projects in Asia
and South America in 2013.

The gross profit generated from the
transportation sector increased by 19.8%
to RMB93.9 million in 2013 as compared to
RMB78.4 million in 2012, primarily due to the
progress of the road projects in Africa in 2013
and the commencement of the construction of
the vessel projects in Asia in 2013.

The gross profit generated from the
telecommunications sector increased by more
than 34.9% to RMB87.3 million in 2013 as
compared to RMB64.7 million in 2012, primarily
due to the commencement of the construction
of the telecommunications projects in Asia and
Africa in 2013.

The gross profit generated from the non-Core
Sectors decreased by 39.5% to RMB116.0
million in 2013 as compared to RMB191.6
million in 2012, primarily due to the completion
of a housing project in Asia in 2012 and the
foreseeable losses arising from the changes in
the work scope and workload of a cement plant
construction project in Asia.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin generated from the
International Engineering Contracting Business
slightly decreased to 20.5% in 2013 as
compared to 20.9% in 2012, primarily due to
the decrease in gross profit margin from the
power and non-Core Sectors.

1) B TEABERE

(@)

EH
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A& M20129F 8 A A
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A AN R 285028 & T
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2013F » EFBAITETE
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EFiMIE B R2013F MR
R o
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2012F M AR #1916 &
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EH%
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The gross profit margin generated from the
power sector decreased to 23.2% in 2013 as
compared to 24.3% in 2012, primarily due to
the completion or near completion of certain
power projects with relatively higher gross profit
margin in Africa in 2012.

The gross profit margin generated from the
transportation sector increased to 11.3% in
20183 as compared to 6.5% in 2012, primarily
due to higher gross profit margin of the vessel
projects in Asia and the road projects in Africa,
which commenced construction in 2013, as
compared to that in 2012.

The gross profit margin generated from the
telecommunications sector increased to 10.9%
in 2013 as compared to 8.8% in 2012, primarily
due to the commencement of the construction
of the telecommunications projects in Asia and
Africa which had relatively higher gross profit
margin.

The gross profit margin generated from the
non-Core Sectors decreased to 7.8% in 2013
as compared to 15.2% in 2012, primarily due
to the foreseeable losses arising from the
changes in the work scope and workload of a
cement plant construction project in Asia. This
project was suspended due to the unstable
local political environment in prior years and
resumed construction during 2013 as local
political environment became stable.

2) Trading Business

(@)

Gross profit

The gross profit generated from the Trading
Business decreased by 51.7% to RMB280.6
million in 2013 as compared to RMB581.5
million in 2012, primarily due to the impact
of termination of its Trading Business in the
sanctioned countries and the lower transaction
volume as a result of effective risk management
of the Company.
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The gross profit generated from international
trade decreased by 47.5% to RMB247.9 million
in 2013 as compared to RMB472.6 million in
2012, primarily due to the impact of termination
of its Trading Business in the sanctioned
countries and the completion and delivery of
complete sets of equipment exported to Africa
on non-recurring basis in 2012.

The gross profit generated from domestic trade
decreased by 70.0% to RMB32.7 million in
2013 as compared to RMB108.9 million in
2012, primarily due to the lower transaction
volume as a result of effective risk management
of the Company.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin generated from the
Trading Business decreased to 5.7% in 2013
as compared to 8.1% in 2012, primarily due
to the completion and delivery of complete
sets of equipment exported to Africa on non-
recurring basis and more severe competition in
the domestic market.

The gross profit margin generated from
international trade decreased to 6.2% in 2013
as compared to 8.1% in 2012, primarily due to
the completion and delivery of complete sets of
equipment exported to Africa on non-recurring
basis in 2012.

The gross profit margin generated from
domestic trade decreased to 3.6% in 2013 as
compared to 8.3% in 2012, primarily due to
the impact of domestic competition landscape,
resulting in the decrease in the gross profit
margin generated from domestic trade.

2013%F - BB S EBEF
ABANRE247TIHBE T It
20126 M ARE47268 &
TR APA75%  TEHRT
I EBERE HEBFIL
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Sy g
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2013F r BINE 5B E
FAEARENRTEET It
20126 W AR®108.98 &
T A70.0%  TERZHR
NGIV=PoRy el L e

258 -

EFE

2013 - ESEBEN X
% 25.7% + 20124 Al &
8.1% * EZMMH HAFEMAY
SERFEMREREEB TR
RERBREF B8RRI -

2013%F - Bl E 5% B EF
K [E E£6.2% - 20124 Al
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3) Other Businesses

(@) Gross profit

The gross profit generated from the Other
Businesses decreased by 16.7% to RMB314.5
million in 2013 as compared to RMB377.6
million in 2012, while the overall gross profit
was substantially the same.

(b) Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin generated from the
Other Businesses decreased to 27.8% in 2013
as compared to 42.5% in 2012, primarily due
to the decrease in businesses with higher gross
profit margin (such as tendering services) and
the decrease in gross profit margin of design
services in 2013 due to market factors.

OTHER REVENUE

The Group’s other revenue increased by 3.3% to RMB12.4
million in 2013 compared to RMB12.0 million in 2012.
This category of revenue remained relatively stable.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, NET

The Group’s other income and expenses, net amounted
to RMB353.5 million in 2013 compared to expenses of
RMB10.1 million in 2012. Income increased by 3,400.0%.
This increase is mainly attributable to the increase in
net gains from changes in fair value of foreign currency
forward contracts and the net gain of the disposal of the
equity in subsidiaries.
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SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased
by 6.5% to RMB1,157.7 million in 2013 compared to
RMB1,086.6 million in 2012. This increase is mainly
attributable to the increases in wages expenses.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 16.5%
to RMB557.0 million in 2013 compared to RMB478.3
million in 2012. This increase is mainly attributable to
the increases in wages, welfare expenses and travel
expenses.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s other operating expenses decreased
by 47.7% to RMB65.6 million in 2013 compared to
RMB125.5 million in 2012. This decrease is mainly
attributable to the decrease in impairment losses on
receivables as compared to that in 2012.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group’s profit from operations increased by 12.8%
to RMB2,328.1 million in 2013 compared to RMB2,063.2
million in 2012. This increase is mainly attributable to
the net gains from changes in fair value of the foreign
currency forward exchange contracts, and the disposal
of the interests in a subsidiary.

FINANCE INCOME/FINANCE EXPENSES

The Group’s finance income increased by 26.6% to
RMB737.9 million in 2013 compared to RMB583.0
million in 2012. This increase is mainly attributable to the
increase in interest income.
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12,

13.

14.

The Group’s finance expenses increased by 1,225.7%
to RMB401.7 million in 2013 compared to RMB30.3
million in 2012. This increase is mainly attributable to the
increase in foreign exchange losses.

As a result, the Group’s net finance income decreased by
39.2%, amounting to RMB336.2 million in 2013 compared
to the net finance income of RMB552.7 million in 2012.

INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax increased by 2.4% to RMB703.9
million in 2013 compared to RMB687.7 million in 2012.
This increase is mainly attributable to the increase in the
profit before tax for 2013. Effective tax rate remained
relatively stable in 2013.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit for the
year increased by 1.7% to RMB1,960.2 million in 2013
compared to RMB1,928.1 million in 2012 and its net
profit margin increased by 9.15% in 2013 compared to
9.1% in 2012.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to the Shareholders increased
by 1.6% to RMB1,959.2 million in 2013 compared to
RMB1,927.6 million in 2012.
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The profit attributable to the holders of non-controlling
interests of the Group increased by 100% to RMB1.0
million in 2013 compared to profit of RMBO0.5 million in
2012.

MAJOR INVESTMENT

The Group made no major investment during the year
of 2013.

MAJOR ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS

The Group had disposed of the equity in an African
subsidiary in 2013. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on November 27, 2013 and December 31,
2013.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
Please see the paragraphs headed “Il. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW - D. Significant Events and Business
Achievements” on pages 33 to 35 of this annual report.
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IV. LIQUIDITY

Our principal sources of funds have been cash generated
from operations and various short-term and long-term bank
borrowings and lines of credit, as well as equity contributions
from Shareholders. Our liquidity requirements derive primarily
from our working capital needs, purchases of fixed assets and

the servicing of our indebtedness.

We have historically met our working capital and other
liquidity requirements principally from cash generated from
operations, while financing the remainder primarily through
bank borrowings and proceeds from Listing.

1. CASH FLOWS

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2013, with the
comparing figures for the year ended December 31, 2012:

REBEE

BPNEST2RELLEMEENR
T ZEREHLRPRITEERER
BENRBRRIE - BRANARBES
BREIBEREEEESNTE - BE
Bl EEREERPNER

—EUR RAEBRGLEDHE
ReRBREEELREMADES
B MABLELZRBRITHEE
H_E T -

1. BER

[l

TR &5 EH =2013F12A831H
IFFERMOBSREEN - WA
¥ # £2012F12A318 It £ &
ML EEH T -

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB million RMB million
AREEET ARKEZT
Net cash generated from REEHEENRLTE
operating activities (499.9) 6,972.1
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFMANESFE 3,228.9 (2,597.5)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETHELE(FTH)
financing activities WIREFE (131.9) 2,549.5
Net increase in cash and cash ReRkBeEED
equivalents N 2,597.1 6,924.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRIFE KR EEY
beginning of the year 12,089.4 5,170.7
Effect of foreign exchange [EXZHHTE
rate changes (136.3) (5.4)
Cash and cash equivalents FARNE 2 MIEEEEY
at the end of the year 14,550.2 12,089.4
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As at December 31, 2013, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB14,500.2 million, compared
to RMB12,089.4 million as at December 31, 2012,
representing an increase of 20.4%. The main source of
the Group’s operating capital is the decrease in cash
investment in fixed deposit.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we had net cash
generated from operating activities of RMB(499.9) million.
Net cash outflow generated from operating activities
was mainly attributable to changes in working capital,
which resulted in a cash outflow of RMB1,763.3 million
in 2013. The changes in working capital mainly included
(i) a decrease in receivables for construction contracts of
RMB1,671.8 million, (ii) a decrease in receipts in advance
of RMB5,688.7 million, (iii) a decrease in trade and other
receivables of RMB855.9 million and (iv) an increase in
trade and other payables of RMB1,403.5 million. In 2013,
cash generated from profit from operations amounted
to RMB2,166.5 million, cash outflow from changes in
working capital was RMB1,763.3 million and income tax
paid was RMB903.1 million, which resulted in net cash
outflow generated from operating activities of RMB499.9
million.
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our net cash
used in investing activities was RMB3,228.9 million. Our
cash outflow from investing activities mainly consisted
of (i) payments for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment of RMB91.5 million, (ii) payment for acquisition
of land use right of RMB152.8 million and (iii) a decrease
in cash investment in time deposits of RMB2,849.7
million. Such amount was partially offset by interest
income received of RMB482.5 million.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our net cash
generated from financing activities was RMB(131.9)
million. Our cash inflow from financing activities primarily
consisted of (i) net proceeds from public shares offer of
RMB519.4 million and (ii) proceeds from borrowings of
RMB211.5 million. Such amount was partially offset by (i)
repayment of borrowings from banks of RMB180.2 million
and (i) dividends paid to Shareholders of RMB675.0
million.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures consisted primarily of the
purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, lease prepayments and intangible assets.
In 2013, the Group’s capital expenditure was RMB69.4
million, representing a decrease of 79.2% as compared
to RMB333.2 million in 2012, mainly due to the higher
expenses on land use rights in 2012 as compared to
those in 2013.
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WORKING CAPITAL 6. ZHEES

Trade and other receivables (a) EFREMEWRFIE

Our trade and other receivables primarily consist of RPN E S REMERRELTE
trade and bill receivables, advances to suppliers, other BIEE S EWZFBE L EKREZE -
receivables related to agency services and amount due mEEmEAR - RIEREIEE
from or advances to fellow subsidiaries. B L At 8 U FR T8 Ko E U SR B R

EMBARFIA -

The following table sets forth the turnover days of the TR &N E £22013F 2012
average trade receivables and the turnover days of the F12A31HIEFEARRFEHE
average trade payables of the Company for the year SEWGFERTFIE 5 RN RIE
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. HIJAEE R BN o

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE

2013 2012
20135 20124
days days
XE K&
The turnover days of the BSEGFHEFE
average trade receivables WSk IE #) 18 88 K 81
for Trading Business (Note 1) (K1) 89 80
The turnover days of the FHE 5 A FIAER
average trade payables BERE (F72)
(Note 2) 207 184
Note 1: The average trade receivables for the Trading Business Hiat1 - BHEBTHE S EKHIE
are the sum of opening balance and the closing KB SEGKE S ERNIE
balance of trade receivables for the Trading Business FUEREF REERIER
divided by two. The turnover days of the average trade BER-_BL -BZEBKTESH
receivables for the Trading Business are the average Z 5 W RIER EE XS
trade receivables for the Trading Business divided by BEZEKFHIE SRR
revenue of the Trading Business and multiplied by 360. TER LAE BB B TR
36015 H °
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Note 2: The average trade payables are the sum of opening
balance and the closing balance of trade payables
divided by two. The turnover days of the average trade
payables are the average trade payables divided by cost
of sales and multiplied by 360.

The following table sets forth the aging analysis of trade
and bill receivables (net of allowance of doubtful debts)
based on the invoice date as at December 31, 2013 and
2012.

Mtz - FHESENREDEES
FEFRIEF SR ERF R
BEANBR B - F15
B REMNFIENEERET)
1% 19 B 5 FE A ZRIB R LAY
ERARBRAZ60EFH ©

T X & 71 20134 K2012412
A31B & ZEUIE K EREE
(B RERESE) REFHHNE
BT -

As at December 31,

R12H31H
2013 2012
20134 20124
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EERT) (ARKEHET)
Within 3 months 31E A AR 1,306.5 1,814.7
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 218.5 398.9
6 months to 1 year FEESE:S 301.8 370.6
Over 1 year 1F L+ 532.4 507.1
2,359.2 3,091.3

The Group’s credit policies with its customers for the
year ended December 31, 2013 remained consistent
as that for the year ended December 31, 2012. We
continually enhanced our management of trade and
bills receivables to reduce the exposure to doubtful
debts. In addition, we made allowance for doubtful
debts after fully considering the nature of trade and bills
receivables and their collectability. As at December 31,
2013, allowance provided for doubtful debts for our
trade and bill receivables amounted to RMB461.3 million,
accounting for 16.4% of our trade and bill receivables, as
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compared to RMB407.6 million, accounting for 11.6% of
our trade and bill receivables as at December 31, 2012.
The increase in allowance for doubtful debt from 2012
to 2013 was primarily due to the provision we made in
connection with certain trade and bills receivables from
our International Engineering Contracting Business and
Trading Business as a result of evidences of significant
financial difficulties of debtors that came into our attention.

Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables primarily consist of trade
and bills payables, other payables related to agency
services, accrued salaries, wages and benefits and
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries.

The following table sets forth the aging analysis of our
trade and bills payables based on the invoice date as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

BERENWR D

461 3B B HRMESE
WRIEREWREEN16.4% - M
R2012F12A31H Bl A AR
4076B BT HEME S EK
PRI N EWEIEHI11.6% © 2012
FE2013FRIEBEEINEER
REMESEEZBREREBRA
3R B E B A gt B PR TRE AR
EBRBEFEBHNETESHER
HIBREWEE R

(b) BEZRHEMENKE

BPONES REMENFEEE
BREZHENFBRENRE
2 AR 745 48 B ) EL A B 5 3008
Eat¥He  TERBMEREZE
Bt A RIRRIA o

T 2 & 51 20134 K20124F12
AS1HRME 5 758 & ER
EEREZHHNERR DT

As at December 31,

M®12H31H
2013 2012
20134 20124
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EET) (ARKEET)
Within 3 months 3{E A AR 4,707.0 6,039.3
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 761.4 468.6
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F 534.1 547.1
Over 1 year 1 4,770.4 2,540.6
10,772.9 9,595.6

The Group’s credit policies with its suppliers for the year
ended December 31, 2013 remained the same as that for
the year ended December 31, 2012.

B E2013F12A318 Ik F & -
AEBERHEBERNEEREHE
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

1. BORROWINGS

Our consolidated borrowings as at December 31, 2012

and 2013 for the purpose of calculating the indebtedness

of our Company were as follows:

&%

B&

20125 K2013F12831H » &
AN ERRBIER S HHE

=3 NN

As at December 31,

M®12H31H
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB million RMB million
AR¥EET ARG ET
Current: Vi
Short-term borrowings REEE
Bank loans IRITER
unsecured YRR 16.9 18.6
secured BER 145.7 33.8
Subtotal 2 162.6 52.4
Add: current portion of s REIEE®
long-term borrowings mENEB D 71.7 81.5
Subtotal It 234.3 133.9
Non-current: EME
Long-term borrowings REMEE
Bank loans IRITER
unsecured R 2.7 -
secured BEFR 148.6 236.1
Subtotal Nt 151.3 236.1
Less: current portion of B REEEA
long-term borrowings TRENEB D 71.7 81.5
Subtotal et 79.6 154.6
Total et 313.9 288.5

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Our short-term borrowings primarily include credit
borrowings, mortgage borrowings and guarantee
borrowings from commercial banks and other financial
institutions. As at December 31, 2013, our short-term
borrowings (including the current portion of long-term
borrowings) amounted to RMB234.3 million, accounting
for 74.6% of our total borrowings.

Our long-term borrowings primarily included pledge
borrowings from commercial banks and other financial
institutions. These included bank borrowings related
to projects financed by export seller’s credit, with the
total balance of such borrowings (including the current
portion) amounting to approximately RMB151.3 million
as at December 31, 2013. As at December 31, 2013,
our long-term borrowings (excluding the current portion)
amounted to RMB79.6 million, accounting for 25.4% of
our total borrowings. The decrease in our interest-bearing
borrowings to RMB79.6 million as at December 31, 2013
was primarily due to the repayment of long-term bank
borrowings using cash generated from our business
operations.

As at December 31, 2013, certain of the Group’s
borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s
buildings with an aggregate net book value of
RMB4,698,000 and bank deposits of RMB154,030,000.

As at December 31, 2012, certain of the Group’s
borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s
buildings with an aggregate net book value of
RMB5,063,000, lease prepayments of RMB8,592,000,
trade receivables of RMB6,754,000, construction
contracts of RMB30,759,000, and bank deposits of
RMB318,580,000.
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#4,698,0007T M AN B B T 12
F & A R #154,030,0007T #9 iF
ITERIEER -

B £2012%F12A31H A& H
METHEENBERFERA
R 5,063,0007T 8 7~ & B & T
EF . AR#¥S8,592,0005T 78
T ERIE - AK®6,754,000
THESERFE AR
30,759,000 EEERI R AR
#:318,580,0007T ) 3R 17 17 3K 1E
AR o

Annual Report 2013
2013FFH

o7



58

There had been no material defaults in payment of our
bank borrowings and breaches of the finance covenants

during the year ended December 31, 2013.

The maturity profile of our interest-bearing borrowings as

at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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R E2013F128318 It F &
BMEEERTEEFAMES
REHNBER TEERSEERMEA
ZARIER

A2013F K2012FE12A318 » #
st B EERHEMT ¢

As at December 31,

A12A831H
2013 2012
20134 20124
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EET) (ANEEHZET)

Within 1 year or on demand
After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years
After 5 years

Total

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. Gearing ratio is derived by dividing total borrowings
by total assets multiplied by 100%. In 2013, the Group’s
gearing ratio was 1.0%, which is similar to 0.8% in 2012.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

We were involved in a number of legal proceedings
and claims against either our Company or a subsidiary
of our Company in the ordinary course of business.
While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or
other proceedings cannot be determined at present,
the Directors believe that any resulting liabilities will not
have a material adverse impact on the financial position,
liquidity, or operating results of the Group. For some
export-import agency services, we issued irrevocable
letters of guarantee through certain banks to buyers for
the benefit of sellers, which guarantee the repayment of
advances paid by the buyer, plus interest if applicable,
if and when the total or part of the advances becomes
repayable to the buyer from the seller in accordance with
the relevant contracts. These guarantees are typically
issued to provide security to the buyer in paying an
advance to a seller before the actual goods are received,
and we do not receive separate consideration for issuing
such guarantees. In order for us to issue these letters
of guarantee, we require the sellers to provide us with
security interests on their assets or guarantees from
third parties that must be sufficient to cover the total
outstanding amount under the respective letters of
guarantee issued. As at December 31, 2013, the total
outstanding amount under these letters of guarantee
issued was RMB179.9 million (2012: RMB662.0 million),
which are secured by the sellers’ assets or guaranteed
by certain banks on behalf of the sellers.
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VI. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

We are exposed to various types of market risks, including
currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
competition risk and counterparty risk in the normal course
of our business. Our management monitors our exposure to
these risks to ensure appropriate measures are in place and
are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

CURRENCY RISK

We are exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases and our International Engineering
Contracting Business overseas and overseas financing
which give rise to receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency of our operations, RMB, to
which these transactions relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily US dollars, Euros and Hong
Kong dollars. We entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to lock in the value in RMB of some of our
future cash receipts, primarily in respect of the proceeds
of our international engineering contracting projects in
order to reduce our currency risk and to obtain certainty
of forecasted income generated from the deferred
payments to be received from the project owners under
such projects. As a state-owned enterprise, we abide
by relevant PRC laws and regulations concerning the
use of derivative financial instruments, mainly the Notice
on Further Strengthening the Supervision of Financial
Derivatives Transactions of Centrally Administered State-
owned Enterprises (B — 2 I8P R ESBITEER
ELE M3 4N) issued by SASAC on February 3, 2009, which
regulates derivatives transactions of the state-owned
enterprise. Also, as a matter of policy and in compliance
with the PRC laws and regulations, we are not allowed
to widely engage in hedging activities. Hence, our foreign
currency hedging activities were limited to these foreign
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currency forward contracts. Our foreign currency forward
contracts corresponded to our business volume, i.e. the
amounts and the terms of such contracts corresponded
to the amounts of the foreign currency expected to be
received. Under these contracts, we agree to buy RMB
from and sell foreign currencies to the counter-party
in a given quantity at a pre-determined exchange rate
at a maturity date in the future. As at December 31,
2013, we had 288 foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding (2012: 126). We entered into more foreign
currency forward contracts in smaller amounts in 2012
to better accommodate our business needs and to better
manage our cash flow in light of the forecasted high
volatility of exchange rates. We recognize the foreign
currency forward contracts initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period, the fair value is re-measured
and the difference is recognized immediately as profit
or loss. The net fair values of our foreign currency
forward contracts were recognized as derivative financial
instruments recorded in “trade and other receivables” and
“trade and other payables”. As at December 31, 2013,
the net fair value assets of our foreign currency forward
contracts were RMB142.3 million, representing gross fair
value assets and liabilities of such contracts of RMB142.3
million and nil, respectively, which represent our exposure
under the foreign currency forward contracts estimated
as at December 31, 2013. We maintain and follow our
internal policies and controls for managing our Group’s
use of derivative financial instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Our interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings.
Borrowings bearing interests at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose us to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk, respectively. We regularly
review and monitor the mix of our fixed and variable rate
borrowings, either through managing the contractual
terms of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities
or through the use of interest rate swaps in order to
manage our interest rate risks. Like our currency risk
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hedging activities, our use of interest rate swaps is
also subject to our internal control policy of derivative
financial instruments. We utilized one interest rate swap
arrangement to hedge interest rate risk against a US$50.0
million LIBOR-based variable rate bank loan which will
expire in January 2016. Under the interest rate swap
arrangement, which became effective on March 20, 2009
and expires on January 31, 2016, we pay interest at a
fixed interest rate of 6.28% per annum to the swapping
bank on the principal amount of US$50.0 million, who in
exchange pays us interests at a LIBOR-based interest
rate on the same principal amount, which are used to
satisfy our LIBOR-based interest rate payments under
the original bank loan. The LIBOR-based interest rate
under the interest rate swap arrangement is determined
by the 6-month LIBOR rate plus 2.0% per annum. As
at December 31, 2013, the remaining balance of the
loan is US$23.4 million. We recognize the interest rate
swap initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is re-measured and the difference
is recognized immediately as profit or loss. The net fair
values of our interest rate swap contract were recognized
as derivative financial instruments recorded in “trade and
other payables”. As at December 31, 2013, the net and
gross fair value liabilities of our interest rate swap contract
were RMBG6.3 million, which represent our exposure
under the interest rate swap estimated as at December
31, 2013.

CREDIT RISK

Our credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. We have a credit policy in place and
our exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit terms extended to our customers
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are determined on a case-by-case basis, depending on
credit assessment carried out by our management. Our
credit terms granted to customers of our Trading Business
are normally about three to six months. With respect to
our International Engineering Contracting Business, credit
terms granted are negotiated individually on a case-by-
case basis and are set forth in the relevant engineering
contracting contracts. Some of our international
engineering contracting projects were financed by export
seller’s credit, which was a type of financing arrangement
whereby we as contractor provided funding to a project
principally with loans or credit facilities provided by
financial institutions and, to a lesser extent, with our
Company’s own financial resources, such that the project
owner would make payments to us for the funding on a
deferred basis. We conduct monthly reviews of our credit
risk as an internal control measure, and we also conduct
end-of-term period reviews to determine if we need to
make any necessary provisions for credit that we have
extended. As to credit risk for trade and other receivables,
we first evaluate the customer’s credit status and its
ability to guarantee the payment through establishing an
appropriate business evaluation system. Meanwhile, in
order to establish our risk control mechanism on trade
and other receivables, we implemented the policy to buy
export credit insurance. For the Trading Business, we
and our trading subsidiaries are required to buy unified
export credit insurance from Sinosure; for the International
Engineering Contracting Business financed by export
seller’s credit, we typically buy export credit insurance
from Sinosure for our projects in order to meet financing
needs as well as to control credit risk for trade and other
receivables. Our concentration of credit risk stems from
trade and other receivables due from certain individual
customers. As at December 31, 2013, 9.3% of the total
trade and other receivables was due from our largest
customer (2012: 9.6%), and 26.0% of the total trade and
other receivables was due from the five largest customers
(2012: 24.6%).
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that we have net current liabilities
at the balance sheet date. We are exposed to liquidity
risk if we are unable to raise sufficient funds to meet
our financial obligations when they fall due. To manage
liquidity risk, we prepare both annual and quarterly
financial budgets which include budgeting for capital
and utilization of credit facilities to plan and consolidate
various financial resources in meeting the needs of our
business, operations and development. Furthermore, we
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered adequate by our management to finance our
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flow. As at December 31, 2012 and 2013, our net current
assets amounted to RMB3,665.5 million and RMB6,113.9
million, respectively.

COMPETITION RISK

In terms of our International Engineering Contracting
Business, we compete with both domestic and foreign
contractors for International Engineering Contracting
Business. Competition largely focuses on price, design,
variety of the services provided, service quality, financial
solutions, business models and environmental standards.
As with other Chinese contractors that are engaged in the
International Engineering Contracting Business, we face
competition from engineering contractors with leading
technology from the developed countries such as the
U.S., Japan and various European countries as the latter
have relatively large competitive advantages in global
branch networks, information collection, management
and construction capabilities, adaptability and brand
name recognition, among other areas. Nevertheless, we
will continue to leverage on our competitive advantage

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

in pricing, especially in the developing countries, due to
lower labor cost and price of the equipment. We will also
continue to leverage on the cooperation between the PRC
government and foreign governments (especially those of
the developing countries) to compete with both domestic
and foreign contractors.

In terms of our Trading Business, we compete with both
Chinese and foreign companies for international trading
business. Competition with Chinese companies engaged
in the international trading business focuses on price,
range of products, suppliers and purchasers, whereas
competition with foreign companies focuses on the price
and quality of products manufactured by Chinese and
foreign suppliers.

Although competition in the international trading market
is intense, given that this market is considerably large,
we will continue to compete with the Chinese and foreign
companies by capitalizing on our financing capabilities
and value-adding services. We will continue to provide
financing solutions tailored to the needs of the customers
of our trading business. We will also continue to cooperate
with our suppliers in providing after-sales services and
carrying out on-site maintenance services. With more
than 30 years of operating history in the international
trading business, we believe we have an edge over our
PRC competitors within the industry in terms of our
extensive sales and marketing networks, long established
experiences in the international trading market, well-
trained commercial capabilities, strong capabilities in
providing financing solutions and good reputation.
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BERENWR D

6.

OTHER BUSINESS RISKS

Investment risks: The investment risks mainly
represent deviation between actual investment
revenue and the anticipated revenue caused by
factors out of control or contingent factors. In
addition, it also includes relevant advance payments
for projects, decrease of investment in infrastructural
projects by non-governmental investment institutions
resulting from changes in policies, and significant
outlay of working capital over extended periods.

Risks of project management: The construction and
infrastructure industry is a high-risk industry in itself.
Coupled with the rapid growth in the business scale
of the Company in recent years, and the gradually
widened span of operation, project management
becomes more and more difficult. As such, there
is a severe challenge to the safety and quality
management for the projects, which could result in
management risks.

Operational risks: For the International Engineering
Contracting Business, the bidding prices of
construction contracting projects are affected largely
by market competition. Meanwhile, there are also
certain operation risks for the Group to control the
cost and to engage subcontractors.

Market risks: Various expectations from the
government could have adverse impact on the
Group’s business, such as expectation on growth
level of both national and regional economic, usage
of infrastructure and expectation on future expansion
of demand and expectation on the overall growth
level of related industries. In addition, the instability
of political and economic environment of overseas
market, could bring uncertainties to the Group’s
overseas market development, which may affect the
normal implementation of projects.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

VII. PROSPECTS

In 2014, the primary guiding principle of the Company’s
operation will be consolidating management foundation,
enhancing management level, achieving stable growth of
businesses and solidly driving forward transformation
and upgrading of businesses under the leadership of the
Company’s Board with new strategic plans being the blueprint,
so as to stride towards the new strategic goals.

A. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

1. Enhancing the International Engineering
Contracting Business

(a) Achieving the regionalization of localized
operation and the professionalization of project
management

The Company will establish overseas branches in line
with regional characteristics, formulate and finalize the
localized operation strategies as well as exploring the
setting up of the CMEC’s overseas staff management
system, so as to deepen the localization of projects
by means of recruiting overseas staff. On the basis
of the accountability system of project managers,
the Company will promote the professionalization of
project management in an austere manner, establish
the supervising system on project performance and
put emphasis on the progress, quality and safety
of projects. The Company will adjust the strategies
in a timely manner and increase the capability of
dealing with emergency events in accordance with
the change in political and economic environment
where the projects are located. The Company
will also establish the inspection system on core
projects, strengthen the review and examination of
core projects and projects with higher execution
difficulties and promote the signing and coming into
effect of projects.
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(b) Further innovating project financing method

The Company will actively utilize new credit
mechanisms (such as special credit insurance) to
develop projects.

Developing trading and other service businesses
steadily

In 2014, the Company will continue its reorganization
of the trading sector in order to ensure that each team
is able to fully leverage the integrated and industrialized
edges after the reorganization as well as improving the
business flow and management system, so as to ensure
the fulfillment of operational goals. The Company will
integrate its own business characteristics and clarify
the market positioning of its core businesses and core
products. The Company will also build the core brand
and seize the opportunities brought by urbanization in
China to actively expand the domestic market, while at
the same time effectively promoting business in primary
regions and primary projects as well as emphasizing
on the environmental-friendly and new energy projects.
The Company will also accelerate the transformation of
services and businesses and pursue the development of
domestic and overseas markets at the same time.

Establishing the foundation of investment and
financing business

The Company will commence the exploration of
investment business with strict adherence to the
principle of “investment driven EPC” and integrate with
the regionalized strategy of the International Engineering
Contracting Business, with a view to investing in line
with regional characteristics. The Company will focus
on various domestic and overseas power projects
and endeavor to achieve breakthroughs in investment
business. In the domestic market, the Company will fully
utilize its own advantages, with China Machinery R&D and
CNCEC servicing as platforms, to focus on the municipal
environmental protection projects.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OTHER STRATEGIC POLICIES

Enhancing internal synergies and encouraging
business development

The Company will enhance the synergy between the
International Engineering Contracting Business, Trading
Business and the business of investment and financing,
as well as the collaboration of each subordinate branch
around the world. The Company will also further
strengthen the sharing of overseas platforms of the
International Engineering Contracting Business and the
Trading Business, in particular, to utilize the overseas
branches established in the developing countries for the
International Engineering Contracting Business to seek
opportunities for the Trading Business, as well as to
utilize the overseas branches established in the developed
countries for the Trading Business to effectively promote
the collaboration with the engineering contractors and
investors in the developed countries.

Improving the incentive and training systems of
talents

The Company will further improve the performance
assessment mechanism and remuneration and award
system, as well as consulting and studying the related
policies of equity incentive policy adopted by listed
companies. The Company will also improve the three-
level talent training system conducted overseas, by
domestic institutions and within the Company, to engage
professionals of core competitive sectors through various
channels.

BERENWR D
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BERENWR D

3.

Enhancing fundamental management of the

Company

(1)

@)

3)

Enhancing financial and audit management

The Company will enhance the overall management of
budgets, intensify the efforts of mitigation and control
of financial risks and reinforce the management of
receivables and significant events financial reports,
to improve the taxation management system of the
Company and augment the research and planning of
overseas taxation. The Company will also extend the
scope of audit and conduct specified audits on the
progress of the Company’s particular infrastructure
projects in accordance with the divisions.

Enhancing management of safe production

The Company will further improve the establishment
of the safe production management system by means
of enhancing the awareness of the responsibility of
safe production, preventing overseas emergency
events and putting the focus on the supervision and
inspection of projects located in high-risk regions in
order to ensure the stability of the Company’s safe
production.

Enhancing the supportive legal system

In order to materialize the control of the entire risk
management process, the Company will continue to
increase the level of compliance of its management
and gradually foster the capability of legal services
and protection of investment and mergers and
acquisitions. The Company will continue to focus
on the progress of significant legal and arbitral
proceedings in order to achieve the most favorable
outcome.
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Representative Newly Effective Projects and Newly Signed Projects

ERRMENEREE NHNRNERE

In 2013, the values of the newly signed and newly effective
contracts of the International Engineering Contracting Business
achieved ideal results and accomplished the operational goals set
at the beginning of the year.

The following chart shows some representative examples of the
newly effective and newly signed contracts:

20134 » BIBR Ti2AB R RO R 24 M HT
EREREBESIRGEAEKE - WEDF
RTEEEBIR -

TERAFABRNTEOEAHBHREM
bIF -

Expected

Contract Construction
Value Period
ER&HE Effective EHIH

Newly Effective Contract (US$ million) Date (Month)  Sector

HEXRER (BEZ%T) EHAH (A) 1%

CONSTRUCTION OF EXTENSION OF 429.77 Nov-13 43  Transportation
SOUTHERN EXPRESSWAY FROM 20134 11A RBER
MATARA TO HAMBANTOTA
(SECTION 2 FROM BELIATTA TO
WETIYA) IN SRI LANKA

HEHREHERARE (Matara®
Hambantota) JER&H 5 1S
(BeliattaZWetiyaf) EEH &

INSTALLATION OF NEXT - GENERATION 182.79 Nov-13 33  Telecommunications
- NETWORK BASED 2013%F11 A ErEA
TELECOMMUNICATION NETWORK
FOR DIGITAL BANGLADESH IN
BANGLADESH

RN B — KBRS IER

KAR GROUP 6,000 TONES PER DAY 236.05 Oct-13 24 Non-Core
CEMENT PLANT PROJECT IN 2013104 FROITE
QARAC HOG, IRAQ

fFh e R HE6,000ME 7Rk B B

RECONSTRUCTING AND UPGRADING 170.91 Oct-13 36  Transportation
KISENEPOI TO KAUGEL RIVER 2013%F10H RipiEY

SECTION OF HIGHLANDS HIGHWAY

IN THE INDEPENDENT STATE OF

PAPUA NEW GUINEA
EREHENTRHAE

Kisenepoi-Kaugel

River 4 i 18 B
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Representative Newly Effective Projects and Newly Signed Projects

ERRMENEREE NHNRYEE

Expected
Contract Construction
Value Period
ERSHE Effective EHITH
Newly Effective Contract (US$ million) Date (Month)  Sector
HERER (B&Z%T) £%AH (A) 1%
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT OF 308.02 Sep-13 30  Non-Core
THE UNIVERSITY TOWN IN MALABO, 201394 FEZITE
EQUATORIAL GUINEA
FRBENTSNBASBHERIAE
CONTRACT OF THE YANKARI POWER 201.00 Jul-13 33 Power
PLANT IN BAUCHI STATE, NIGERIA 201374 EHEER
fE BT 8 & MYANKARIE 1578 B
CONTRACT OF THE SAPELE POWER 420.50 Jul-13 31 Power
PLANT IN NIGERIA 2013%F7A EWIE
fE BFIIESAPELEE 1578 B
DEVELOPMENT AND REHABILITATION 144.43 Jun-13 36  Non-Core
OF MUNICIPAL WATER AND SEWAGE 201346 A FEZOITE
TREATMENT WORKS PROJECT
IN ZIMBABWE
EERERTHKR
KRR RFREEE
PHASE Il PROJECT OF BANGLADESH 138.00 May-13 14 Telecommunications
NATIONAL BROADBAND 201345 A EFEA
INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
ANMNBERREFERE - HEA
THE HEAT ONLY BOILER PLANT AND 75.90 Apr-13 18 Power
ITS ANCILLARY FACILITIES PROJECT 201344 A BHEER

IN AMGALAN DISTRICT,
ULAANBAATAR, MONGOLIA
RO SHERMMAS AtRRZR

fH2RA e HL I Rk 8 B
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Representative Newly Effective Projects and Newly Signed Projects

ERRMENEREE NHNRNERE

Expected
Contract Construction
Value Period
éﬁﬁ%ﬁ Date of ﬁgﬂ I,Hﬁ
Newly Signed Contract (US$ million) Contract (Month)  Sector
HEHNERE (BEZ*r) FHEH (A) 7%
PHASE Il OF THE KOSTO LAC B-POWER 715.60 Nov-13 58  Power
PLANT IN THE REPUBLIC OF SERBIA 2013411 A EWIED
SEF M on LR B RHEATERRB
—HIEUAIERE
UPGRADING OF MOI TEACHING AND 291.59 Nov-13 36  Non-Core
REFERRAL HOSPITAL IN KENYA 2013411 A FEZITE
BRETRFHEREDBRERIER
POWER GRID CONSTRUCTION AND 126.85 Oct-13 21 Power
EXPANSION PROJECTS in SIX 20134107 EWED
CITIES IN CONTINENTAL REGION
OF EQUATORIAL GUINEA
TR I8 HE P T8 A B [ T i A
7N T B 49 TE B
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 265.78 Oct-13 30 Non-Core
AMERICAN UNIVERSITY OF MADABA 2013F10A IERZITE
PHASE IV PROJECT IN JORDAN
WEFEDEEAS (M) BRIEE
THE HIGHWAY POWER SUPPLY 199.04 Oct-13 24 Power
PROJECT IN CONTINENTAL REGION 20134107 EWED
OF EQUATORIAL GUINEA
TBENTDAEE S REEEEE
MASTER CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 229.50 May-13 36  Non-Core
FOR GAMPAHA, ATTANAGALLA & 2013F5A FERRITE
MINUWANGODA INTEGRATED WATER
SUPPLY SCHEME IN SRI LANKA
Hr BRI R I EE 4R KRR IE B
BERGEEBER
CONSTRUCTION OF 33 PRIMARY 215.37 Apr-13 24 Non-Core
HEALTH CARE CENTERS (PHCCS) 2013%F4 A FERRDITE

IN THE UPPER NILE REGION OF
THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH SUDAN

ME S LR RIS AR AR
b REE R
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Major Events in 2013
2013FEABIH

February — A

On February 18, we received the “Certificate of Final Acceptance” of the
Naypyidaw international airport project in Burma from the project owner.
This project was the first airport project undertaken by CMEC.

2R18H F fiAALL BEABEISEB W X FHEH [HRRBIGE
ZIA B RCMECHEEMNSE —E#IZIEE -

During April 25 to April 27, Chairman SUN Bai and President ZHANG Chun met with the Prime Minister
Azarov, Deputy Prime Minister Arbuzov and other senior officials of the Ukrainian government and signed
cooperation documents of the relevant projects.

4F25HE4H27TH  FIHESRER  REFLEARFESREAEMNALERX - BIAEMBMEREBNSEI K
FHREEBEAEX -

May & A

On May 16, the opening ceremony of the M67 highway upgrading project
in Namibia was held with the presence of the President of Namibia,
Pohamba.

5A168 * #KLE EME7SE A ABRBENFA TEABERTT KL D
BEELO LRI EE AR -
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Major Events in 2013
2013F EXREH

On May 22, Premier LI Kegiang, during his state visit in Pakistan, witnessed the signing of the loan agreement
for CMEC’s NJ project in Pakistan together with the Prime Minister of Pakistan. The successful signing of this
loan agreement between the Export-Import Bank of China and the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Pakistan
will secure the funding for the NJ project in Pakistan.

5A22R  EF @A EHERAIMAETEEHMEE - CMECEREATANJER ERHHAETERE LN R
AT mPEELORTEDEAEEEEFARINELD - ZERBHENKIDE LKA BIRE D EHENIA
BHESFKX

June ~AH

In the morning of June 20, President ZHANG Chun met with TRUONG Tan Sang, the President of Vietnam,
and his delegation. Talks were held in a cordial and friendly manner between the two sides.

6A20R b RFAHEFEUBMBEREFREA 17T BHETTRIRTFHORK -

On June 26, SINOMACH entrusted CMEC to manage 100% equity interests held in its subsidiaries, namely
CNEEC and CNCEC.

6A26H @ I BPET - PREMKEFR100%NBEZRFECMECLL IR F R AI#ETTEIE

On June 27, the Department of State of the U.S. Government published public notice no. 8361 in the Federal
Register in relation to a determination to lift the Chemical and Biological Weapons Proliferation Sanctions imposed
against the Company and CMEC Machinery & Electric as well as their respective subsidiaries and successors
on July 9, 2002.

6A27H - EREBUFEBAE (4L E) EAREMESSC1RBE - NEBMERTEHKRN2002F7 A9B K
HAYRSHEEHARAMPRBERES BB R AMET DR EREAHIE
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Major Events in 2013
2013F BEAREIE

On July 11, CMEC entered into a memorandum of understanding for strategic cooperation with GE.

7A11H » CMECEIGEER ZEE I A /EHE %

In the morning of July 11, under the witness of Mr. Jonathan, the President of Nigeria and Chairman SUN Bai
signed a general contract for Yankari power plant project with the Governor of Bauchi in Nigeria.

TAMBLEF  ERBANGSEREAREENIET - EFRFME B FEBauchi M KEEZE T YankariE 4
HBEAR -

On July 25, CMEC Expo, a subsidiary of CMEC, was honoured “Excellent

$ A E P Organizer for Overseas Economic and Trade Exhibitions” from 2011 to
BACMBALAL AL 2012.
LT ST PR LT L TR PR
o i 7H258 - CMECH B A Rl FA & 5w B B 7 A2011-2012F E [2E H
--_@;“ CEREEFAREN] -

In July, CMEC received AA credit rating from China Development Bank, upgrading to be the bank’s premium
client.

7Rt - CMECEBERMERTHA TAAMEATA - HTRAZITHEERS -
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Major Events in 2013
2013F EXREH

August \ B

On August 2, CMEC won the honorary title of 2013 National Advance Organization in the “Safety Production
Month” activities.

8H2H  CMECH A [ X2 AER | 2013F 2 BB H L B -

On August 27, President ZHANG Chun met with the President of Serbia, Nikoli¢ during his visiting in China.
8H27TH  RIFEFFE T RESFHANERETRLTERANT -

In August, the Company announced the “CMEC Strategic Development Plan for the Next Five Years” (CMECH
R A B TR B R AR &),

8H - RAEEMT [CMECRKR A FEHREUMMARE ] -

September 1A

On September 17, CMEC Brand Showcase was successfully held in Istanbul, Turkey.
9H17H - CMECH R + FEFATRM MK I3 -

On September 25, Chairman SUN Bai and President ZHANG Chun met with Florencio Randazzo and his
delegation, the Minister of Ministry of Interior and Ministry of Transport of Argentina. Both parties expressed
opinions on the implementation of Belgrano freight railway renovation project undertaken by CMEC in
Argentina and signed a supplemental agreement for this project.

9H25H  FHEZRNMRZAHGR TMREANBMBNBRAZMAR « MER—1T » EHMCMECHE
PIREFAEM E MR EEHEEEENTRRTER UHZBEERE THRHE -
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Major Events in 2013
2013F BEAREIE

October T+ H

From October 5 to October 9, President ZHANG Chun led a delegation to visit Serbia and met with
President Nikoli¢ and First Deputy Prime Minister Vucic of Serbia.

10ASEE10A9R  RFAHTEFHNERE U FSERETARENNTMEBELS —2@ER AT -

On October 18, Chairman SUN Bai met with Mizengo Pinda, the Prime Minister of Tanzania.

108188 ' BMEERFG THRXBTRIPREK o Fix -

On October 19, the completion ceremony of the Omotosho 500MW single-cycle power plant project
in Ondo State, Nigeria undertaken by CMEC was held. The President of Nigeria cut the ribbon at the
ceremony..

10H19H » CMECHEAZEKE B M S Z INEE FEIRS00MWEE fEIR A B WL TE B BT LEHE - EHR 4%
IS FRILR -
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Major Events in 2013
2013FEAXBIH

November +—H

On November 11, Chairman SUN Bai and President ZHANG Chun met
with the Chairman of the Commonwealth Business Council and signed a
memorandum of undertaking for strategic cooperation.

1MANE  BHESRNKREFEHGRABABNNEMEZRMEES
FIE - WERE T B S VER R E R o

18

On November 11, Chairman SUN Bai and President ZHANG Chun met with Sri Lanka’s President, Mahinda
Rajapaksa.

1MTANE  FRESR  RFEIFSHNERFEGTNE « NERRERT -

2013 mlIII!EE FHEE
China Engineering & Technolog

During November 13 to 17, the 12th “China Engineering and Technology Expo” was successfully held in the
Battaramulla Art Centre, Colombo, the capital city of Sri Lanka. Sri Lanka’s President Rajapaksa and the first
lady attended the opening ceremony of the exhibition and cut the ribbon with Chinese Ambassador to Sri
Lank and our Chairman SUN Bai.

11AIBEE17R, F12E [PEIRERMERES | £ 2H R EHBM GRS RBN BN OERET - T2
M REREERALETETIREMERESES  YEPEHEHEHRAENFZAEETRARAR -
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Major Events in 2013
2013F BEAREIE

On November 14, Chairman SUN Bai met with Tanzanian President,
Jakaya Mrisho Kikwete.

11A14E  FRESRFSERETHRE R« BER e 2R -

On November 14, President ZHANG Chun participated in the business
roundtable of the Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting chaired
by the President of Sri Lanka, Mahinda Rajapaksa.

11A148  RIFRESNTHRHEERERFTME  NERRETHN
ARFEMEZZAEWEBERSH

On December 5, President ZHANG Chun met with Ms. Christina
Fernandez de Kirchner, the President of Argentina.

12A6R  REEZFENBREIARRENEH - EREE - BEMRA
Mt o

On December 19, the groundbreaking ceremony for CMEC’s Guangdong-HK Investment and Financing
Center was grandly held. Chairman SUN Bai, President ZHANG Chun and CFO ZHOU Yamin attended the
ceremony.

12H19H - CMECEERBMET OAEEEFEARERT - FHEFEK - RFRH  FAERMBEELFET
& o

On December 21, CMEC held a seminar for the first anniversary of the Listing at Shangri-La, Hong Kong.
CMEC'’s leaders have in-depth discussion and communication with the investors and analysts of the capital
market.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared
in accordance with IFRS for the year ended December 31, 2013.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on January 18, 2011
as a joint stock company with limited liability under the Companies
Law. The Company’s H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a leading international engineering contracting
and services provider with a primary focus on EPC projects and
particular expertise in the power sector, capable of providing
one-stop customized and integrated engineering contracting
solutions and services. The Company also conducts the Trading
Business and Other Businesses.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The audited results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 166 to 167 of this annual report. The financial
position of the Group and the Company as at December 31, 2013
are set out in the consolidated balance sheet on pages 168 to
169 and the balance sheet on pages 170 to 171 of this annual
report, respectively. The cash flows of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2013 is set out in the consolidated cash flow
statement on pages 173 to 175 of this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year and the key factors affecting its results and financial position
are set out in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of
RMBO0.19 per Share (pre-tax) for 4,125,700,000 Shares for
year ended December 31, 2013, representing a total amount of
RMB783,883,000 (pre-tax).

According to the Articles of Association, dividends will be
denominated and declared in Renminbi. Dividends on Domestic
Shares will be paid in Renminbi and dividends on H Shares will be
paid in Hong Kong dollars.

The proposed final dividend is subject to Shareholders’ approval
at the upcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”).
The Company will issue a separate announcement regarding the
date of the upcoming AGM, the record date for the payment of H
Share dividends and the dates of closure of register of members
of the Company.

In accordance with tax law and relevant requirements under taxation
regulatory institutions of the PRC, the Company is required to
withhold 10% enterprise income tax when it distributes the final
dividend for the year ended December 31, 2013 to all non-resident
enterprise shareholders (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other
nominees, trustees or other entities and organizations, who will be
deemed as non-resident enterprise shareholders) whose names
appear on the H share register of members of the Company on
July 9, 2014.

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ( { R ZE A R ANE
A AFTEELE) ), the Implementation Regulations of the Individual
Income Tax Law ( {HFZE AR KEFBEEAMSESEEEIED) ), the
Tentative Measures on Withholding and Payment of Individual Income
Tax ( (EAFTERAIIREBETYEE) ) and other relevant laws
and regulations and based on the Company’s consultation with the
relevant PRC tax authorities, the Company is required to withhold
and pay 20% individual income tax for the Company’s individual H
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of H
shares of the Company (the “Individual H Shareholders”). Pursuant
to the Notice on Matters concerning the Levy and Administration of
Individual Income Tax after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No.
045( (BARA B 3([1993]0455% X 14 & - 18 B B E A PR IS BRAL B I 78
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KIIBAT) ) issued by the State Administration of Tax of the PRC and
the letter titled “Tax arrangements on dividends paid to Hong Kong
residents by Mainland companies” issued by the Stock Exchange,
the overseas resident individual shareholders of the shares issued
by domestic non-foreign invested enterprises in Hong Kong are
entitled to the relevant preferential tax treatment pursuant to the
provisions in the tax arrangements between the countries where they
reside and China and the tax arrangements between China mainland
and Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will identify the country of
domicile of the Individual H Shareholders according to their registered
address on the H share register of members of the Company on
July 9, 2014 (the “Registered Address”). The Company assumes
no responsibility and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation
to the tax status or tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders
and for any claims arising from or in connection with any delay in
or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment of
the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:

e  For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau
residents or those whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating
a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the
Individual H Shareholders.

o For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is
a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of
10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If relevant
Individual H Shareholders would like to apply for a refund of
the additional amount of tax withheld and paid, the Company
can assist the relevant shareholder to handle the application
for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to the tax
treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder shall submit to
the Company the information required under the “Notice of the
State Administration of Taxation in relation to the Administrative
Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-residents
under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124)
(KERBHERBANDNE<HEREIBUBEFEEEM
& (R17)>mEa) (RF3[2009]1245%)) (the “Tax Treaties
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Notice”) on or before July 2, 2014. Upon examination and
approval by competent tax authorities, the Company will assist
in refunding the additional amount of tax withheld and paid.

e  For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is
a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less than
20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax
treaty.

° For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is
a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has
not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any
other circumstances, the Company will finally withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of the
Individual H Shareholders.

If the domicile of an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the
Registered Address or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to
apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally withheld
and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify and provide
relevant supporting documents to the Company on or before July
2, 2014. Upon examination of the supporting documents by the
relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance
given by the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding
provisions and arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may either
personally or appoint a representative to attend to the procedures
in accordance with the requirements under the Tax Treaties Notices
if they do not provide the relevant supporting documents to the
Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers
regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising
from or in connection with their holding and disposal of the H
Shares of the Company.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER

In order to confirm the identity of shareholders who qualify for
attending the forthcoming AGM to be held on June 26, 2014, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from May 27,
2014 to June 26, 2014 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant H share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s H shares registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Room
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on May 26, 2014.

In order to confirm the identity of shareholders who qualify for
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will also
be closed from July 4, 2014 to July 9, 2014 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. All
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant H share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s H shares
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on July 3, 2014.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out in the section “Financial Highlights” of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 11.0 % (2012: 13.8%) of the Group’s total
purchases. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for 3.2% (2012:
4.2%) of the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group’s sales to its
five largest customers accounted for 30.0 % (2012: 28.0%) of
the Group’s total sales. The Group’s sales to its largest customer
accounted for 9.7% (2012: 8.7%) of the Group’s total sales.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended December 31,
2013 are set out in note 14 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial
statements, and details of movements in the reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB3,468.8 million
(as at December 31, 2012: 2,377.5 million).

BANK LOAN AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at December 31, 2013 are set out in note 25 to
the audited consolidated financial statements.
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BOARD

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2013 and up

to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. YANG Wansheng (Chairman) (appointed on January 13, 2011
and retired on April 19, 2013)

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman) (appointed on April 19, 2013
and re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Ms. LI Taifang (Vice Chairperson) (appointed on July 29, 2011
and appointment ceased effective on February 20, 2014)

Mr. ZHANG Chun (President) (appointed on March 16, 2012
and re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointed on January 13, 2011
and appointment ceased effective on February 20, 2014)
Mr. WANG Zhian (appointed on January 13, 2011
and re-appointed on February 20, 2014)
Mr.YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014)
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014)

INEDs:

Mr. LIU Li (appointed on January 13, 2011 and
re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Ms. LIU Hongyu (appointed on January 13, 2011 and
re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Mr. FANG Yongzhong (appointed on July 29, 2011 and
re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip (appointed on December 30, 2011 and
appointment ceased effective on February 20, 2014)

Mr. WU Tak Lung (appointed on February 20, 2014)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out in the section “Directors, Supervisors,
Senior Management and Employees” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the INEDs
and the Company considers such Directors to be independent for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

SERVICE CONTACT AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of the executive Directors (save for Mr. SUN Bai) and
non-executive Directors for the first session of the Board has entered
into a service agreement with the Company on November 10, 2012
for a term commencing from the date of the general meeting in
which the respective executive Directors or non-executive Directors
were appointed, until the end of the term of the first session of the
Board and may be terminated in accordance with the respective
terms of the service agreements.

Mr. SUN Bai has entered into a service agreement with the
Company on April 19, 2013 for a term commencing from the date
of the general meeting in which he was appointed as executive
Director, until the end of the term of the first session of the Board
and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement.

Each of the INEDs for the first session of the Board has signed a
letter of appointment on November 10, 2012 for a term commencing
from the date of the general meeting in which the respective INEDs
were appointed until the end of the term of the first session of the
Board.
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The term for the first session of the Board and Supervisory Board
commenced from January 13, 2011 and ended on February 20,
2014 when the second session of the Board was elected by the
shareholders and the re-appointments of the Supervisors for the
second session of the Supervisory Board became effective.

As approved at the extraordinary general meeting on February 20,
2014, Ms. LI Taifang, Mr. PAN Chongyi and Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip
have ceased to be Directors due to expiration of their service term.
Their term of office ended upon the conclusion of the extraordinary
general meeting. Meanwhile, as approved at the same extraordinary
general meeting, (i) Mr. SUN Bai and Mr. ZHANG Chun have been
re-appointed as executive Directors of the second session of the
Board, (i) Mr. WANG Zhian has been re-appointed and Mr. YU Benli
and Mr. ZHANG Fusheng have been appointed as non-executive
Directors of the second session of the Board, (i) Mr. LIU Li, Ms. LIU
Hongyu and Mr. FANG Yongzhong have been re-appointed and Mr.
WU Tak Lung has been appointed as INEDs of the second session
of the Board, whose term of service commenced on February
20, 2014 until the expiration of the term of second session of the
Board; and (iv) Mr. QUAN Huagiang and Mr. QIAN Xiangdong have
been re-appointed as shareholder representative Supervisors for the
second session of the Supervisory Board. Mr. BAI Ming has been
re-appointed as the staff representative Supervisor for the second
session of the Supervisory Board on January 24, 2014 and he
together with Mr. QUAN Huagiang and Mr. QIAN Xiangdong formed
the second session of the Supervisory Board. Their term of service
commenced on February 20, 2014 until the expiration of the term
of second session of the Supervisory Board.

After their appointment, all members of the second session of the
Board have entered into service contracts and/or appointment
letters with the Company for a term of 3 years, commencing from
February 20, 2014 and ending on February 19, 2017 or on the date
when the third session of the Board is elected by the shareholders.
The Company shall have power to enter into service contracts and/
or appointment letters with the members of the second session of
the Supervisory Board.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, none of the Directors
or Supervisors had entered or proposed to enter into a service
contract with any member of the Group which will not expire or is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year
ended December 31, 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended December 31, 2013.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company does not adopt any pre- or post-IPO share award
scheme and share option scheme as incentive to eligible employees.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the audited consolidated
financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

On June 10, 2013, Ms. LIU Hongyu, the independent non-executive
Director, has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of Gome Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (Bl E 231 AR
2 7)) (stock code: 493).

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, there
were no other changes to the Director’s, Supervisor’s or senior
management’s information as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS, SHORT POSITIONS AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME OF THE DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2013, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
senior management of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no time during the
year ended December 31, 2013 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2013, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
particulars of the corporations or persons (other than a Director,
Supervisors or the chief executive of the Company) which had
5% or more interests and short positions in the Shares and the
underlying Shares as recorded in the register kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares

R E

Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Relevant

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in

Name of Class of Capacity/Nature Shares/Underlying  Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Shares of interest Shares Held (Note 1) (Note 1)
FHERT MEBROESR R0 AE
R HE BRESAEIL RESSEIL
RR A R 4338 5 LY $:1:3- ROEEE (Hizt1) (Hizt1)
(Share) (%) (%)
(&)
SINOMACH Domestic Interests of beneficial 3,217,430,000 100% 77.99%
Shares owner and controlled (Note 2)
corporation (Long position)
Bl WER BB ANERR (Hizt2) (418
R EEER
NSSF H Shares Interests of beneficial 89,972,000 9.91% 2.18%
owner (Long position)
HRESEES HE% EnlA A NER (F8)
Cheah Capital Management H Shares Interests of controlled 45,547,000 5.01% 1.1%
Limited corporation (Note 3)
(Long position)
PNEEAEERERAR HE& X EEES (Hiz3) (418
Cheah Company Limited H Shares Interests of controlled 45,547,000 5.01% 1.1%
corporation (Note 3)
(Long position)
NEERAF HE% Rir s (Hi#£3) (41 2)
Hang Seng Bank Trustee H Shares Trustee 45,547,000 5.01% 1.1%
International Limited (Note 3)
(Long position)
BARITERBRRERATF HE& XA (H7:23) (55 8)
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Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Relevant

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in

Name of Class of Capacity/Nature Shares/Underlying Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Shares of interest Shares Held (Note 1) (Note 1)
RERT (HEBROESR ERG AR
BB, HE RESAEIL RESAESK
RER A R 43 38 5 513 ERME RO HEE (Hiat1) (Hizt1)
(Share) (%) (%)
(&)
Value Partners Group Limited H Shares Interests of controlled 45,547,000 5.01% 1.1%
corporation (Note 3)
(Long position)
EREEEARAA HE% RiErEER (H7:23) (558
Cheah Cheng Hye H Shares Person who set up a 45,547,000 5.01% 1.1%
discretionary trust (Note 3)
(Long position)
#E 8 HE% FRETEIA (Hiz3) (418
To Hau Yin H Shares Interests of spouse 45,547,000 5.01% 1.1%
(Note 3)
(Long position)
HITE HE% o8 (Hiz3) (412
The People’s Insurance H Shares Interests of beneficial 71,759,000 7.90% 1.74%
Co. (Group) of China Ltd. owner (Long position)
FEARRBREERNERLR HR BB AER (F8)
China South Locomotive & H Shares Interests of controlled 71,759,000 7.90% 1.74%
Rolling Stock Corporation corporation (Note 4)
Limited (Long position)
PEEERAAR DA HE% RimrE s (Hizta) (412
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Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Relevant

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding in

Name of Class of Capacity/Nature Shares/Underlying Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Shares of interest Shares Held (Note 1) (Note 1)
FHERT (HEBROESR BB AE
BB, HE RESAEIL RESLNES K
RER A R 4338 5 51 ERtE RO HEE (Hizt1) (Hizt1)
(Share) (%) (%)
(&)
CSR (Hong Kong) Company H Shares Interests of beneficial 71,759,000 7.90% 1.74%
Limited owner (Note 4)
(Long position)
hEEE (F8) BRAA HE% BB AR (Hiita) (417)
CSR Group H Shares Interests of controlled 71,759,000 7.90% 1.74%
corporation (Note 4)
(Long position)
FEELELNA HE& REEEER (Hizt4) (337
Notes: Hat

M

This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of underlying
Shares/total Shares that had been issued by the Company as of
December 31, 2013.

SINOMACH was beneficially interested in 3,185,260,000 Domestic
Shares, representing approximately 77.21% of our total share capital.
China United was beneficially interested in 32,170,000 Domestic
Shares, representing approximately 0.78% of our total share capital.
Since China United is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SINOMACH,
SINOMACH s, therefore, deemed to be interested in the Domestic
Shares held by China United.

The following shares are referred to in notes above represent the same
block of shares in which all the relevant parties are deemed under the SFO
to be interested.
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(3) The 45,547,000 Shares as referred to in note 3 above.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited, as trustee of The C H
Cheah Family Trust, has 100% interest over Cheah Company Limited
which in turn has 100% interest over Cheah Capital Management
Limited. Cheah Capital Management Limited has 28.47% interest over
Value Partners Group Limited which in turn has 100% interest over
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited. Value Partners Hong Kong Limited
has 100% interest over Value Partners Limited.

The C H Cheah Family Trust was set up by Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye.
Madam To Hau Yin is the spouse of Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye and
accordingly is deemed to be interested in the 45,547,000 shares.

(4)  The 71,759,000 shares as referred to in note 4 above.

CSR Group has 55% interest over China South Locomotive & Rolling
Stock Corporation Limited which in turn has 100% interest over CSR
(Hong Kong) Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, and as at December 31, 2013, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company did not
redeem any of its H Shares listed on the Stock Exchange nor did
the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such
shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

SINOMACH entered into a non-competition agreement dated July
12, 2011 as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
December 10, 2012 (together as “Non-Competition Agreement”)
with the Company. Pursuant to the agreement, SINOMACH
provided certain non-competition undertakings to the Company
and granted the option to acquire certain retained business which
overlaps with the Company’s International Engineering Contracting
Business in the Core Sectors (the “Relevant Sectors”) and right
of first refusal for any new business opportunities in relation to the
Relevant Sectors. Pursuant to the Non-competition Agreement,
the INEDs are responsible for reviewing the implementation of the
undertakings under the agreement on an annual basis. During
the year, the INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the
Non-Competition Agreement and confirmed that SINOMACH has
been in full compliance with the agreement and there was no
breach by SINOMACH.

SINOMACH has confirmed in writing to the Company of its
compliance with the Non-competition Agreement for disclosure
in this annual report during the year ended December 31, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2013, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the businesses of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Connected Transaction

The Company has on December 27, 2013 entered in the Capital
Injection Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SINOMACH,
a controlling shareholder of the Company and Apparatus
Institute, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SINOMACH, pursuant
to which the Company will inject a total of RMB105,400,722
(the “Capital Increase Amount”) into Apparatus Institute by
way of capital increase in cash. Out of the Capital Increase
Amount, RMB24,000,000 will contribute to the increase in the
registered capital of Apparatus Institute, and RMB81,400,722
will contribute to the increase in the capital reserve of
Apparatus Institute. Upon completion of the Agreement,
Apparatus Institute will be owned as to 8% by the Company
and 92% by SINOMACH. Details for the transaction may refer
to the Company’s announcement made on December 27,
2013.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The connected transactions of the Company are also related
party transactions, which are disclosed in note 34 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosure”.

In terms of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions
of category 1 to category 4 as stated below, the Company
obtained approval from the Stock Exchange in respect of
the annual caps of such continuing connected transactions
when the Company’s H Shares were listed, and was granted
a waiver from strict compliance with the announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.
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The table below set out the annual caps and the actual
transaction amount of such connected transactions for 2013:

Actual
Annual cap  Transaction

for 2013 Amount
Connected Transactions Connected Person (note(i)) for 2013
20135

FELR 20135 H

HERXS BEAL (Hit) BHRXZER
Provision of engineering services ~ N/A RMB673.0 RMB NIL
and products by our Group to i million

SINOMACH Group
REE MBS B RE
IRRBRER

ARE  AREER

673.08ETT

2 Receipt of engineering services China Machinery Industry Construction Group INC.  RMB1,200.0 RMB750.0

and products from SINOMACH ~ HEI#iR T £ EBER AR million million
Group by our Group

AEEEZEREED China National General Machinery Engineering AR AR
TEREEER Corporation 1,200.0B87T 7500887

TEARERTIRENF

China JK Institute of Engineering Investigation and
Design Institute

BRI R BT R TR

Shanghai Sino-Perfect Co., Ltd.
HETRBRHtERRAR

Harbin Power System Engineering and Research
Institute Co., Ltd.
REEENREKERHRABRAA

China Electric Design & Research Institute Co.,Ltd
P BRI AR ERAA

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT



Connected Transactions
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Connected Person

HEAL

EEEHE

Actual
Annual cap  Transaction

for 2013 Amount
(note(i)) for 2013
2013&H

FELR 20135 H
(Wetn) EBEBXZEE

3

Trading procurement by our
Group from SINOMACH Group
FEERBERERETE HRE

China Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
PITRERRERR AR

Beijing Scientech International Project Management
Co., Ltd.
FTREEERTRERARAT

CMCU Engineering Co.,Ltd
R TRERAR

Guangzhou Kinte Industrial Co., Ltd.
BMEREXEBRAA

Zhengzhou Zhongxing Project Supervision Co., Ltd.

NP RETRERARAR

China Ocean Engineering Construction General
Bureau
PETRERER

China Power Engineering Consulting Group
Zhongnan Power Design Institute

REENIRBEREETEENRAR

China SANAN Construction Corporation
PE=ZERARDT

N/A
TEH

RMB17.0 RMB NIL
million

ARE ARBET
17.0B87T
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Actual

Annual cap  Transaction

for 2013 Amount

Connected Transactions Connected Person (note(i)) for 2013
20135 #

FELR 20135

HERS BMEAL (Hz) BRRZELHE

4 Provision of integrated services SINOMACH RMB44.0 RMB23.0

by our Group to SINOMACH B million million

Group
AE BB E BRI A R China Machinery Industry Construction Group INC. AR AR
FEER I XEREEERAT 44088 23.0B&ET

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT

SUMEC Group Corporation
IHEHEEEEERAR

China Auto Caiec Ltd.
FRFmE HBRAF

China Ocean Aviation Group Incorporation
FEEFMEEE AT

China Machine-Building International Hebei Co.,
Ltd.
AP EAEERAT

China Abrasives Import & Export Corporation

mEENEATERRAR

Guangdong CMIC Import & Export Co., Ltd.
BRI ERMEINEEBRAT
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Actual
Annual cap  Transaction

for 2013 Amount
Connected Person (note(i)) for 2013

20135 #

EELR 20135 1
BEAL (Hiiz) EBBRRBELE

China Geological Equipment Group Co., Ltd.
PEERERERRLA

China National Bearing Joint Import & Export
Corporation

SIS ) N

CMIC Heilongjiang Import & Export Co., Ltd.
BREITRELEOERAF

Beijing SNL Trading Co., Ltd.
IR BEMNEHBREERT

Zhangjiakou CGE GEO-Machinery Co., Ltd.
RRATHEERELEZERERAA

Beijing Drilling Tools Factory
It RERTERK

Chongqing Geological Instrument Factory
BEMEREM

Hengyang Zhongdi Equipment Prospecting
Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.
P RARBEIEERAERAETEAA

Wuxi Drilling Tools Factory
EHERTAR

Jiangsu Wallong-hsin Import & Export Corporation
Ltd.
IHEEREEHOFRAA
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Connected Transactions Connected Person

HERS HMEAL

Actual
Annual cap  Transaction

for 2013 Amount
(note(i)) for 2013
2013FH

FELR 20135
(W) EBEBXZEE

Jiangsu linhai Power Machinery Group

AR EIpL 20 VNG

Xiamen Wallong Import and Export Corporation

EFERELORQR

YTO International, Ltd.
—HRBRLEESERAA

China National Air Separation Plant Co., Ltd.

REZENREERAAE

China IPPR International Engineering Co., Ltd.

FEFR TR T2 AR A
5 Financing services by our Sinomach Finance Co., Ltd.

Group from SINOMACH Group ~ BI#Ei % BB EELF
s EmALBRELRRY

Note:

() The annual Cap is disclosed in the Prospectus of the Company
dated December 11, 2012.

(i) The actual transaction amount represents the highest daily
deposit balance.

1 02 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT

RMB750.0 RMB581.4

million million
AR#750.0 (note(ii)
BET AR¥5814
BETL

(Hiati)

MaE

() FELRERARAABA20124F
12 11HNBRERZAHRE -

BRXH2ERREBAKSFERE

=
"
£ o
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Provision of engineering services and products by
our Group to SINOMACH Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement on
provision of engineering services and products with
SINOMACH on July 12, 2011 as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement dated December 10, 2012 (the
“Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement”). Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
provides engineering services and products, including
but not limited to, undertaking turnkey project and
provision of general contracting services in the power and
energy sector and procurement services and products
to SINOMACH Group for the engineering contracting
projects undertaken by SINOMACH Group, in particular
those engineering contracting projects subcontracted to
our Group by SINOMACH Group.

Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Provision of Engineering
Services and Products Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2013 was RMB673.0
million and the actual transaction amount was RMB nil.
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Receipt of engineering services and products from
SINOMACH Group by our Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement
on receipt of engineering services and products with
SINOMACH Group on July 12, 2011 as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement dated December 10,
2012 (the “Receipt of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement’). Pursuant to the agreement,
our Group receives engineering services and products
from SINOMACH Group, including but not limited to,
design, installation, construction, building, subcontracting
and procurement services and products relating to its
engineering contracting projects.

Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Receipt of Engineering
Services and Products Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2013 was
RMB1,200.0 million and the actual transaction amount
was RMB750.0 million.
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Trading procurement by our Group from
SINOMACH Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement on
the provision of trading products by SINOMACH Group
to our Group on July 12, 2011 as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement dated December 10, 2012
(the “Trading Procurement Agreement”). Pursuant
to the agreement, our Group sources various trading
products from SINOMACH Group to support our Trading
Business, which consist of, but not limited to, agriculture
machinery and equipment, agriculture transportation
vehicles, logging equipment and mining equipment.

Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Trading Procurement
Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2013 was RMB17.0
million and the actual transaction amount was RMB nil.

Provision of integrated services by our Group to
SINOMACH Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement on
the provision of integrated services by our Group to
SINOMACH Group on July 12, 2011 as supplemented by
the supplemental agreement dated December 10, 2012
(the “Integrated Services Agreement’). Pursuant to
the agreement, our Group provides integrated services
such as exhibition and conference services, storage and
logistics services, tendering agency services, import
and export agency services and real estate leasing and
management services to SINOMACH Group in respect of
the business undertaken by SINOMACH Group.
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Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Integrated Services
Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2013 was RMB44.0
million and the actual transaction amount was RMB23.0
million.

Principal terms of the agreement

Each of the Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Trading Procurement Agreement and Integrated
Services Agreement is a framework agreement that comprises
the general terms and conditions upon which the Group and
SINOMACH Group shall carry out the particular type of transactions
contemplated thereunder. Members of SINOMACH Group and
members of the Group may from time to time enter into detailed
agreements in respect of the specific services and/or products to
be provided or received by the Group, provided that the terms of
such detailed agreements shall not be inconsistent with the terms
of the respective framework agreement. The actual services and/or
products to be provided or received by our Group shall be subject
to such detailed agreements entered into between the relevant
member of SINOMACH Group and the relevant member of the
Group from time to time.
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Each of the Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Trading Procurement Agreement and Integrated
Services Agreement is of a term commencing from the Listing Date
and ending on December 31, 2014 and may be renewed on terms
to be agreed upon by SINOMACH and the Company. Each of such
framework agreements (i) may be terminated by a non-defaulting
party by serving a written default notice to the defaulting party
stipulating the relevant breach and the defaulting party having failed
to remedy such breach within a reasonable period after its receipt
of the default notice; and (ii) shall be terminated automatically if the
performance of the transactions contemplated thereunder will be in
breach of the requirements under the Listing Rules or the necessary
approvals required under the Listing Rules or relevant waivers from
the Stock Exchange cannot be obtained.

Pursuant to each of the Provision of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement, Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Trading Procurement Agreement and Integrated
Services Agreement, the price payable for the subject services
and/or products thereunder shall be determined in accordance with
the prevailing market price of the relevant services and/or products,
unless there is a guidance price range determined by the relevant
governmental authorities. The prevailing market price shall be the
price asked for by independent third parties for the relevant services
and/or products under normal commercial terms at the relevant
time in their place of supply or a place in close proximity to such
place of supply, or the price asked for by independent third parties
for supplying the relevant services and/or products under normal
commercial terms at the relevant time. Where there are no available
prevailing market prices or where it is impracticable to obtain such
market prices, the Company and SINOMACH shall mutually agree
on a price determined based on reasonable costs of the provision of
the relevant service and/or product, and a reasonable profit margin.
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Financing services by our Group from SINOMACH
Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement on
receipt of financial services with SINOMACH Group on
June 20, 2013 (the “Financial Services Agreement”).
Pursuant to the agreement, our Group sources various
financial services from SINOMACH Group, including but
not limited to deposit, general loan, entrusted loan and
general financial services.

Details for the Financial Services Agreement may refer to
the Company’s announcement made on June 20, 2013.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2013 was RMB750.0
million and the actual transaction amount was RMB581.4
million.

The INEDs have reviewed each of the above mentioned continuing

connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have

been conducted:

(1)

@)

in the usual course of business of the Company;

on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to determine whether they are
on normal commercial terms, from the perspective of the
Company, on terms no less favorable than the terms available
to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with relevant agreements governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited assurance
engagement on the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their conclusion to
the Board stating that:

©

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company;

c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions set out above,
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
value disclosed above.

The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has provided a copy of the said letter to the Stock
Exchange.

In respect of the above-mentioned non-exempt connected
transactions, the Directors also confirmed that the Company was
in compliance with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 37 to
the audited consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee had reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance
by its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company in respect
of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate governance.
The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code during the year ended December 31, 2013 and up
to the date of this report. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange granted to the Company a waiver from strict
compliance with Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules (the “Public
Float Waiver”). Pursuant to the Public Float Waiver, the Company’s
prescribed minimum percentage of Shares which must be in public
hands must not be less than 22.01% of the total issued share
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capital of the Company. Based on information publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least
22.01% of the Company’s total issued share capital, the prescribed
minimum percentage of public float approved by the waiver and
permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times
as of the date of this report.

AUDITORS

KPMG (EEEETAIEFT) and Da Hua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (KEEHEIE /5T (&
RERA F)) were appointed as the Company’s international and
domestic auditors, respectively, for the year ended December 31,
2013. The 2013 consolidated financial statements of the Company
prepared in accordance with IFRS have been audited by KPMG.

The Company has not changed its auditor since the Listing.

COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTIONS
UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company and the Directors
have covenanted to the Stock Exchange that they will not, directly
or indirectly, (1) use any of the proceeds from the Global Offering,
or make such proceeds available to any individual or entity, to fund
any activities in or business of or with (i) any individual or entity or
(i) in any country or territory, that at the time of such funding, is
the target of any sanctions administered by OFAC, or (2) engage
in any activity that is sanctionable under the ISA (as amended by
the Comprehensive Iran Sanctions, Accountability, and Divestment
Act of 2010) or the Executive Order 13590 (the “Executive Order”)
for so long as the ISA and Executive Order remain in effect (the
“Sanctions Undertakings”). The Directors confirmed that both the
Company and the Directors were in compliance with the Sanctions
Undertakings as at the date of this report. In particular, the
Company has taken the following measures to ensure compliance
with the Sanctions Undertakings:

1. Proceeds Account — The Company has opened and maintained
separate designated banks account for the proceeds from
the Listing in Hong Kong as at the date of this report (the
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“Proceeds Accounts”). The Proceeds Account is segregated
from other normal bank accounts of our Company and
designated for the sole use of deposit and deployment of the
proceeds from Listing. With such segregation and designation,
the Proceeds Account records all transactions and activities
within these bank accounts and trace the flow of funds in and
out of the Proceeds Account.

Accounting measures — The Company has ensured that
separate books and records are in place to monitor the
activities, including deposits and disbursements, of the
Proceeds Accounts.

Internal control policies — We have formulated a dedicated
set of internal control policies particularly in respect of the
Proceeds Account to regulate various aspects of operating the
Proceeds Account, such as the designated use, record keeping
(e.g. the underlying documents for projects or transactions
towards which the proceeds will be applied), regular review,
responsible personnel to be appointed, accountability and
reporting line and other necessary operational procedures.

Internal compliance program (the “ICP”) on export control —
With the Company’s existing ICP platform, the export control
office has continued to be responsible for project approval
from an export control perspective to ensure the nature and
location of the activities or business, as well as the identity of
the counterparties involved, would not violate the Sanctions
Undertakings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company for year ended December 31,
2013 (the “Year”). In addition, certain information regarding the
Directors and the board committees has been updated as at the
date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The CG Code has been
adopted as the Company’s own code of corporate governance.
The Company had applied the principles and complied with all
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during
the Year. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.

Chairman and President

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals. Under the current organization
structure of the Company, Mr. SUN Bai is the Chairman of the
Board and Mr. ZHANG Chun is the President. The balance of power
and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior management
and the Board, which comprise experienced and high caliber
individuals. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the primary
duties and responsibilities of the chairman of the Board include:

a) presiding over the shareholders’ general meetings and
convening and presiding over meetings of the Board,
examining the implementation of the resolutions of the Board;

b) organizing the formulation of regulations on the operation of
the Board, and coordinating the operation of the Board;
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receiving regular or non-regular performance reports on the
Company’s senior management; and

giving opinions guiding the execution of board resolutions and
signing the Company'’s share certificates, debentures and other
important documents.

The major responsibilities of the president of the Company include:

a)

The

leading the production, operation and management of the
Company, and reporting his works to the Board;

organizing the implementation of the resolutions of the Board,
the Company’s annual business plans and investment plans;

preparing the Company’s annual budgets and final accounts,
and providing recommendations to the Board;

formulating the plans for merger, division or reorganization of
the wholly-owned subsidiaries and controlled subsidiaries of
the Company;

preparing plans for the establishment of the Company’s
basic management system and the internal management
structure, preparing plans for the establishment of domestic
and overseas branches of the Company, formulating specific
rules and regulations of the Company;

appointing or removing the management personnel, except for
those that shall be appointed or removed by the Board;

formulating the benefits and incentive
programs, as well as the appointment and removal of the

remunerations,

Company’s employees;

proposing to convene an extraordinary board meeting when
emergency arises; and

determining on investment, financing, contracts and
transactions of the Company within the scope of authorization

of the Board.

chairman of the Company held a meeting with the non-

executive Directors (including the INEDs) without the presence of
the executive Directors during the Year.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiry of all the Directors and Supervisors of the Company, all the
Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they had complied with
the Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Company also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance
by its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information or inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall performance
of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures that the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but not limited to formulating the
Group’s business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s
financial results and performance and approving its interim and
annual results; approving appointment, removal or re-appointment
of the Board members upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee of the Board; approving the remuneration package
of directors and senior management of the Company upon the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee established
by the Board, deciding all significant financial (including major
capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance, and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s Articles
and Association. The Board may from time to time delegate
certain functions to senior management of the Group if and
when considered appropriate. The senior management is mainly
responsible for the execution of the business plans, strategies and
policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time to time.
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Currently, the Board comprises the following nine Directors:

Executive Directors
SUN Bai (Chairman)
ZHANG Chun (President)

Non-Executive Directors
WANG Zhian

YU Benli

ZHANG Fusheng

INEDs

LIU Li

LIU Hongyu
FANG Yongzhong
WU Tak Lung

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and
Employees” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no financial,
business, family or other material relationship among the Directors.

The two Executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performances and are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs.

The four INEDs are responsible for ensuring a high standard of
financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company
so as to protect shareholders’ interest and overall interest of the
Group.
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Throughout the Year, the Company had at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at-least one-third of the Board members and at least
one of the INEDs had appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has four INEDs currently representing four-ninths of the
Board and therefore the Company has complied with the Listing
Rules.

All Directors, including the INEDs, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The INEDs
were invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Strategy and
Development Committee and the Operation and Risk Management
Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors agreed
to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
the liabilities of the Directors and officers in respect of any legal
actions taken against the Directors and senior management arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.
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Confirmation of Independence

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence by reference to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Board is satisfied that all INEDs were independent and met the
independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
up to the date of this annual report.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

The Company has from time to time provided briefings to all
Directors to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development
for Directors will be arranged whenever necessary. The Directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge his or her duties. All Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense. They have been required to provide the Company with
their training records.

During the Year, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills by reading materials and/or attending briefings
by legal counsels or seminars organised by professional bodies on
corporate governance or updates on laws, rules and regulations
relating to the roles, functions and duties of a director.
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Individual record of each Director who received training for the Year

is summarised as follows: wmr
Type of CPD
Directors RESERRE
= HER
(Notes)
(Bret)
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. YANG Wansheng (retired on April 19, 2013) BBBLE (R2013F4A19HEE) Aand B
AKB
Mr. SUN Bai (appointed on April 19, 2013) A (FR2013F4 B19BEERT) Aand B
AKB
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective FRF L (FER2014F2 82084 1) Aand B
on February 20, 2014) AKB
Mr. ZHANG Chun RIFLAE Aand B
AKB
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective EREEL (RER2014F2 82084 1) Aand B
on February 20, 2014) AKB
Mr. WANG Zhian TRERE Aand B
AKB
Mr. YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014) RABELE (R2014F 28208 L) B
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014) REBESE (R2014F2820HEZRT) B
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. LIU Li B hkE Aand B
AKB
Ms. LIU Hongyu 2T Ft Aand B
AKB
Mr. FANG Yongzhong FXKBRE Aand B
AKB
Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip (appointment ceased effective Rzt (RIR2014F2 82084 11) Aand B
on February 20, 2014) AKB
Mr. WU Tak Lung (appointed on February 20, 2014) RERELE (FR2014F2A20HER(T) B
Notes: ez -
A:  attending seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relevant to the Al LFEABXBAESTRANTAE W

business or directors’ duties 8 Ty G

BEEMEFASREENER AR
SEAR B RRE AR

B:  studying regulatory updates on laws, rules and regulations relating to B:
directors’ roles and functions
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Meetings of Board and Board Committees and
Directors’ Attendance Records

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year. Notices of not less than
fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members at least fourteen days before the regular
meetings and at least five days before the extraordinary meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and
be adequately prepared for the meetings. When the Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, he or she
may appoint in writing another Director to attend the meeting on
his or her behalf. The power of attorney shall specify the scope of
authorization. The proxy shall exercise the rights of the Director
within the scope of the authorization. A Director failing to attend
the board meeting in person or by proxy shall be deemed as having
waived his or her voting rights at such meeting.

The Joint Company Secretaries or his/her delegate are responsible
for keeping all minutes of the Board meetings and the Board
committees. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for Directors’ inspection. According to the Listing
Rules, any directors and their associates with a material interest in
the transactions to be discussed at the Board meetings will abstain
from voting on resolutions approving such transactions and will not
be counted in the quorum at meetings.

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her
duties may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense. Directors get familiar with the Group’s principal activities
through initial induction, ongoing participation at the Board
and committee meetings, and meeting with key members of
management. The Directors are encouraged to update their skills
and knowledge.
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During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company held 19 Board meetings (including written resolutions),
two extraordinary general meetings (‘EGM”) and one AGM. Details
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of attendance of the Directors are as follows: BERG EFHFB2 MRS LHELE
BRI
Board
Directors meetings EGM AGM
E= EZE28E RREIXE BRREFAE
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. YANG Wansheng (retired on April 19, 2013) SEB L (R2013F
4R19HRIT) 4/4 1/2 N/A T
Mr. SUN Bai (appointed on April 19, 2013) FA%EE (R2013F
4R19RBEE) 15/15 1/2 11
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective ERF UL (RER
on February 20, 2014) 201452208 & 1k) 16/16 1/2 /1
Mr. ZHANG Chun RIFFLAE 19/19 2/2 1/1
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective EEELE (RAER
on February 20, 2014) 2014F2 A20H#K1E) 16/16 1/2 1/1
Mr. WANG Zhian FaRtsE 19/19 2/2 1/1
Mr. YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014) RABEE (R20145
2R20RBZME) 33 NAMTER NATER
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014)  SRiBEE4 (R201445E
2R20BEZRT) 3/3  N/ATEH N/A 7~ F
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. LIU Li 2 hEsE 19/19 1/2 1/1
Ms. LIU Hongyu BT F L 19/19 1/2 -/1
Mr. FANG Yongzhong FKEBEE 19/19 2/2 1/1
Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip (appointment ceased effective  [Ri2Z %4 (ZAR
on February 20, 2014) 201452 A20B & 1k) 16/16 2/2 11
Mr. WU Tak Lung (appointed on February 20, 2014) RERELE (20145
2R20BEZME) 3/3  NAMER NATEA

HiEE - DR R E S 5 E B R 5 RN
AEEg  HUTER -

Note: N/A means not applicable as the relevant Director had not
joined the Board at the relevant time.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all
measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of reference, five Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the strategy
and development committee (the “Strategy and Development
Committee”) and the operation and risk management committee
(the “Operation and Risk Management Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”), to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are in line
with the Listing Rules and they are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises two INEDs and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
LIU Li, Ms. LIU Hongyu and Mr. WANG Zhian, the majority of them
are INEDs. Mr. LIU Li is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among others:

a)

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit
division or external auditor before submission to the Board;

To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

For the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review

and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
review. It had, in conjunction with KPMG, the external auditor of
the Company, review the Group’s audited results for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and unaudited interim results for the Year
and recommended the same to the Board for their consideration

and approval. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the

preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting

standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have

been made. The Audit Committee also carried out and discharged
its other duties as set out in the CG Code.
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Details of attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as

BN RBRERNLFEFBLT

follows:

Directors Attendance
BEx HERE
Mr. LIU Li (Chairman) I NEE (/) 3/3
Ms. LIU Hongyu R F 44 3/3
Mr. WANG Zhian a4t 3/3

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs and one Executive
Director, namely Mr. FANG Yongzhong, Mr. SUN Bai and Mr. LIU
Li, the majority of them are INEDs. Mr. FANG Yongzhong is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
others:

a) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

c) To determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, or to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee made the following
recommendations to the Board with respect to the existing
remuneration policies: to evaluate the performance of each Director
and approve the execution of terms of the service contracts or
letter of appointments of the Directors of the second session of
the Board, and to make recommendation to the Board with respect
to the remuneration packages of individual Director and senior
management member.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review and make recommendation on the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors, chairman of the Board and senior
management and the director’s fee of the INEDs.

Details of attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings
are as follows:
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Directors Attendance
== HERE
Mr. FANG Yongzhong (Chairman) FKBEE () 2/2
Mr. YANG Wansheng (retired on April 19, 2013) BEBLE (R2013F4 A19REM) 1/1
Mr. SUN Bai (appointed on April 19, 2013) BISAE (FR2013F4A19BEET) 1/1
Mr. LIU Li B hkaE 2/2
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Remuneration Policy of Directors

Each Director has entered into service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company. Each executive Director is entitled
to an annual fixed fee (tax included) pursuant to the service contract
entered into with the Company. The fee includes, among others,
salaries, benefits, duty subsidies and pension contribution as
determined in accordance with the laws and regulations of the PRC
and the policy guidance issued by the senior regulatory authorities
as well as the duties, performance and working experience of
the executive Director. Meanwhile, the executive Director is also
entitled to management bonus as determined by the Board or the
Remuneration Committee with reference to the overall operating
results and performance of the Company. The decision to grant
such management bonus was made by the general meeting or the
Board under the authorization of the general meeting. Each non-
executive Director and each INED is entitled to fixed subsidy, which
is determined with reference to the prevailing market price, pursuant
to the service contract or letter of appointment entered into with the
Company. Reasonable fees incurred by the Directors during their
services in the Company shall be borne by the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises two INEDs and one Executive Director,
namely Ms. LIU Hongyu, Mr. SUN Bai and Mr. FANG Yongzhong,
the majority of them are INEDs. Mr. SUN Bai is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among
others:

a) To review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis according to the operating activities,
asset size and equity structure of the Company and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

b) To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors;
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c) To identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to join the
Board and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of candidates nominated for directorships;

d) To assess the candidates for the senior management of the
Company and its wholly-owned and controlled subsidiaries,
and provide appraisal opinions to the Board; and

e) To assess the independence of the INEDs.

During the Year, the nomination and recommendation policies and
procedures of the Directors of the Company implemented by the
Nomination Committee rule that candidates of Directors (excluding
INEDs) shall be nominated and recommended by the Controlling
Shareholder, while candidates of INEDs shall be selected by the
Nomination Committee. Such candidates of Directors (including
INEDs) shall at least comply with the relevant requirements of
Chapter 6 of the Company Law, Chapter 3 and 13 of the Listing
Rules and Chapter 14 of the Articles of Association. Candidates
of INEDs shall also comply with the requirement on independence
of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is responsible for
providing information on the candidates to the shareholders and
the appointment of Directors shall be determined by the general
meeting.

For the Year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings
to assess the independence of the INEDs, discuss the working
procedures of the Nomination Committee and the working plan for
2014, as well as review and amend the terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee and discuss the “Plan for Re-appointment
and Recruitment of Mid-level Officials” (/|8 & 3 #2 fE 53 52 5 ).

Details of attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are
as follows:
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Directors Attendance
Bz HE R
Mr. YANG Wansheng (retired on April 19, 2013) SERLE (R2013F4 A19BR(T) 1/1
Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman) (appointed on April 19, 2013) a4 (/&) (H2013F4 B19RBEHT) 2/2
Ms. LIU Hongyu B F+ 3/3
Mr. FANG Yongzhong FokERE 3/3
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Strategy and Development Committee

The Strategy and Development Committee comprises two Executive
Directors, one Non-Executive Director and one INED, namely Mr.
SUN Bai, Mr. ZHANG Chun, Mr. YU Benli and Mr. LIU LI. Mr. SUN
Bai is the chairman of Strategy and Development Committee.

The primary duties of the Strategy and Development Committee
include, among others:

a) To conduct research in respect of, and formulating the strategy
and business development of our Company, including the
medium to long term plans, and supervising the implementation
of our Company’s strategic planning;

b) To present assessment reports on the implementation of our
Company’s strategic planning, management and business
development; and

c) To research and analyze major issues encountered by our
Company in the course of its development.

For the Year, the Strategy and Development Committee held two
meetings to discuss the working procedures of the Strategy and
Development Committee, the working plan for 2013 and the report
for “CMEC Strategic Development Plan for the Next Five Years”
(CMECH R F F % R B B #RL &),

Details of attendance of the Strategy and Development Committee
meetings are as follows:
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Directors Attendance
B R
Mr. YANG Wansheng (retired on April 19, 2013) BEBLL (FR2013F4A198EE) 11
Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman) (appointed on April 19, 2013) %4 (/&) (H2013F4 B 19R BET) 1/1
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective FRFwE (RER2014F2 A208 4 1F)

on February 20, 2014) 2/2
Mr. ZHANG Chun R AE 2/2
Mr. YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014) RAIEEAE (FA2014F2 A20BEZRT) -
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective EEZE AL (ZAR2014F2H2084 1)

on February 20, 2014) 2/2
Mr. LIU Li Eipapietas 2/2
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Operation and Risk Management Committee

The Operation and Risk Management Committee comprises one
Executive Director, two Non-Executive Directors and one INED,
namely Mr. ZHANG Chun, Mr. WANG Zhian, Mr. ZHANG Fusheng
and Mr. FANG Yongzhong. Mr. ZHANG Chun is the chairman of
Operation and Risk Management Committee.

The primary duties of the Operation and Risk Management
Committee include, among others:

a) To review and evaluate the progress of major investments,
operations, and major business;

b) To review and evaluate the decision making standards and
mechanisms as regards major operational decisions, major
risks, major events, and major business processes; and

c) To establish sound and comprehensive risk management and
internal control procedures in respect of the risk management
and internal control system with a view to ensuring the
effective and efficient operation of such system.

For the Year, the Operation and Risk Management Committee held
two meetings to discuss the working procedures of the Operation
and Risk Management Committee, the working plan for 2013 and
the comprehensive risk management report for 2012, as well as
the risk management in respect of the Sanctions Undertakings.
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Details of attendance of the Operation and Risk Management KEHREREEZEEERNLEFBL
Committee meetings are as follows: N

Directors Attendance
=) HERE
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective on TR+ (ZER2014F2 82084 1)

February 20, 2014) 2/2
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective on BEFHE (RER2014F 28208 K1)

February 20, 2014) 2/2
Mr. ZHANG Chun (Chairman) KR AE () -
Mr. WANG Zhian Flakfkst 2/2
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014) RIS (201452 A20 B EET) -
Mr. FANG Yongzhong TR BEAE 2/2
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant transactions
entered into by the management as defined under the relevant
Working Rules for the President (#24%3E T {E#8 81)).

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which include:

a. To develop, review and implement the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance;

b. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

c. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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d. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

f.  To develop, review and monitor the implementation of the
Shareholders’ communication policy to ensure its effectiveness,
and make recommendation to the Board where appropriate to
enhance Shareholders’ relationship with the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company on February 20,
2014 for a term commencing from the date of the general meeting
in which the respective executive Directors or non-executive
Directors were appointed, until the end of the term of the second
session of the Board and may be terminated in accordance with
the respective terms of the service agreements.

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company on February 20, 2014 for a term commencing from the
date of the general meeting in which the respective INEDs were
appointed until the end of the term of the second session of the
Board.

None of the Directors has a service agreement which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors shall
be elected or replaced at the Shareholders’ general meetings with
a term of office of three years. Upon expiry of the term of office,
a director shall be eligible to offer himself for re-election and
reappointment. Any person appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
Company’s next AGM and that person shall then be eligible for re-
election and reappointment.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were seven employees being classified as senior management
during the Year. Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the Year by band is set
out below:

RE BEERBRREFZERFMBEREEN
EiRMA - REZBEeREENESSH
B BRERZERE FENEMSE -

ESREREERE 2FMH

REENEEFHEBTER AT BERE
BFIEEQ ©

RAFEE  KETHRERIBRERE
EE - RBEEEIATRIEB.1.5MFTRIF
X SREREKE (BEERIN OFEH
MERFINDT -

Number of
Remuneration bands (RMB) individuals
HHMER (ARY) AH
1,000,000 to 1,200,000 1,000,000% 1,200,000 -
1,200,000 to 1,400,000 1,200,000%1,400,000 7
1,400,000 to 1,600,000 1,400,000% 1,600,000 -
1,600,000 to 1,800,000 1,600,000% 1,800,000 -
1,800,000 to 2,000,000 1,800,000% 2,000,000 -
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended and are
properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, the management
would provide such explanation and information to the Board as
will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the Board for approval.
The Company also provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which
may affect the Company’s business or cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

KPMG has also stated its reporting responsibility in the independent
auditor’s report of the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board executes the decision-making right on operation. It
endeavors to establish and improve the internal control policies
and plans and supervise the implementation of the internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets,
thus being responsible for the establishment and supervision of the
internal control system of the Company. It is the responsibility of
the Board to establish, improve, review and effectively implement
the internal control system.
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In terms of management structure, the Company has optimized
the organizational structure and implemented a flat management.
The relevant functional departments are sufficiently staffed,
respectively taking charge of financial operations and monitoring,
risk management, internal audit and anti-corruption. In addition, the
Company arranges reasonable budgets to provide regular trainings
for the staff of the Company and its subsidiaries performing
functions such as finance, risk management and internal audit so
as to ensure that they are fully qualified and experienced.

All departments are under direct leadership of the President of the
Company, who is thereby enable to report instantly to the Board
on the operations of each department and problems received.
Accordingly, any significant matter (if subject to disclosure to the
market) identified by the staff could be reported to the management
in a timely, accurate and effective manner. The management of
the Company assessed such significant matter in accordance with
internal management requirements and procedures in a timely
manner and made corresponding decisions. The decisions of the
management of the Company could be implemented accurately
and timely under supervision.

In 2013, the Company enhanced internal control and management,
with the promulgation and amendment of 27 rules with regard to
its management system, covering a number of important areas
including human resources, finance, capital resources, legal and
compliance and business incentives. For example, “Particulars of
Implementation of Contract Filing Management of China Machinery
Engineering Corporation” (1 B # i % 8 T2kt B IR A Al & RS
EIRE 4B, “Particulars of Implementation of Contract Approval
Management of China Machinery Engineering Corporation” (%
B RE TR BRAREREHEEERMAA), “Measures
for Managing the Market Development Fund of China Machinery
Engineering Co., Ltd(Trial Implementation)” (# Bl #4345 TI2A% 15 B
RARTZAEESEEIE (B17)), “Particulars of Implementation
of Management of Conclusive Works of International Engineering
Contracting Business (Trial Implementation)” (Ti2pk E %7558 T4
TEEEE AL (5117)) and “Management Measures of Evaluation
of Completed Projects of International Engineering Contracting
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Business (Trial Implementation)(LI2KE XS ER BT EEE MR
7% (7447)) were implemented by the Company. The promulgation
and implementation of these policies are highly integrated with the
actual operation and management, which provide strong systematic
support for business development. Compliance training programs
were also organized for senior and middle management as well
as key personnel, in order to ensure that the Company complied
with various rules and legislations when performing different tasks.
Meanwhile, the Company further strengthened its risk management.
In addition to promoting the construction of the internal control
system and the risk prevention and control system, the Company
also actively promoted the construction of the two systems for its
subsidiaries, including the continuous management and control
of the Trading Business as a high risk item, the establishment of
management regime for social responsibility of CMEC and the
close attention paid to the risks of social responsibility. The positive
impacts of risk management and control of the Company were
obvious: in 2013, no new litigation was instigated with respect to
the Company’s Trading Business.

During the Year, the Board assessed the internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries such as financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risk management
systems and was not aware of any material problems or any
material mistakes. The Board believes that the current monitoring
system of the Company is effective and that the qualifications and
experience of the staff performing accounting and financial reporting
functions and the training programs of the Company as well as the
experiences and resources for setting the budget of the Company
are adequate.

The Group’s internal control system will be reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Audit Committee which will report the
same to the Board, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Board.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The audit department of the Company will conduct independent
review and assessment on the appropriateness, rationality and
effectiveness of the governance, risk management and internal
control system. The audit department is under the supervision and
guidance of the Audit Committee, and will provide analysis and
recommendation for the Board and the senior management. It is
responsible for all material control, including financial, operational,
compliance and risk management. In 2013, the audit department
did not discover any circumstances involving fault, non-compliance
or violation against laws, regulations and rules or severe insufficient
control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditors in respect of audit services and
non-auditing services amounted to RMB5.9 million and RMB3.0
million, respectively. The amount for 2013 non-audit services mainly
comprised the services fee on review of interim financial statements.
The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit services in
2013 did not affect the independence of the auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHEN Minjian (“Mr. Chen”) acts as secretary to the Board
and one of the joint company secretaries of the Company. He
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engages Ms. TSANG Fung Chu (“Ms. Tsang”),
as its joint company secretary to assist Mr. Chen to discharge his
duties as company secretary of the Company. For the purpose of
Code F.1.1 of the CG Code, Ms. Tsang keeps close contact with
Mr. Chen, being the person with sufficient seniority at the Company.
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For the Year under review, Mr. Chen and Ms. Tsang have undertaken
15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, when the Company
convenes an AGM, Shareholders holding 3% or more of the total
voting shares of the Company shall be entitled to propose new
resolutions to the Company in writing which should be submitted to
the convener 10 days prior to the convening of the general meeting.
The convener of the general meeting shall issue a supplemental
notice of general meeting to other Shareholders within 2 days of
the receipt of such proposal and incorporate such newly proposed
matters falling within the scope of duties of the general meeting
into the agenda of such meeting. The new agenda shall be tabled
to the general meeting for consideration.

Shareholders can submit their written recommendations through
the following facsimile, e-mail or postal address:

Facsimile: 86 10 6332 1086

E-mail: ir@mail.cmec.com

Postal address: No. 178 Guang’anmenwai Street, Beijing, PRC
(Postal Code: 100055)

Pursuant to article 57 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened where Shareholders who individually or
jointly hold 10% or more of the Company’s Shares make a request
to convene an extraordinary general meeting in writing. The matter
for consideration proposed by the party requesting the holding of
the extraordinary general meeting shall be included in the agenda
of such meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are set out in the Articles of Association which is
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company in a timely manner after each shareholder meeting.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to Room 804,
8/F, Tower 1, South Sea Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, and provide sufficient contact information for
the timely and proper handling and record keeping of the relevant
enquiries.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

In 2012, the Company successfully completed its Listing in Hong
Kong. Through roadshow presentations around the globe, its
investor relations website, investor enquiry hotline, investor mailbox
and other communication channels, the Company maintains
close liaisons with investors worldwide in a timely and efficient
manner. Moreover, through investment forums, corporate visits,
teleconferences and various other channels, the Company maintains
proactive and frank exchanges with investors and analyses. The
Company has attached great importance to listening and accepting
reasonable suggestions and opinions from Shareholders and
investors. It strives to continuously enhance its operating results,
present a true picture of the Company'’s financial and operational
status to Shareholders and investors, actively facilitate the internal
communications in respect of the feedback from the capital market,
and continuously perfect and enrich the system aiming to canvass
information in relation to investor relations. The management over
investor relations involves an all-faceted interactive communication
process.

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions. In
2014, the Company will further step up communications and
exchanges with investors, in a bid to increase their understanding
of the Company, whilst canvassing the support and attention from
investors, so that they may provide more valuable opinions. The
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Company will also put great efforts in furthering the exploration
and innovation in its investor relations management to bolster the
Company’s position in domestic and overseas capital markets.

The AGM of the Company provides opportunity for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman of the Board,
the president of the Company, the chairman of each of the Board
Committees and the external auditor of the Company, KPMG, will
attend the AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
its Shareholders and maintains a website at www.cmec.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. The
Company also maintained frequent contacts with Shareholders and
investors through various channels such as meetings, telephone
and emails. For example, we will convene telephone meetings
to answer enquiries from Shareholders and investors, as well
as arrange one-on-one conversation with investors. In addition,
we arranged on-site visits to the Group’s projects and non-deal
roadshows for investors and research analysts.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders, both individual
and institutional (collectively, the “Shareholder(s)”) of the Company
and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment community at
large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments and governance), for the purpose of enabling the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and
to allow them and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

Information about the Company will be communicated to the
Shareholders and the investment community mainly through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may be convened,
as well as by making available all the disclosures submitted to
the Stock Exchange and its corporate communications on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions regarding the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2012 AGM held on June 17, 2013, amendments to the
Articles of Association were approved by the Shareholders, mainly
to bring the articles of the Company in line with the amendments
made to reflect, among other reasons, certain changes in the
Company’s information pursuant to the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus). An updated
version of the Articles and Association is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the forthcoming AGM
and exercise their right to vote. Further details of business to be
conducted at the general meeting will be set out in the circular to
the Shareholders to be sent and posted on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company shortly.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Report of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is pleased to present this report of the
Supervisory Board in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2013 (the “Year”).

In 2013, all members of the Supervisory Board have earnestly
performed their supervisory functions to safeguard the rights and
interests of the Group and the Shareholders in accordance with
the Companies Law, the Articles of Associations, the Rules of
Procedures of the Supervisory Board and the relevant provisions
in the Listing Rules. Members of the Supervisory Board carried out
examination of the Company’s financial accounts and supervision of
the Directors, the president and other senior management officers
for their compliance with the laws, administrative regulations and
the Articles of Association in executing their respective duties.

I. RE-APPOINTMENTS OF THE SUPERVISORS

According to the Articles of Association, the term of office
for the first session of the Supervisory Board has expired on
January 12, 2014.

Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Company Law and
the Articles of Association, all Supervisors for the first session
of the Supervisory Board continued to perform their duties as
Supervisors in accordance with applicable laws and regulations
until the re-appointments of the Supervisors for the second
session of the Supervisory Board becoming effective.

In accordance with the relevant requirements of the Articles
of Association and the Company Law, the second session
of the Supervisory Board shall consist of three Supervisors,
including two Shareholder representative Supervisors and one
staff representative Supervisor. And according to the Articles
of Association, the appointments of the two Shareholder
representative Supervisors are subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at a general meeting, and the staff representative
Supervisor shall be appointed by the employees of the
Company in the employees’ general meetings. The term of
office of Supervisors shall be three years.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

ESgWE

As announced by the Company on January 24, 2014, Mr.
BAI Ming has been re-appointed as the staff representative
Supervisor for the second session of the Supervisory Board
at the employees’ general meeting. And at the extraordinary
general meeting held on February 20, 2014, Mr. QUAN
Huagiang and Mr. QIAN Xiangdong have been re-appointed
as the Shareholder representative Supervisors for the second
session of the Supervisory Board.

Mr. QUAN Huagiang, Mr. QIAN Xiangdong and Mr. BAI Ming
have formed the second session of the Supervisory Board.
Their term of service commenced on February 20, 2014 until
the expiration of the term of second session of the Supervisory
Board.

MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, four
meetings of the Supervisory Board were held.

On March 27, 2013, the Company held the fourth meeting of
the first session of the Supervisory Board to consider the 2012
audited financial report of the Company and the report of the
Supervisory Board for 2012 and to receive the report on the
2012 results announcement of the Company.

On January 6, 2014, the Company held the fifth meeting of
the first session of the Supervisory Board to consider the
resolution in relation to the recommendation of candidates for
shareholder representative Supervisors for the second session
of the Supervisory Board at the general meeting.

On February 20, 2014, the Company held the first meeting of
the second session of the Supervisory Board to re-elect Mr.
QUAN Huagiang as the chairman for the second session of the
Supervisory Board for the same term of the second session of
the Supervisory Board.

On March 24, 2014, the Company held the second meeting of
the second session of the Supervisory Board to consider the
2013 audited financial report of the Company and the report
of the Supervisory Board for 2013 and to receive the report on
the 2013 results announcement of the Company.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

-
ESERE
Ill. INDEPENDENT OPINION ISSUED BY THE . EEESREEEERRNEL
SUPERVISORY BOARD ON RELEVANT =R
MATTERS
Operation and management of the Company ARATREEEEER
During the Year, the Company managed to achieve REZFENRN KRAAEE - KK
satisfying results in areas of operation, cost control, CEHmNERE

project origination, implementation and management,
internal management, work safety and market expansion.
The management of the Company further strengthened the
systems of internal controls, and enhanced, in particular,
the system of business processes of all functional
departments of the Company, making further progress in
corporate governance. The management of the Company
faithfully fulfilled their duties and responsibilities as
stipulated in the Articles of Association and earnestly
implemented the resolutions approved by the Board. Till
now, the Supervisory Board did not discover that the
Board and senior management had abused their rights
and functions or any of their actions that were prejudicial
to the interests of the Company, Shareholders and staff of
the Company, or in any way violated the laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association.

Financial matters of the Company

Members of the Supervisory Board monitored and
examined the financial management system and the
financial condition and reviewed relevant financial
information of the Company. Upon examination, the
Supervisory Board concluded that the Company
had strictly complied with the relevant financial laws,
regulations and financial policies, and that the financial
management system was sound and implemented
effectively; the accounting treatment was in line with
the consistency principles; and the Company’s financial
reports gave an objective and fair view of the financial
position and operating results of the Company.
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Report of the Supervisory Board
EEERE

The Supervisory Board reviewed the unqualified audit
opinions issued by KPMG and Da Hua Certified Public
Accountant (Special General Partnership) in respect of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2013 prepared in
accordance with IFRS and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises of the PRC respectively, and raised
no objection to such reports.

Connected transactions

The Supervisory Board reviewed the connected
transactions between the Group and SINOMACH and
its subsidiaries and its respective connected persons
during the reporting period, and was of the opinion that
all the connected transactions complied with the relevant
requirements of the Stock Exchange, and that the pricing
of the connected transactions was reasonable, open
and fair and there was not any matter prejudicial to the
interests of the Company or Shareholders.

Implementation of the resolutions of General
Meetings

During the Year and up to the date of this annual
report, the member of the Supervisory Board attended
five General Meetings and sit in on eleven meetings
of the Board, exercising supervision in respect of the
lawfulness and compliance of the procedures of the
matters considered by the Board meetings.

The Supervisory Board made no objection to the
reports and motions tabled at the general meetings and
considered that the Board earnestly implemented the
resolutions approved by the general meetings.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

EEEgRE

In 2014, the Supervisory Board will continue to carry out 20145 - BEFEKIBERENE -
its fiduciary duties to implement effective supervision on NAER - BEEeZERAUNME
the Company, its Directors and senior management in MR BEBRE  EEEEH
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies FERA AR - EEE=ENS
Law, the Articles of Association, the Terms of Reference BEREEMRAEIEES - AR
for the Supervisory Board and the Listing Rules; and pay IR ANTIRNEENRNEIRIEN
close attention to the operation and management status WEERABRERENERE
of the Company as well as any significant development HIUBERAATINAENEZEE - IF
of the Company, so as to facilitate the profit growth of BEHEZBRRELERFHF
the Company and to dutifully protect the interests of all e
Shareholders and the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Board AEEEE D

QUAN Huagiang 2ER

Chairman of the Supervisory Board EEFeFE

Beijing, the PRC, March 24, 2014 FREJE R - 2014F3 A24H
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. SUN Bai (%#)

Mr. SUN, aged 56, was appointed as the chairman and an
executive Director of the Company on April 19, 2013, and the
party secretary of the Communist Party of China committee
(“CPC Committee”) (2ZE52) on February 18, 2013. He
has more than 30 years of management experience. From
November 1980 to January 1994, he worked in Changchun
Testing Machine Institution (KZ&ERERMEIFFTAT). Mr. SUN
joined Zhonggong Electrical and Mechanical Development
Corporation (f TH#EEE 4B/ F]) in January 1994 and then
served as its general manager from May 1994 to June 1999.
He worked as the general manager of China North Industrial
Equipment Corporation (FEIILF TEEELLAF]), which
changed its name to China North Industrial Equipment Co. Ltd.
(PEHL A TEEFHE AR AT), from June 1999 to August 2005.
He joined China National Complete Engineering Corporation
(FPEKETIRERAT) (“CNCEC”), which is an enterprise
established in the PRC and wholly-owned by China National
Machinery Industry Corporation (FF BI#4% T 2 £ B B[R A 7))
(“SINOMACH?”"), as its general manager in August 2005 and
also served as its chairman of the board from December 2011.
On March 14, 2013, Mr. SUN has resigned as the general
manager of CNCEC. Mr. SUN obtained a master degree of
economics from Jilin University (ZF#MAZ) in 1993. He is a
senior economist.

Mr. ZHANG Chun (&%)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 45, is currently an executive Director
and the president of the Company, and was appointed on
March 16, 2012. In July 1991, he joined China National
Electric Equipment Corporation (FBE T&#E#£ 2 7]), the
predecessor of China National Electric Engineering Co., Ltd.
(FEEHIRARAQF) (“CNEEC”), as a sales representative
and worked in that company until August 1993. Mr. ZHANG
then joined our Company, and held various positions from
August 1993 to May 2002, including sales representative,
project manager, representative and chief representative of
the Representative Office of our Company in Bangladesh.
After returning to China, Mr. ZHANG joined China National

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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ES EE SAEEAERREES

Machinery & Equipment Corporation Group (77 Bl#H 2
(5:&) 2 7)), the predecessor of SINOMACH, in May 2002 as
the director of the department of operational management.
Mr. ZHANG later became the director of the department of
engineering and served at that position until August 2011. Mr.
ZHANG was the vice president of our Company from August
2011 until March 2012. Currently, Mr. ZHANG is also the
chairman of China Machinery International Engineering Design
& Research Institute Co., Ltd. (FH# B TR ER AR
HEAT), a subsidiary of the Company and the chairman
of China Machinery & Equipment (HK) Co., Ltd. (F° B##% &
#HBEBABMR AT, a subsidiary of the Company. In 1991, Mr.
ZHANG graduated from Tsinghua University (& AZ) with
a bachelor’'s degree in thermal engineering. Mr. ZHANG is a
senior engineer.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WANG Zhian (E£8%)

Mr. WANG, aged 63, is currently a non-executive Director
of the Company, and was appointed on January 13, 2011.
He has over 30 years of experience in the electricity and
mechanical engineering industries. From January 1977 to
June 1999, Mr. WANG served at China Machinery Industry
Third Installation Engineering Corporation (R E#4% T2 %=
ZHE T2 7)), which was a subsidiary of China Machinery
Industry Installation Corporation (Ff B#4 T 3 2 848 N 7))
and held various positions at the same company, including
technician, engineer, manager of the engineering department,
vice manager and manager.

From June 1999 to June 2001, Mr. WANG was promoted
to vice general manager and then general manager of China
Machinery Industry Installation Corporation. Subsequently, in
June 2001, China Machinery Industry Installation Corporation
changed its name to China CMIIC Engineering & Construction
Corporation (R EI#MH T 2K LLA7F]), a subsidiary of
SINOMACH, and Mr. WANG served as the general manager
of that company until September 2010. Mr. WANG has been
a director of China Perfect Machinery Industry Corp., Ltd. (FF
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BB M T ¥R BRAE]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH,
since September 2010 and was a director of China Power
Engineering Co., Ltd. (R & L2k 5 BRAF]), a subsidiary
of SINOMACH, from December 2010 to November 2011. In
1976, Mr. WANG completed his studies in electric machinery
and apparatus and graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
(AL ZEAE). Mr. WANG is a professorial engineer.

Mr. YU Benli (R7438)

Mr. YU, aged 60, is currently a non-executive Director of the
Company, and was appointed on February 20, 2014. He has
more than 30 years of experience in machinery industry. From
June 1977 to December 1979, Mr. YU served at The People’s
Bank of China, Nanjing Branch. From December 1979 to
October 1983, he served at Jiangsu Machinery Equipment
Import & Export Corporation (TR E# H O RF]), a
subsidiary of the Company. From October 1983 to January
1988, Mr. YU served at Sino American Machinery Corporation
CERE M AR A F), a subsidiary of the Company and was
stationed in the United States. From January 1988 to April
2013, he served at SUMEC Group Corporation (7T & &k =
£ B2 7)), a subsidiary of SINOMACH and the predecessors
of which are Jiangsu Machinery Equipment Import & Export
Corporation (JT&r# MK 23 H O /25]) and China Jiangsu
Machinery Equipment Import & Export Corporation (FFz%/T
BRI R D £ E A F)). He held a number of positions
including assistant to general manager, deputy general
manager, general manager and chairman. Currently, Mr. YU
is also the chairman of China Perfect Machinery Industry
Corp., Ltd. (FEDHZE#EM TERKD AR A7), a subsidiary
of SINOMACH, chairman of China Machine Tool Sales and
Technology Services Co., Ltd. (I BIH#E R $5 & ST RS BR A
7)), a subsidiary of SINOMACH and director of China National
Automotive Industry International Corporation (41 Bl 55 T ¥
BE1EBBR AR (“CNAICO”), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. Mr.
YU graduated from Nanjing Jinling Vocational University (R %=
M & ERE KX E) with a degree in business operation. He is a
senior international business specialist.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (3R {8 &)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 61, is currently a non-executive Director
of the Company, and was appointed on February 20, 2014.
He has more than 30 years of experience in equipment
manufacturing industry. He began his career with Zhejiang
Automotive Industrial Corporation (#I&AE LN A) in
July 1980 and was promoted to assistant manager in August
1986. In April 1988, Mr. ZHANG was appointed as county
magistrate of Zhejiang Province Yongjia County People’s
Government (/T4 k3B AREAT). From May 1990 to
August 1998, he held the positions of deputy general manager
and general manager of China Automotive Industrial Import
& Export Zhejiang Branch (FEI/RE TEETF AT AF), a
subsidiary of SINOMACH. From August 1998 to February
2012, he was the general manager of China Automotive Import
& Export Corporation (4 B /38 i 1 O 422 7)), a subsidiary of
SINOMACH. Since February 2012, Mr. ZHANG has been the
chairman of CNAICO, a subsidiary of SINOMACH. Mr. ZHANG
has been a director of CNEEC, a subsidiary of SINOMACH
since November 2, 2011 and a director of China National
Complete Engineering Corporation, a subsidiary of SINOMACH
since December 29, 2011. In 2000, Mr. ZHANG graduated
from Wuhan University of Technology (EVEIE T K2) with a
degree in business administration. Mr. ZHANG is a professional
senior engineer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Li (2/)

Mr. LIU, aged 58, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, and was appointed on January
13, 2011. He was a teacher at the department of physics,
the Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel (At FEM#EZEPT) from
September 1984 to January 1986. From January 1986 to
date, Mr. LIU has been holding various teaching positions
at the Guanghua School of Management (J¢ZE &% &),
and its predecessor, the department of economics of the
school of economics and management (4875 E257 48075 & 12
%), Peking University, including lecturer, associate professor,
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professor, supervisor for doctoral students, the director of the
finance department and a director of the MBA program at the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. Mr. LIU
is also a deputy director of the Research Center of Finance &
Securities at Peking University.

Currently, Mr. LIU is an independent non-executive director
of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd. (FE)A&RIT
&1 B BR A R]), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1618), and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601618); and an independent director
of Bohai Ferry Co. Ltd. (8% ER DB R A F]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603167)
and an independent director of Langfang Development
Co., Ltd. (EBsHERERMH AR A A]), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600149), and Beijing
Oil HBP Group (EEHMEELREKMHERAR]), a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002554).

In 1982, Mr. LIU graduated from Peking University with a
bachelor’s degree in physics, and in 1984 with a master’s
degree in physics respectively. Mr. LIU is also a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (non-
practising).

Ms. LIU Hongyu (84 5)

Ms. LIU, aged 50, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and was appointed on January 13,
2011. From July 1985 to May 1988, she served as an officer
at the financial management office of the People’s Bank of
China Sichuan branch (I9JII%4 AR#E1T). From May 1988
to April 1993, Ms. LIU served as a legal consultant for the
Agricultural Bank of China (Beijing Branch) and from April
1993 to April 2004, she was the managing partner at Beijing
Tongda Law Offices (At RFIZERRIEMFN). In 2004, as a
result of the merger between Beijing Tongda Law Offices and
Jincheng Law Firm (& #{2RIE A1), Ms. LIU became a senior
partner, attorney at law of the merged firm, Beijing Jincheng &
Tongda Law Firm (1t 52 & 5[ = A0 FE 75 Fr). From April 2005
to June 2011, Ms. LIU served as an independent director for
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Founder Technology Group Corporation (7 IEFH¥ S B &5
R /A 7A]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600601). From June 2009 to June 2012, Ms.
LIU served as an independent director for Chongging Three
Gorges Water Conservancy and Electric Power Co., Ltd. (&
E=WoKkFEN (£E) BHERAT]), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600116). Currently,
Ms. LIU is an independent director of Chongging International
Enterprise Investment Co., Ltd. (EEBEEE 2R ERMH AR A
7)), now renamed as CRED-Chongshi Real Estate Corporation
Limited (FEEEMERKHBMRAF]) and a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000736) and an
external supervisor of the Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601169).
On June 10,2013, Ms, LIU has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Gome Electrical Appliances Holding
Limited (BEE2ZAR AR A 7)), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00493).

In 1985, Ms. LIU graduated from Southwest University of
Politics and Law (FAFEBUEKE) with a bachelor’'s degree
in law, as well as from the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences (FE#&RIZTIAITALR) in
economic law in 1998. Ms. LIU also obtained an EMBA degree
from the Guanghua School of Management, Peking University
in 2003.

Mr. FANG Yongzhong (77K &)

Mr. FANG, aged 62, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of our Company, and was appointed on July 29, 2011.
In September 1971, he joined the construction machinery
factory of the Shenyang Railway Bureau (%55 & ¥ /5 i T #
J&). Mr. FANG then joined the engineering department of the
Shenyang Railway Bureau (E[5# 5% T2E) and held
a number of positions within the bureau including technician,
assistant engineer, engineer, vice section chief, section chief,
vice departmental director and departmental director between
February 1977 and August 1994.
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Mr. FANG was appointed as a vice director of the Shenyang
sub-bureau of the Shenyang Railway Bureau in August 1994
and between August 1994 and December 1999, he was
also general manager of Shenyang Engineering Corporation
of the Shenyang Railway Bureau. From December 1999 to
December 2003, Mr. FANG served at Shenyang Railway
Engineering Construction Group Co., Ltd. (BFF#EKE TI2ERE
[EPR 2 R]) as the chairman of the board and general manager.
From December 2003 to March 2008, Mr. FANG held various
positions at China Railway No.9 Group Co., Ltd. (F#E B
£E AR 2AA]) including director, vice general manager and
vice chairman of the board of directors. From March 2008
to December 2012, Mr. FANG was also an external director
of China Railway Science & Industry Group (F#E Rl TEBEA
R A7) (“CRSIG”), China Railway No. 5 Engineering Group
Co., Ltd. (FEER (K£E) BRAF]) (“China Railway No.5
Bureau”), China Overseas Engineering Group Co., Ltd. ([
BHNTIRBMRE MR E]) (“COVEC”) and China Railway & Airport
Construction Group Corporation (P BIF M ZEBERREE
BRAT]) (“CACCC”) and is a supervisor and the chairman
of the supervisory board of China Railway Construction and
Engineering Group (F#3E T& B BR A R]) (‘CRCEG”). These
five companies are subsidiaries of China Railway Group
Limited (FF BIAP #A% 5 B BR A 71), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00390) and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601390).

As an external director, Mr. FANG participates in board
meetings of CRSIG, China Railway No.5 Bureau, COVEC
and CACCC, representing the interests of the respective
shareholder, China Railway Group Limited. However, Mr. FANG
is not involved in the day to day management of CRSIG, China
Railway No.5 Bureau, COVEC and CACCC. As a supervisor
and the chairman of the supervisory board of CRCEG,
Mr. Fang participates in meetings of the supervisory board and
the board of directors of CRCEG, representing the interests
of the shareholder, China Railway Group Limited. However,
Mr. FANG is not involved in the day to day management of
CRCEG.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT

Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

ES B 5AEEAERREER

5 ER10945 8 A AT BIE R B K
BEGDREIBE - WHN1994F8A
£1999F 12 AN EG K BER T
BB RFEMRLLIE - 7£1999F 128
Z2003F12H M - FEENMABE
HRIEEREEARARELTES
R FR AR - f£2003F 127 £2008
FIAM FEERPENLREESR
RAREETRBY  B2EEE - &2
MREBERBIEERSE - £2008F3H
Z2012F12H - FRETEH H R
IT&EFRAA ([PHEBMIER]) -
RiEFAR(EE) BRAA(FEAR
Bl FEEINTRERET AR
([PBEGINTRERAF]]) RFBEFEMR
TEHRESEEERAT ([FEPEM
EHEEFZAA]) MINEES - RBE
BISEBRAR ([FEETEE])
WEEREESEER EARAAAE
MR ERR EBESFR S LT
/9 A B AR 8 AR B PR A &) (B S PR
MAER £ 00390 EEBER TR
ZRA5 : 601390) WWEB AR °

ERINFES  TERENFIKNKREER
REREBRDAERARNED - 20
FEMTIEE - PEAR - FEES
TRARRTETPEHNEBRRAT]
MEEFESH - A HAEETS A
RENTER - PEER - PRSI
TRARRTETPENEBRRAA]
MEFEERE - FATHETISRENE
EREEEIRE HEERKERSD
BREKNARARNER S 8P
HETSENEEeREFTEEH -
R AERET2EPHETEEDN
AREE -



Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

EE B s EEAERESR

Mr. FANG completed his studies in railway engineering (L2
ZAEBETEEE) and graduated from the Shanghai Railway
Institute (/& #{3E22F7) in 1977, and also obtained an EMBA
in decision-making management from International East-West
University (3£ BIBIFR 3R 78 75 A ZRZK EFEE8) in December 1995.
Mr FANG is a senior engineer and a registered national first
class architect.

Mr. WU Tak Lung (RE#)

Mr. WU, aged 48, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, and was appointed on February 20,
2014. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of Hong Kong Securities Institute
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. WU was awarded
the bachelor degree of Accounting by the Hong Kong Baptist
University and the master degree of Finance jointly by the
University of Manchester and the University of Wales.

Mr. WU had worked in an international accounting firm, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, for five years, and was then employed by
several listed and private companies in Hong Kong as head
of corporate finance and executive director. Mr. WU currently
served as an independent non-executive director of Aupu Group
Holding Company, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0477), Beijing Media Corporation
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1000), Valuetronics Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange and First
Tractor Company Limited, a company listed on both the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00038), and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601038). Moreover,
he was an independent non-executive director of China Water
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 1129), Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1868) and iMerchants Limited (stock code:
8009), all of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu is currently a member of Jiangsu People’s Political
Consultative Committee, member of the Council and the Court
of Hong Kong Baptist University, the honorary chairman of the
North Kwai Chung Scout and the standing director of Zhaoging
and Shaoguan Youth Association.
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IV. SUPERVISORS

Mr. QUAN Huagiang (2% 4)

Mr. QUAN, aged 43, is currently a Supervisor of the Company,
and was appointed on January 13, 2011. He worked in
the finance department of Beijing Yanshan Petrochemical
Corporation (At R#F(LAMIILITAR]) from August 1991 to
July 1994. From July 1994 to October 1997, Mr. QUAN was
initially employed as an accountant and then in May 1995,
he became manager of the finance department of Universal
Import and Export Company (FF 4% 38 F3 # ) O /A 7] 81 7% 25) until
October 1997. Mr. QUAN was appointed by China National
Machinery Import & Export Corporation (“CMC”) (F Bl # ## i#
i A% E) as finance manager for the CMC Ukraine Office in
October 1997 and worked there until January 1999, and then
was appointed as manager of the finance department of CMC
General Electrical Parts Import and Export Company (7 # #
B AL I A A A]) by CMC until May 2001. In May 2001, Mr.
QUAN was appointed by China General Technology Group (1
B3 FA %17 % @) as general manager of the finance department
of China International Advertising Corporation (7 Bl BIFR & &
NREITEER) and subsequently was appointed as manager
of the funds management department of the general finance
department of China General Technology Group in May 2004.

From March 2005 to December 2006, Mr. QUAN served at
Sinomach Finance Co., Ltd. (B# 81 AR & T2 7)) as a vice
general manager. From September 2010 to August 2011, Mr.
QUAN was the chairman of the Supervisory Board of China
Automobile Trading Co., Ltd. (FE#EDTEEZE S HER R ).
Mr. QUAN has been serving as the head of the internal audit
inspection department of SINOMACH from December 2006
to present. Mr. QUAN has also been serving as the chairman
of the Supervisory Board of the Company since November
2008. Currently, Mr. QUAN is a member of the Supervisory
Board of Sinomach Automobile Co., Ltd. (B#;5HERE D AR A
7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600335).

In 1991, Mr. QUAN graduated from the Jiangxi Institute of
Finance and Economics (JLFABf#X2t) with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. Mr. QUAN is a senior accountant.
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Mr. QIAN Xiangdong (24 )

Mr. QIAN, aged 45, a senior accountant, is a supervisor of
the Company, and was appointed on January 13, 2011. He
joined the Education Department of the Ministry of Machinery
Industry in June 1997. From September 1998 to August
2006, Mr. QIAN held various positions, including officer, vice
manager, vice chief accountant and vice general manager at
China National Harvester Machinery Corporation (7 B0 Ui FE
W48 /2 8]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. From September 2006
to September 2008, Mr. QIAN served as an financial controller
of the Tianjin Design & Research Institute of Electric Drive
(REBREHREHAITH), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. Since
2008, Mr. QIAN has been serving as a vice general manager
and chief financial officer of China United.

Mr. BAI Ming (H 89)

Mr. BAI, aged 46, is currently a supervisor of the Company and
was appointed on January 7, 2011. In March 1992, Mr. BAI
joined the Company and was employed as an accountant at
the finance department of the Company until December 1999.
From December 1999 to September 2005, he was employed
as an accountant at CMEC International Engineering Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. BAI was a vice general
manager of the project auditing division of the Company
from September 2005 to May 2007. He was the director of
the project auditing division of the audit department of the
Company from May 2007 to September 2009 and has been a
vice general manager of the audit department of the Company
since September 2009. Mr. BAI graduated from the Beijing
Institute of Machinery Industry (1t F#4% T2 E£67) in 1991,
majoring in industrial accounting and is a tax accountant,
an international accountant and a certified enterprise risk
manager.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. JIN Chunsheng (¥1&4%)

Mr. JIN, aged 57, is a vice president of our Company and
is in charge of our Company’s International Engineering
Contracting Business. Mr. JIN has over 30 years of experience
in the machinery and equipment industry and has held various
positions within our Company. Mr. JIN joined our Company in
February 1982, and he worked as a sales representative from
February 1982 to August 1986. During such period, Mr. JIN
also studied English for almost one year at the Tianjin Institute
of Foreign Languages (K)Z/MNEIFEZF). From August 1986 to
August 1989, Mr. JIN was assigned by our Company to work
as a project manager of American Machinery. After returning
to China in August 1989, Mr. JIN was appointed as director of
the department responsible for the export of complete sets of
equipment until June 1999, and was subsequently promoted
to a vice general manager of CMEC International Engineering
until November 2001. Mr. JIN was a vice general manager of
China Machinery-building International Corporation (FF Bl # 4
BN R TS YE4E 2 B)) from November 2001 to December
2004 and was appointed as a vice president of our Company
in December 2004. In 1982, Mr. JIN obtained his bachelor’s
degree in hydraulic machinery from Gansu University of
Technology (H&EE T2 KXE). Mr. JIN is a professorial engineer.

Mr. ZHANG Jianguo (3RZE)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 53, is a vice president of our Company and
is in charge of our Company'’s trade and other business. Prior
to joining our Company, Mr. ZHANG was a lecturer at Peking
University (At AEZ) from July 1987 to May 1991. In May
1991, Mr. ZHANG joined our Company and he was appointed
as a vice general manager of the department of human
resources and education of our Company in June 1993. Mr.
ZHANG was subsequently promoted as a vice director of the
general office of our Company and held that position from
December 1993 to January 1998. In 1998, Mr. ZHANG was
appointed as a vice general manager of CMEC Tendering,
and was promoted to the general manager thereof in July
2001 and held that position until June 2007. In March 2005,
Mr. ZHANG was also appointed as an assistant president of
our Company. Mr. ZHANG has been a vice president of our
Company since May 2006. Mr. ZHANG is a senior economist
and graduated from Peking University with a master’s degree
in history in 1987.
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Mr. ZHOU Yamin (B R)

Mr. ZHOU, aged 50, is the chief financial officer of our
Company. Mr. ZHOU took various positions in China Machinery
Industry Installation Company (F BE## T 2L 54N 7F)
from October 1983 to June 2001, including bookkeeper
of the finance department, accountant, vice departmental
director of the finance department and manager of the finance
department. From June 2001 to February 2002, Mr. ZHOU
served as deputy chief accountant and manager of the
department of financial assets for China CMIIC Engineering &
Construction Corporation. From February 2002 to December
2004, Mr. ZHOU was appointed as the chief accountant of
China CMIIC Engineering & Construction Corporation and
from December 2004 to July 2011, he served as vice general
manager and chief financial officer for China CMIIC Engineering
& Construction Corporation. In July 2011, Mr. ZHOU joined our
Company and was appointed as the chief financial officer on
July 29, 2011. Mr. ZHOU graduated from Beijing Technology
and Business University and the Open University of China (it
RIEAREMPREESIEAL) with a bachelor’s degree in
management in July 2004, majoring in accounting. Mr. ZHOU
is a senior accountant, a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (non-practising), an international
certified practicing accountant and a senior international
finance manager.

Mr. WANG Tianyi (£ X&)

Mr. WANG, aged 53, is currently vice president of our Company
(appointed in January 2014). He is responsible for the general
management of the Company. Mr. WANG has over 30 years
of experience in financial management. Mr. WANG joined our
Company in January 2014. Before joining our Company, during
the period from October 1980 to February 1982, Mr. WANG
served as an officer at the business division of the finance
department under the Ministry of First Machinery Industry.
During the period from February 1982 to December 1986,
Mr. WANG served as an officer at the business division of the
finance department in MMI. During the period from December
1986 to August 1988, Mr. WANG served as an officer at the
auditing division directly under the auditing bureau of the
National Machinery Industry Committee. From August 1988
to August 1991, Mr. WANG served as the deputy director of
the office of the auditing bureau of National Audit Office in
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the Ministry of Mechanical and Electronic Industry, he was
subsequently promoted as the chief of the general division
of such auditing bureau. From April 1993 to May 1998, Mr.
WANG served as director of the auditing division directly
under the auditing bureau of National Audit Office in MMI.
Thereafter, Mr. WANG served as the deputy general manager
of the auditing department in China National Machinery and
Equipment (Group) Company during the period from May
1998 to August 1998, he was appointed as the deputy
general manager and the director of the financial department
of that company in August 1998. During the period from
August 1999 to May 2002, Mr. WANG served as the general
manager of the financial department of that company, and he
was appointed as the director of asset financial department
during the period from May 2002 to October 2003. During
the period from October 2003 to December 2010, Mr. WANG
served as deputy general manager, financial controller and
secretary of the discipline inspection committee of China
National Electric Equipment Corporation. During the period
from December 2010 to January 2014, Mr. WANG served as
deputy general manager, financial controller and secretary
of the discipline inspection committee of China National
Electric Engineering Co., Ltd.. Mr. WANG graduated from the
Correspondence Teaching College of Renmin University of
China majoring in industrial accounting in 1987. Mr. WANG is
a senior accountant.

Ms. WANG Hong (EA4L)

Ms. WANG, aged 51, is currently vice president of our Company
(appointed in January 2014). She is responsible for international
engineering contracting business. Ms. WANG has over 30 years of
experience in power transmission and transformation engineering
and transformation of urban power grid. Ms. WANG joined our
Company in June 2006. Before joining our Company, during the
period from January 1984 to January 1987, Ms. WANG served
as project manager of machinery research institute of machinery
department. From January 1987 to January 1991, Ms. WANG
served as project manager of China Automatic Control System
Corporation (7 B B8 B)R 42 HI| 245482 1), From January 1991 to
January 1996, Ms. WANG was appointed as project manager of
China Machinery-Building International Corporation. From January
1996 to January 2006, she served as an assistant to general
manager and deputy general manager of the second engineering
department, general manager of the fourth engineering department

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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and deputy general manager of that company. From June 2006
to May 2010, Ms. WANG served as deputy general manager
and general manager of the third business department of China
National Machinery & Equipment Export Corporation. From May
2010 to January 2012, Ms. WANG served as an assistant to
general manager of our Company and general manager of the
third engineering business department, and she has also served
as general manager of CMEC International Engineering Co., Ltd.
since January 2012. Ms. WANG graduated from the Jilin University
of Technology majoring in computer science in 1984. Ms. WANG
is a professorial engineer.

Mr. LI Jingkai (X))

Mr. LI, aged 44, is currently vice president of our Company
(appointed in January 2014). He is responsible for international
engineering contracting business. Mr. LI joined our Company
in August 1991. Mr. LI has over 20 years of experience in
engineering contracting of automatic control and electric
projects. During the period from August 1991 to April 2001, Mr.
LI had his internship in storage and transportation department
of China National Machinery & Equipment Export Corporation,
and worked as salesman and business representative of
engineering department of that company. During the period
from April 2000 to April 2001, Mr. LI was appointed as general
site representative of generator no.4 of power station in
Pakistan. From April 2001 to January 2005, Mr. LI served as
deputy general manager of the first engineering department
in China National Machinery & Equipment Export Corporation.

During the period from January 2005 to February 2007,
Mr. LI served as deputy general manager and general manager
of the second international engineering department under the
first engineering department of our Company. Thereafter, Mr.
LI served as deputy general manager of the first engineering
business department of China National Machinery & Equipment
Export Corporation during the period from February 2007 to
May 2010. He was promoted and worked as general manager
of that company from August 2007 to May 2010. Mr. LI
has served as an assistant to general manager and general
manager of the first engineering business department of our
Company since May 2010. Mr. LI graduated from Beijing
Institute of Technology majoring in automatic control in 1991.
Mr. LI is a senior engineer.
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VL.

Mr. CHEN Minjian (FRER &)

Mr. CHEN, aged 58, serves as secretary to our Board and joint
company secretary of our Company. In 1978, Mr. CHEN joined
our Company as a sales representative. Mr. CHEN served as
a vice president of American Industry Inc. (2B 22 7)) from
August 1985 to December 1989 in the US and subsequently,
Mr. CHEN was appointed as a vice president for Oversea
Resources Corporation Limited (Z=EIZ£f£ /A 7)) in Thailand from
January 1990 to August 1992. Upon his return to the PRC, Mr.
CHEN served as a vice general manager of the department of
the exhibition and information of our Company from September
1992 to December 1995. Mr. CHEN then served respectively as
a vice general manager and executive vice general manager of
CMEC Expo from January 1996 to June 2009. From September
2009 to January 2013, Mr. Chen was a vice director of the office
of company reorganization of our Company as well as serving as
a vice director of the general office of our Company from January
2011 to June 2011. From June 2011 to November 2011, Mr.
CHEN was the director of the general office and became the
secretary to the Board of our Company since July 2011. In 1978,
Mr. CHEN completed his studies in international trade and English
and graduated from the University of International Business and
Economics ($f5MEEE 5K E). Mr. CHEN is a senior economist.

EMPLOYEES
As at December 31, 2013, the Group had 2,633 employees in

total. The following table sets forth the number of employees
according to different job functions:
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2,633%EE » TRFIIZTFBAEES
DHEEHRE

Number of

employees

EE#E

Business Staff E$ YN 2,633
International Engineering Contracting Business B[R IR R B ER 1,655
Trading Business S E 504
Other Businesses H % 174
Management, finance and administration EFE - BEMITH 261
Others Hit 39
Total st 2,633

The following tables set forth the Group’s staff structure by
geographical location, academic qualification, designation and
age, respectively:
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Analysis of the Group’s staff by geographical location

B IE(I B 2] 7 i) 7 5 B 8 T 57

No. Geographical location Number of staff Percentage
wiE WENE EIgH ERil4
1 China H 2,327 88.4%
2 Asia (excluding China and Turkey) Sl (e fETE & 92 3.5%
THEE)

3 Africa FEM 134 51%
4 Europe (including Turkey) BUM (B35 H 3 39 1.5%
5 North America JEZ=M 3 0.1%
6 South America EEFI 38 1.4%

Total aFt 2,633 100%

Analysis of the Group’s staff by academic qualification

BEBFE| 7 ) A EEE T T

No. Academic qualification Number of staff Percentage
wmy BE BIgH Aok
1 Postgraduate or above IR AEIA 596 22.6%
2 Undergraduate = =LV 1,546 58.7%
3 College diploma or below ERIGAT 491 18.7%
Total &5t 2,633 100%
Analysis of the Group’s staff by designation HIRTEZ 5 N EE S T 547
No. Designation Number of staff Percentage
fmear B BIgH Aot
1 Senior Grade =A% 453 17.2%
2 Intermediate Grade MR 695 26.4%
3 Junior Grade and below MR IAT 1,485 56.4%
Total &% 2,633 100%
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

=E

B sREEAERES

Analysis of the Group’s staff by age

BFHE D)7 EEE T W

No. Age Number of staff Percentage
me FR BIgH Aot
1 56 years old and above 567k 8% A 134 5.1%
2 46-55 years old 462 555% 510 19.4%
3 36-45 years old 362 455% 562 21.3%
4 35 years old and below 3558 AT 1,427 54.2%

Total &t 2,633 100%
1. Staff Incentives EEXE

To cope with its development, the Company has
established a comprehensive accountability system, a
performance appraisal system for all employees and
a multi-level incentive mechanism. The Company
has optimized responsibilities and job positions of its
functional departments. It prepared the “Functional
Department Job Position Description (8% A& 30F @&z 75
RHE)” and the “Model of Competency and Quality for
the Functional Management Members (BtAEEIE A B 48
HEEER” It also completed the preliminary stage of
the “Structure Planning for Job Positions in Functional
Departments (B:AEERPI A 4R LR 275 %)”. Meanwhile,
scientific evaluation tools were used to make a preliminary
assessment and classification of the value of the job
positions in the functional departments for. Through
clearly locating position-oriented performance targets
and formulating performance standards, the Company
has managed to assess employees’ performance in an
objective manner. By materializing reward and penalty
in the performance-related portion of the employees’
remuneration, the Company is able to boost the potential
and morale of employees, thus achieving the coexistence
of incentives and restraints.

Staff Remuneration

Staff’s remuneration comprises of basic salary and
performance salary. The performance salary is determined
according to the assessment of performance of the whole
staff.
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Staff Training

We provide systematic and effective training for our
employees. We provide sustainable and specific education
training for our senior management, middle management
as well as technical and operational staff with a view to
improving the quality and ability of our staff at different
levels.

To regulate the management of staff training, the
Company has formulated comprehensive measures for
administering employees’ education and training, which
effectively promote the establishment of the Company’s
education training system. The Company focuses on
the training needs of the senior management, middle
management, technical and operational staff as well as
the development needs of the Company when formulating
and implementing education training programmes. The
Company aims to implement a diversified training system
for the staff so as to encourage the staff to participate
in training.

The training provided by the Company in 2013 was
divided into six categories: training for middle and senior
management, training for core operational staff, training
for core technical staff, relevant professional knowledge
talks, selective training and orientation training for new
staff.

Guarantee of Staff Rights

The Group strictly complies with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations and makes contributions to various
pension contribution plans, medical insurance plans,
unemployment insurance plans, maternity insurance plans
and personal injury insurance plans.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B %A RS

cnsc

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Machinery Engineering Corporation
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Machinery Engineering Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 166 to
312, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at December 31, 2013, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at December 31, 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

March 24, 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHtEeRER

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

AARESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥TFT ARETT
Revenue WA 4 21,426,272 21,296,063
Cost of sales SHE A (17,683,814) (17,564,553)
Gross profit EF 3,742,458 3,731,510
Other revenue E g A 5 12,350 11,985
Other income, net HUg A F58 6 353,476 10,130
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R hinEHERAxT (1,157,660) (1,086,621)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (556,996) (478,253)
Other operating expenses HEmg s (65,476) (125,509)
Profit from operations R R 2,328,152 2,063,242
Finance income B UL A 737,865 582,992
Finance expenses B iR (401,713) (30,270)
Net finance income B TS U A FRE 7 336,152 552,722
Share of profits less losses FE (R & N B FRUEs 18
of associates (199) (86)
Profit before taxation RR % A5 Al 7 2,664,105 2,615,878
Income tax P57 8 (703,864) (687,716)
Profit for the year FREF 1,960,241 1,928,162
Other comprehensive income FREMEZGE W :
for the year:
ltems that will not be reclassified TSWEHEE
to profit or loss: EmmIEE
Remeasurements of defined BT ERTEREERT
benefit obligations 21,710 =
ltems that may be reclassified MRBERREHED
subsequently to profit or loss: ZiBmmIER ¢
Exchange differences on translation — #Z &N B A F)
of financial statements of BB TS SRR E
overseas subsidiaries K IE 5 =28 (6,965) (3,720)
Total comprehensive income FRRE W BT
for the year 1,974,986 1,924,442

The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHfGEE AR

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

AARESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR#¥FT AREFT
Profit attributable to: RAEER
Shareholders of the Company ZIN/NET S 1,959,257 1,927,689
Non-controlling interests R 984 473
Profit for the year F Rz A 1,960,241 1,928,162
Total comprehensive income HEKZRERERN
attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company Vi /N )33 1,974,823 1,925,325
Non-controlling interests eI M 163 (883)
Total comprehensive income FRGEWREEE
for the year 1,974,986 1,924,442
Basic and diluted earnings ﬁﬂﬁ%zﬁ&_ﬁﬁgﬂ
per share (RMB) (ARHT) 12 0.47 0.58

The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEEERR

At December 31, 2013 ¢ 7201312 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR¥TFT AR For
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - RE K&l 14 485,012 444,205
Investment properties A 15 14,163 15,711
Lease prepayments FEMEE B 16 1,788,109 1,827,148
Intangible assets mILEE 17 7,919 7,659
Interest in associates /N b 2 215 413
Other non-current assets HEMIEmBEE 19 343,944 253,952
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E th & WA 21 53,382 39,050
Construction contracts BEa REWNKIE 22 3,201,943 4,114,329
Deferred tax assets BEETIRE E 29(b) 154,577 131,311
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 6,049,264 6,833,778
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 20 212,735 225,731
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E th & WK IE 21 4,894,653 5,510,059
Construction contracts 2iEa A EloRIE 22 2,372,575 3,191,436
Restricted deposits PR 17 5K 23 251,435 447,351
Time deposits with original maturity — Ra %53 A 836 =&
over three months "€ BiTF 3R 3,622,336 6,472,079
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 24 14,550,166 12,089,395
Total current assets REEEMEE 25,903,900 27,936,051
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings &5 25 234,307 133,920
Receipts in advance TE U R IE 26 7,021,664 12,710,410
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E b FIE 27 12,227,087 10,943,270
Retirement and other supplemental AR OR N H At 7 7048 FI = 75
benefit obligation 28(a) 30,870 31,660
Income tax payable FEFTIS B 29(a) 276,013 451,258
Total current liabilities REEEARE 19,789,941 24,270,518
Net current assets RBEEFHR 6,113,959 3,665,533
Total assets less current liabilities EE#AERABAE 12,163,223 10,499,311

The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial F176EH EF312E MM NZ S B HE
statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

At December 31, 2013 o 2013512 H31H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& A FERASN © AARESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥ T AREFr
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings BE 25 79,637 154,618
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b 5RIE 27 1,705 60,956
Retirement and other supplemental RIR R H b e 18 I 75
benefit obligation 28(a) 325,820 365,540
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBE E 29(b) - 774
Total non-current liabilities FREEERE 407,162 581,888
NET ASSETS BEE 11,756,061 9,917,423
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE 30
Share Capital (N 4,125,700 4,018,000
Reserves G 7,613,925 5,902,341
Total equity attributable to the AARRRELERERE
shareholders of the Company 11,739,625 9,920,341
Non-controlling interests FEERER 16,436 (2,918)
TOTAL EQUITY FERBE 11,756,061 9,917,423

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on
March 24, 2014.

Name: Sun Bai
HE B
Position: Chairman

The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial
statements.

EMR2014E3A24A K E =2t E W IR #E
FJzE -

Name: Zhang Chun

®ERE
Position: Director
F176E EFI12E MM i Thz F M K
H)—&B o
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Balance Sheet

EEEER

At December 31, 2013 ¢ 7201312 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥TFT ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - RE K&l 14 286,751 294,680
Investment properties "EYE 15 15,224 16,203
Lease prepayments HEERN KB 16 1,453,115 1,487,307
Intangible assets BmILEE 17 4,863 4,440
Investments in subsidiaries HIWBARINEE 18 1,959,665 1,780,915
Interest in associates NI 215 413
Other non-current assets HM3EmeEE 19 342,407 252,340
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E fib el s IE 21 50,186 4,383
Construction contracts BiEa REWKIE 22 3,136,275 3,973,699
Deferred tax assets RETIBEE 29(b) 97,847 67,863
Total non-current assets kRBEEHTE 7,346,548 7,882,243
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 20 5,361 27,611
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b Uz I8 21 3,766,502 4,282,918
Construction contracts S R EYGRIE 22 2,059,414 2,905,004
Restricted deposits SR HIF R 23 244,153 382,479
Time deposits with original maturity R4 HA A #8:8 =1& A
over three months HE BifFE R 3,491,951 6,315,902
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 24 12,907,621 10,707,249
Total current assets raEE#®E 22,475,002 24,621,163
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings 3 25 69,810 69,769
Receipts in advance TEYRIE 26 6,435,093 12,083,943
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FER IR 27 10,780,400 9,329,793
Retirement and other supplemental R OR B H At 47 70 48 FI 3= 75
benefit obligation 28(a) 23,950 24,570
Income tax payable FERTPR1S L 29(a) 226,735 384,792
Total current liabilities RBAEARE 17,535,988 21,892,867
Net current assets REBEEFHE 4,939,014 2,728,296
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAERABEE 12,285,562 10,610,539
The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial FA76E E F 3128 WM sE X E B 7SRk
statements. B —2p 5 o
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Balance Sheet

EERER

At December 31, 2013 ¢ 13201312 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& A FERASN © AARESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARETF T ARETFor
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Borrowings BE 25 72,858 147,081
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b 5RIE 27 1,705 23,501
Retirement and other supplemental RIR R H b e 18 I 75
benefit obligation 28(a) 243,200 276,990
Total non-current liabilities FRBAEAE 317,763 447 572
NET ASSETS FEE 11,967,799 10,162,967
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRHE 30
Share Capital &z 4,125,700 4,018,000
Reserves &t 7,842,099 6,144,967
TOTAL EQUITY EEBE 11,967,799 10,162,967

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 2 R2014F3 A24 B K E S & W IR

March 24, 2014, i3 o
Name: Sun Bai Name: Zhang Chun
HEBEH HERE
Position: Chairman Position: Director
The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial FA76E EF312E MM NZEHHHRE
statements. H)—ZB4 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHtRESE R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

AARESIR)

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

RAARFEL
Non-
Share Capital  Reserve  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve fund reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests equity
Bx  EARE  BEEE  EARE  RERA Nt FERER  BREE
RMB'000  RMB000  ARMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  ARMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANRETT ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFI
At January 1, 2012 R201261518 3,300,000 601,123 135,052 19,781 1,323,780 5,379,736 (6,841) 5,373,895
Changes in equity: EREE
Profit for the year ERGEF - - - - 1927689 1,927,689 473 1,928,162
Other comprehensive income b0 ey - - - (2,364) - (2,364) (1,356) (8,720)
Total comprehensive income TENRER = - - (2,364) 1927,689 1,925,325 (883) 1,024,442
Issuance of shares upon public offering, NREERD
net of issuing expenses (note 30(c)) NBRETER (W2300) 718,000 2,294,300 - - - 3,012,300 - 3,012,300
Capital contributions EREA - - - - - - 261 261
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHEAR - - - - - - 3,822 3,822
Distribution to the controlling shareholder of the ABRERMAR AEREE
CGompany before public offering Pk - - - - (42,782) (42,782) - (42,782)
Appropriation to reserves EIN - - 181,038 - (181,039) - - -
Dividends paid to shareholders DREYNGIEE
of the Company (note 30(b)) %8 (haow) - - - - (354,288 (354,238 - (354,239)
Dividends paid to non-controling R FHB AR
interests of subsidlaries ERRRE - - = = = = (2m) 277)
At December 31, 2012 20125128318 4,018,000 2,895,423 316,090 17417 2673411 9,920,341 (2,918 9,917,423
At January 1, 2013 R2013F151A 4,018,000 2,895,423 316,090 1,47 2,673,411 9,920,341 (2,918) 9,917,428
Changes in equity: EREE .
Profit for the year Em;ﬁﬂ = = = = 11959!257 1!9591257 984 1’960!241
Other comprehensive income Eiraka - - - (6,144) 21,710 15,566 (821) 14,745
Total comprehensive income TalReE = = - (6,144) 1,980,967 1,974,823 163 1,974,986
Issuance of shares upon public offering, NERERR - MR
net of issuing expenses (note 30(c)) BR (W#300) 107,700 411,726 - - - 519426 - 51942
Appropriation to reserves EIN - - 194,078 - (194,078) - 5 -
Dividends paid to shareholders RFRDARES
of the Company (note 30(b)) & (#2300 = - - - (674,965) (674,965 - (674,965)
Disposal of interests in a subsidiary RE-FHBARMNES
with loss in control (note 18(i) URERHIE (Wit180) - - - - - - 19315 19375
Dividends paid to non-controlling - FHEA AR
interests of subsidiaries EEORE - - - - - = (184) (184)
At December 31, 2013 R2013%125318 4,125,700 3,307,149 510,168 11,278 3,785,335 11,739,625 16,436 11,756,061

The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial
statements.

F176AEEI12EMNMEIZFHHREK

t—H5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥TFT AREFr
Cash flows from operating activities R E&EZEHNRESHRE
Profit before taxation BR A% AT A 2,664,105 2,615,878
Adjustments for: FEIFE
Depreciation e 7(c) 38,865 60,400
Amortization B 5K 7(c) 42,169 38,402
Impairment of trade and other B 5 R E AL
receivables FIBRVE 7(c) 59,398 123,004
Impairment of construction contracts &% A [A & U FR I8 R E 7(c) 5,476 2,164
Provision for foreseeable losses ZiEA RTERT R RS
on construction contracts 7(c) 53,971 2,788
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of BEMF  BEREE
property, plant and equipment B8 (W) F58 6 2,016 (17)

Net gains on disposal of an BEIFMBIRAE
unquoted equity security Hy Uk 2 F 5 6 (2,165) =

Net gains on disposal of interests BRE—RKMBRQ
in a subsidiary B R 2 Y W R 5 RR 6 (175,649) -
Finance income BRI A 7(a) (471,731) (306,581)
Finance expenses g 7(a) 7,279 10,758
Net foreign exchange losses SNEE E5 18 58 130,542 6,339
Dividend income g S A 5 (9,907) (9,745)
Net gains on foreign currency RHASNE S B R R %
forward exchange contracts 2 B = 5 5
and interest rate swaps 6 (178,056) (5,009)
Share of profits less losses il /NG]
of associates bl /JESZES?E 199 86
Operating profit before changes EEESEHA
in working capital Y 48 & 5 T 2,166,512 2,538,467
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /(EM) 12,996 (13,446)
Decrease in construction contracts BiEE REWERIER A 1,671,800 639,877
Decrease in trade and other 2 5 REAB U
receivables IR, 855,877 865,193
(Decrease)/increase in receipts RIE Cid), /& m
in advance (5,688,746) 2,394,388
Increase in trade and other payables =5 M FEfT
SRIEIE N 1,403,586 1,165,225
Decrease in retirement and other IRR R E Ath 4 7 48 A
supplemental benefit obligation E5RL (18,800) (14,200)
Cash generated from operations &E&EELAWRE 403,225 7,575,504
Income tax paid B ATEE 29(a) (903,149) (603,440)
The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial F176 B EF312E WM s T2 S #5HRK
statements. ) —Ef 5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BHRERER

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kg AR#FT AREFT
Net cash generated from RETEELENESFHE
operating activities (499,924) 6,972,064
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHHRESHRE
Payments for acquisition of property, W% - K=
plant and equipment WEEL 10k (91,480) (97,539)
Payments for acquisition of land LB+ 3 56 FR R RO SR8
use rights (152,763) (206,623)
Payments for acquisition of W B BT & EE M SR
intangible assets (2,586) (4,398)
Proceeds from/(payments for) HEERIINES R
settlement of foreign currency SEUESE Ry
forward exchange contracts and PSR, (R 30)
interest rate swaps 23,912 (1,717)
Prepaid consideration of an FETR AR AN 3 55
unquoted equity security RFESRE (105,400) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREY¥ K=
plant and equipment and LB RIEEYE
investment properties B FT 1S 508 1,723 992
Proceeds from disposal of an BEIERBRAES
unquoted equity security KPS 508 17,479 =
Net cash received from acquisition WEER—KM B AR
of investment in a subsidiary NIREMSHNIE S F5E - 4,291
Dividends received B U 8 9,907 9,745
Interest income received 2R B 482,514 272,310
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits & HFFR D (38 h0) 2,849,743 (2,516,862)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted SBRHFFRLD (35 m)
deposits 195,916 (57,631)
Net cash used in investing activities R&EEEFTANEREFHE 3,228,965 (2,597,432)
The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial F176BE EF 3128 MMt 3 Jh 5% Z 81 1%
statements. MR —ZBD
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHEERER

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

AARESIR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥FT AREFT
Cash flows from financing REMETHNRERE
activities
Net proceeds from issuance NRZBEERNH
of shares under the public offering FRS 2B F 58 519,426 3,012,300
Capital contributions BRI A - 261
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMTS A 211,471 138,623
Repayment of borrowings EEREE (180,248) (236,632)
Dividends paid to shareholders T AR B AR E
of the Company (674,965) (354,238)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BUGIEVNGIE S
interests of subsidiaries M E AR R (158) (28)
Interest paid [ SN (7,437) (10,851)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTR)/ E4L
financing activities BIR & IFRE (131,911) 2,549,435
Net increase in cash and HEeERESZEEY
cash equivalents 2 hniFEER 2,597,130 6,924,067
Cash and cash equivalents M1B1EWERE
at January 1 RASEEY 12,089,395 5,170,757
Effect of foreign exchange B =B B
rate changes (136,359) (5,429)
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31HWERE
at December 31 RESEEY 24 14,550,166 12,089,395

The notes on pages 176 to 312 form part of these financial F176 B EFI12E MM i Thz E M K

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

176

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ORGANIZATION

China Machinery Engineering Corporation (the “Company”)
was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on January 18, 2011 as a joint stock company with limited
liability as part of the reorganization (the “Reorganization”)
of China National Machinery & Equipment Import & Export
Corporation (the “Predecessor”), a state-owned enterprise.
The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are mainly
engaged in international construction contracting business
and trading business.

Prior to the Reorganization and establishment of the Company,
the Predecessor was the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group prior to the Reorganization, and
was wholly owned by China National Machinery Industry
Corporation (“SINOMACH”, R BI#i% TEXEEFRAA).
Pursuant to the Reorganization, the Company retained
all of the assets and liabilities of the Predecessor. Upon
establishment, the Company had a total of 3,300 million
issued ordinary shares, with a par value of RMB1.00 each.
The Company issued to SINOMACH 3,267 million shares, or
99% of the total issued shares, in exchange for all the assets
and liabilities of the Predecessor. The Company also issued
33 million shares, or 1% of the total issued shares, to China
United Engineering Corporation (“China United”, & BlBt& T2
‘A 1a]), a wholly owned subsidiary of SINOMACH, in exchange
for cash of RMB46,930,900.

On December 21, 2012, the Company became listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKSE”). On January 2, 2013, the over-allotment
option granted by the Company was fully exercised. The
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 107,700,000 H
shares at HKD5.40 each. Accordingly, a total of 10,770,000
domestic state-owned shares of RMB1.00 each owned by
SINOMACH and China United were converted into H shares on
a one-for-one basis and transferred to the National Council for
Social Security Fund of the PRC (“NSSF”). As at December 31,
2013, a total of 908,270,000 H shares were listed on HKSE.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S

1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
and Interpretations promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on HKSE. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The Group has adopted all those new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective for the accounting period beginning
January 1, 2013 in preparing the financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2013. The Group has not
early adopted any new and revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the accounting period beginning January 1,
2013 in the current or previous accounting period (see
note 36).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)) are
stated at their fair value.

AARESIR)

2. TESHHEREE

(a)

(b)

BREH

ZEPBBRERIIRBEEE S5 £
AlEEe ((EREFTEAES
2 ) PR R PR B E A B BIFR B
B £ ([BR Y5 &REE
Al (LA EEMEERANE
TABIRR B B S R - B &
ERRRE) AREE QB ERD
MEBEERMER  ZFWHR
RNTEBEMRAEF LR
Al ERNRESRE - AEBEM
RAMEZ ST HRBANT -

N B R R E 22013512 A
318 L FE KB 75 3K s B 54N
FTE®B2013641A1BHAKBHNS
R DD GoR S EiE N E
BB RS LR - NER
BMEEEASBESHBRER
K4 E2013FE1A1ERABN S
&1 HA RS 180 R AR R (R {38 B T e 48
&3] B BR B 7% i &5 22 A1) (R Md 3%
36) °

MHBROERELE

#H £2013F12A31H It F E &
EHMBREBEAEBEASE
BB A B EAERS o

AT GRERARAOFERLE
RELKAREE  METESET
A (RME2(h) BER A BT
ERRON
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(b) BABHMERNBREE (&)

178

(c)

(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the
Group’s presentation currency and the functional currency
of the Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC carrying
on the principle activities of the Group.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTHBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (d) SFTEHXREE
The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and B et £l BEEe e BHEIE
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the HTE] B BR B 7 2R YE Bl K2 35 B R
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. BI SR &S BB 5T - s X8|
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the RIEETNANEB R AR AT SR
Group’s financial statements: FTEAE AR EIRER - Ep - LT

BREANEENHHRRERE -

e Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial . BRa st ZE B F15F (1B 5]
statements - Presentation of items of other N HEHREZNZES — A
comprehensive income fir & Was 28 H £ 5 ]

e IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements . BR B 7 3R & 25 A 1057

[ & GFE k2% |
e IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities . PR B 75 3R &5 % Bl 351255

[ KRN B REH s |

e IFRS 13, Fair value measurement o BBR BT AR &5 LR FE135R
[ EFE ]

e  Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits . R ST X BIZE195% (K18
1) [1ES 57

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle o PBIRREI TS E LA R FE K
#2009F F2011 A H

e Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting o BRI HmELERFETHR (B

financial assets and financial liabilities SIR)BE A HE

ERZHEE]

None of the other developments are relevant to the BmEAE SRR E ENE

Group’s financial statements and the Group has not HER MASBETERARE

applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet A& &t BA A 1 R A R AE (Rl ¥ ET

effective for the current accounting period. AR R o

Annual Report 2013
2013FE 179



Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d) SFHREE (F)

180

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

EIRE 7 ERIFE 15 (15575) 51
Bi#Fkn 25 — Attir el "
Bry23 ]

The amendments require entities to present separately ZEBIRTE  NEEEEIKRE
the items of other comprehensive income that would BIERT  EEAZNBEAEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain WELEEEZNEMLES W
conditions are met from those that would never be FHREKRT@WESEREZR

reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in these financial statements has
been modified accordingly.

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and SIC-12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption
does not change any of the control conclusions reached
by the Group in respect of its involvement with other
entities as at January 1, 2013.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (F)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d) SETHEEE (&)

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by IFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards.
The adoption of IFRS 12 does not have any material
impact to the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS
18 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about
fair value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group * the Group has
provided those disclosures in note 31(e)(i). The adoption
of IFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the fair
value measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d) SFHREE (F)

Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits BB 22K E19% (A8155T)
[ESEF ]

Revised IAS 19 introduces a number of amendments o @ = Bl 551988 (BB E])

to the accounting for defined benefit plans. Among W Eh F U ZS 5t iljé_‘ﬁ T % 1EE

them, revised IAS 19 eliminated the “corridor method” 5] Hih - B et R E195%

182

under which the recognition of actuarial gains and losses
relating to defined benefit schemes could be deferred and
recognized in profit or loss over the expected average
remaining service lives of employees. Under the revised
standard, all actuarial gains and losses are required to be
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.
Revised IAS 19 also changed the basis for determining
income from plan assets from expected return to interest
income calculated at the liability discount rate, and
requires immediate recognition of past service cost,
whether vested or not.

As a result of the adoption of revised IAS 19, the
Group has changed its accounting policy with respect
to defined benefit plans, for which the corridor method
was previously applied. The impact of the retrospective
application of this change in accounting policy on the
balances at December 31, 2012 is RMB16,750,000.
The Directors of the Company consider this impact
to be immaterial and are of the view that it is not
meaningful to apply it retrospectively. Accordingly, the
Company recognized the impact of RMB16,750,000
in other comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

This change in accounting policy does not have any
material impact on current or deferred taxation and
earnings per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d) EHBREE (&)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to IFRS 1 and IASs 1, 16, 32 and 34, with consequential
amendments to other standards and interpretations.
The Group considers that the amendments of those five
standards do not have any material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 - Disclosures - Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognized financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments
and transactions, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with IAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on the Group’s financial statements because

ETBR B 7 3 A 2E R 1Y B K
20095 Z2011F 54
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SQﬁEE’Jﬁ EERREE -

A 52 B 70 2 51| B ] 3 4 4K 85
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the Group has not offset financial instruments, nor has SR S ERFE7TRA R E E K
it entered into master netting arrangement or similar B &= BEBRF T(T?FY*EMW:** ¢
agreement which is subject to the disclosures of IFRS 7 RN EZZ'H N ;TLKE = 1 B
during the periods presented. %#&%LEX@‘

(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (e) MEARKRFZERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Fﬁ% UNCIP=Si=E $'§ EE2 o
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, c WASEBERERZ2E -—RERK
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and %i‘kﬁﬁ—f B EES A Z B -

has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the group and
other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (e) MEBATIRFZERES (&)
(Continued)
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the RETBRRIMNIEE BTGB E
consolidated financial statements from the date that AeEEH4REE B I AS O
control commences until the date that control ceases. Wik o S E RN EBE R &
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and #®REHIEBFEREALEENRA
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions B2 5 P EE A AR R R E 2R R A
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial SERUSHIBREFLEE
statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group i KRNI FZ 5 BARESR
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized 548 B9 3K 85 77 % B R B 3R WA
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of B EENEIFEETD HER
impairment. BRI E D BB o
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a IS IR AR A HE
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the HEEELHNKEAR#ER - B
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not AEBWEERABAEZFTEAS
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those TR IEFMER A S EEEA
interests which would result in the Group as a whole NRERRAERESREAETE
having a contractual obligation in respect of those ENEREMF - RBBEEBEO
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. mE @ AEEGEEZE AR BN
For each business combination, the Group can elect to 2 JE P iR e 25 1k BT /B 2 B A9 A a5
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value RE & E R D Bt S ERIEER
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of Pz o

the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated R ERMAGHEERGBR
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity WERIER - A RRERRR
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. AR S D REY o JEIERE
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are WATEAEBOES  8KRZ
presented on the face of the consolidated statement FEBmBRENEE N SBEREE
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total R B AR AR R 2
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the HETHE - WS HirE W
year between non-controlling interests and the equity RE2Y c REFERESFEA
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of WEBEERHZEREANEME
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations AEE eRFaENNTE - I
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities BRBHF2Q 2R AHEESR
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with ERPEIREHAE -

notes 2(q) or 2(r) depending on the nature of the liability.

1 84 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(f)

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (see note 2(f)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(m)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

AARESIR)

2. TESHERBE (&)

(e)

(f)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(f) Associates (Continued) (f) HEAQT (&)

186

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2(m)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognized in profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognized in the other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Associates (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognized at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, interest in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)),
unless classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates, are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise. These investments in equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognized in the balance sheet at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(m)).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognized/derecognized on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognized immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(m)). Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives ranging from 20 to 35 years.
Any gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(w)(iv).

Other property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Other property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

AARESIR)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

1)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings 20-35 years
— Motor vehicles 3-10 years
— Office and other equipment 2-15 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated

on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part

is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset

and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(k) Intangible assets

(k)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see

note 2(m)).

Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortized from the date

they are available for use and their estimated useful lives

are as follows:

— software and others 2-5 years

Both the period and method of amortization are reviewed

annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bx

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such

a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (m) EERE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) BREAFFREREMEWL

and other receivables Al

Investments in equity securities and other current VA B 7N ok 8 §8 5k 2 71| BR ok

and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or 18 5 ] S B SRR A E

amortized cost or are classified as available-for-sale FRENREMRE MIERD

securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting BRI FIE S REERIE

period to determine whether there is objective EFAERERERENE

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of REE o RMENEESZERES

impairment includes observable data that comes to EAEE TSR HBREUT—

the attention of the Group about one or more of the TE s\ % T 5 18 = (Y ] B AR

following loss events: 5 -

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBALRERPBER

#;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or — EREMR - R
delinquency in interest or principal payments; BYHFERAS

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — B AR ESETT
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; HEBAfE5EA

- significant changes in the technological, market, — Bt W% KBEIOR
economic or legal environment that have an BIRBNEREHEE
adverse effect on the debtor; and EAERTFZE &

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair - BRAITARENARE
value of an investment in an equity instrument 3R K g sk R HA T Bk
below its cost. AR ERA o
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognized as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and interest
in associates accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial statement
(see note 2(f)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(m)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note
2(m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(m) EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) BREZBFRERBMENK
and other receivables (Continued) ERBAE (4E)
B EEMNEBREE - AME
AR EBEIZRA T TREE
RER (&)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognized as follows: (Continued)

194

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortized

S DA 5H A AR D1 AR O &
5 N E Al 2 R U RROR

cost, the impairment loss is measured as the FEMESBMEEMS
difference between the asset’s carrying amount HEEEIBEEERN
and the present value of estimated future cash IREERMGEFTARRIE S

flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognized as follows: (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognized in respect of receivables included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
and other receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognized in profit or loss.

AARESIR)

2. TESHEERBE (&)

(m) BEERIE (&)

(i)

R EHFRERAME RS
BrymtE (&)

EREECAAEER  AIE
MREBERRATIAERE
KER : (&)

WREBRNSENE
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHERE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(m) Impairment of assets (Continued) (m) EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) EfEEHE
Internal and external sources of information are AREBRSHEHREMA
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to BB INERE B R R - LARE
identify indications that the following assets may TENHE E =D IR R E B
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously £ AT RERAREEE
recognized no longer exists or may have decreased: A MEFERELRD
- property, plant and equipment; - W% BEIREE
- investment properties; — KREWE
- lease prepayments; — TENHEENE
- intangible assets; and - EREE R
- investments in subsidiaries and associates in — PREBEEAGBRAZH
the company’s balance sheet. Y= RN PS8 )
®E -
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable MFEERNEBETR - AJE
amount is estimated. HETEEM A IES5E o
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. TESHERBE (&)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(m) BEERI(E (&)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(i) REZERE (&)

Calculation of recoverable amount FrER[YlEl 5 58
The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEMAWESEAER
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and A7 B H B R AN L R

value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to

AEENREE - R
(AR -k

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate RKIBEmE TR AR

that reflects current market assessments of the BRIH 17 T 5 ) & M B R
time value of money and the risks specific to BENFEHIEEENE
the asset. Where an asset does not generate TE AL B B B 3T IR R AT

cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

BREHRE - WEER
RERBBUNEMEE
IR RAE - BliZ
B REUR A
RNEEER (BIRE
EXEM) BEAKE
T8 °

Recognition of impairment losses BRI EEE
An impairment loss is recognized in profit or HMEESKHEMBIRGE
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or EBEUMEREmERBE

the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

AREEE - RIRER
HERBEER - AT
L BAIRER AR ER
BRI D =% EN
(K—HEML) BEN
FEE BEREEN
FREETER S EER
HERRAENRGE
AR (fi BE A 8) e
FEE (MeEEE) °
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHERE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(m) Impairment of assets (Continued) (m) EERME (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) EMEERE (&)
- Reversals of impairment losses — BB EEE
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been fial FA LA 2 AT We 0] & BB
a favourable change in the estimates used to MLt IR B R EF
determine the recoverable amount. Bl EREEE o
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to BRI AR BEEENLNEE
the asset’s carrying amount that would have EUNFFEARATERER
been determined had no impairment loss TMEEENER NRE
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of EENREEASR - #
impairment losses are credited to profit or 5] & 3 B 5 1R AR T 3R
loss in the year in which the reversals are B8 FE NG AR o
recognized.
(n) Inventories (n) #&
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net FEAKA R EIRFEMRE
realizable value. BRIEEASR ©
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out (FIFO), X A Th AR 3% 5T 3 S H UA(FIFO) -
specific identification of costs or weighted average cost 1 RE 3 B B AR S niE AR A
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs Nt WEEEISFRBEA
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the EmA AR EFEEZHB /I
inventories to their present location and condition. B RFEHZES B AR ST E £ 8
B o
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the AR FERATERBES G
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of & BB ET TT AR AN R (il 5T i
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make THEMREMBA -
the sale.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and
all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 2(w)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognized as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognized as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognized as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognized profit less recognized losses
and progress billing, and are presented in the balance
sheet as the “construction contracts” (as an asset or a
liability, as applicable). Progress billings not yet paid by
the customer are included in the balance sheet under
“Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet under “Receipts in advance”.
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2. FEETHEREE (F)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortized cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognized and redemption value
being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortized cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(p)

(a)

B 5 R HMERKE

B 5 REMBURBENRIZRA
BHER - RREBERN AN
SRR RR RO BB (R
fE2(m)) FIlfR - B0 A B e K
ARE TR %S BEEAE
EEFRHRFTRZEL TE AR
BRoh - L FERBRT - BUGRIR
WRASB R RO E BRI

FFEEE

FEBENBRRAAEREER
DRATER - MVIAFERIL - &t
BEEELBEHA AR - V)6 e
AREeREABELEERNEAERE
BREIMENFNERERGEE
BRIEEHEAAERMNEERVE
R

BEE RHEMEMNRE

B 5 REMEMNRBENRIEZERAR
BERER - RIREHE2(v)()FT EH
MBREREEZIN B REM
FEAN R IR EL AR IR B SHR AN G B
BRBPOFZEL FERERIN
B T AR AR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

®

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial

institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value, having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group provides supplementary pension
subsidies to employees in the PRC, who retired
before January 1, 2010. In addition, the Group
also provides subsidies to early retirees. Such
supplementary pension subsidies and subsidies to
early retirees are considered as defined benefit plans.

AARESIR)

2. FEETHEREE (F)

(s) RERBEEEY

®)
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202

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 358 sERHSM -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

(Continued)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit retirement plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value
and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Service cost and net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised
in profit or loss and allocated by function as part of
“cost of sales”, “selling and marketing expenses” or
“administrative expenses”. Current service cost is
measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current period. When the benefits of
a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the
portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the
earlier of when the plan amendment or curtailment
occurs and when related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recognised. Net interest
expense (income) for the period is determined by
applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the net defined benefit liability
(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the group’s obligations.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (F)

() Employee benefits (Continued) t) EERER (&)
(i) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (ii) REWZ B BE (&)
(Continued)

(u)

(iii)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement plans are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately
in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset)).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant

amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

BT B RE Wt R RS
PS8R A 4R & et
FERR - WENR (R BB B A
[k - ENFAERFHEE
EEERD  ArEEERR
(TEEEHARELRZE
B (EE) FENZFNEHK
) MEELRMNEMES
(TEEEHARELRZE
B(EE) FENFNEHK
#) o

(iii) #LEEF

LR ER AR B AR
HELIA - SURBHMAE
2, (3 45 B 05 88 0 T 6
) 2 R Bt 8 42 L $R
BRI T LA -

(u) FREH

FEMSHREBANHAHIELELT
MEREERBBHNEE - AHH
BNEERBREERBENESD)
REDER - BEEREEMERSK
SN ERAEERER AR A
FERON - EULBR T - AERE R
ROBEREMGEE RSN ERE
RS NFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Income tax (Continued) (u) B (&)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable ZNEA TR B A A BEE R UL AR
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or BERSHREBMHHIELD B
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, EMHH T RFTE TR EN
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous I AR BEFE NI ENS
years. FRIBEL R FAEE o

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible BERIEEERABES BIBATE
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the HMEkERTER=38EE - BIE
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and ENAEETERETNEREE
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax BHEHMEEANZEZEE - EIEFIE
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax BEINBARDAFEEE N RS
losses and unused tax credits. RAMIBE R ELE -

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax BRETHERBMINEGRIN  FTH
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that BEEFIEEBBEMAEELERIEE
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available E (BRI AIER RIRERT G
against which the asset can be utilized, are recognized. FMAEERINNEREEZ) 5T N
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition R o AIRE FERM A KINE
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary BEBEMEEREHBEEENR
differences include those that will arise from the reversal IR & 55 Bl om Al B2 45 (R 8 0] 3R 17 /e
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those AR EEMELANSRE B
differences relate to the same taxation authority and I S5 = FE A J8 B [B] — B RS e %
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse FA—ERRERAR  WEAE
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the AR E R =R TE T B E A R —
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which M SRIER B A EE A58
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be &5 18 7] [m) AT HA sk m) 1% HA 4% 42 59 HR
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted FAED - EETIRERRHET
when determining whether existing taxable temporary BFEEZEstYERARRSH
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets MIEEBERERAELIELER
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those HEER  MeXBERER
differences are taken into account if they relate to the BIEEEE=RER— S EE K
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and F—ERHEREER  BEE
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which AE AR IEEE S e EE A
the tax loss or credit can be utilized. e - BlglERE o
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. TESHERBE (&)

(u) Income tax (Continued)

(u) FRE% (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

BREEHREERABNAR
BISMERK B AT ERZRE - T
AEAEEE  RAEES R
MBTEEERDGNHEER
BENNHER (NBXEKE 5
— BRI - AR BB R
AREAANEREEZR (1B
ERMERE » ARNAEEA] A
2| O R - BRI TR R A
15 2 A K AT BE [ 58 1 B R 1 =
B RmBRIEMERE - AIRR
RIRATREFEAS K @ B A 5] ©

EERNETHASEHRRE
ERBERAIENERERENE
BN RERBSHREEM
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Income tax (Continued) (u) B (&)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and N HARH TR 45 R TR IE B TR A 62 I

movements therein, are presented separately from each ERRNEHHIZESHEY - I

other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset BT - AEFIEEENIER

against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets EHBEBEERSFENA RS AE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the BEEEITERENANRRIEEE

Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current WA IBEEE - WHFS A

tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following TH 2SR ERERT - AT ASD

additional conditions are met: R 35 AR HA TR I8 B B AR E R 18

=0

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the — EBEARABBEEERARE
Company or the Group intends either to settle on PN/ o N S E T B R
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the BEEZLE  SFARERZE
liability simultaneously; or ERFEZAE %

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, — EARAEEREEENARE
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same ZEENEEHER /B
taxation authority on either: HEATLA T ER —HEGH

FriSii B :
- the same taxable entity; or — R—ERWER =
- different taxable entities, which, in each — TREMERTESE B
future period in which significant amounts of SEIRE—(EEEE KR
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected FIRETIEE BN EE
to be settled or recovered, intend to realize the = EFESUE )RR
current tax assets and settle the current tax HIMW - IR REEES
liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle RAMRIBEEEREE
simultaneously. ANEAFHIBEE - SFEE
SRZEEREEZE
f& °
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEESTBERBE (&)
(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and (v) PR ariER BERSE
contingent liabilities =L

(i) Financial guarantees issued

(i) FFREMBEER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognized as
deferred income within “Trade and other payables”.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognized in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognized in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

MR ERETA (A
ERA) RERZEA ([#
BAL BFEESARER
BRER T AR B B
FMRZONBRXR  MZEF
BAEBNBEFRAENAR -

o A £R B 3 0 B IS HE AR - 7%
BRODCABNRERR
(B2 R HEAMENKE] A
BV IEWA o 7O% B P &
L BREROAAETIZ
Z s AR LUBR 5 P M B 2
RHER (MU ESEHE
B BE > RERESTR
BREARMBR T ERKERD
MEEEHTNERERDER
TRAERE A ETFI = (Ee
AEGEAZEER) KR
MEEZEAITHE - HEH
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B ZHEBEARBERRZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (&

BB RN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized
as deferred income is amortized in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognized in accordance with note 2(v)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in “Trade and other payables” in respect of
that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognized,
less accumulated amortization.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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2. FEETHEREE (H)

(v) FrBHBiBER BERSA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHERMUE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Revenue recognition (w) AR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WARE WK EBEENRA L E
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the FrE o MEEN R mARE
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue BUARKARKA (REA) X
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue BE Rl SEMbET &R WA E@IRIE LA
is recognized in profit or loss as follows: TH RN IESER
(i) Sale of goods (i) HEER
Revenue is recognized when all of the general AR EX RS E 28—
conditions stated above and following conditions 1618 J2 1 B & 14 23 B B
are satisfied: R
- the significant risks and rewards of ownership — EmfEREMEANER
of the goods have been transferred to buyers; KM EREE A
and P54
-  the Group does not retain continuing managerial — AREBWERB—KE
involvement to the degree usually associated HEERNEHEERE
with ownership of the goods sold, and has no HiFEEIR2EE - IR
effective control over the goods sold. EHESROEBUESH
E -
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales Ug AT B F5 38 {8 Bt ok £ b 5
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. B WRIIREREZ S5

RS -
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEYE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(w) Revenue recognition (Continued) (w) AR (&)
(i) Contract revenue (i) E[EFRA

When the outcome of a construction contract can i E S R4S REEr S

be estimated reliably: {HETRF -

- revenue from a fixed price contract is recognized — REBEEBIKRE RAIU
using the percentage of completion method, ABATERKE o AT
measured by reference to the percentage of R REESBIED
contract costs incurred to date to estimated EARNERKAREE R
total contract costs, surveys of work performed ZARBE R ANAEEE
or completion of a physical proportion of the MBS - B ARl
contract work for the contract. A fixed price ETERARIENE
contract is a contract in which the contractor BRENRIBRTE - BE
agrees to a fixed contract price, or a fixed rate BRERA—HEBRE
per unit of output, which in some cases is AEEFRMETERE
subject to cost escalation clauses; and W FEMEEMNET

tEEER - FERLS
Do Nl 7 N X S
w0 K&

- revenue from a cost plus contract is recognized —  RERKAMEA R H U
by reference to the recoverable costs incurred A D2ERZREE
during the period plus an appropriate proportion A /)R] I B AR AN N2 AR
of the total fee, measured by reference to B E S I RER
the proportion that costs incurred to date DNRELZSRILMES
bear to the estimated total costs, surveys of R AN A8 & Yz A [RIAK
work performed or completion of a physical REZER B - BT
proportion of the contract work for the contract. #RlE TIESK& R T2
A cost plus contract is a contract in which HERTEHRIBERTE
the contractor is reimbursed for allowable or B INEK & [R] T5 738 i
otherwise defined costs, plus a percentage of Al EEER S B E AN
these costs or a fixed fee. REINAERIBKA » 0k

ZERARNRER D
KEEERNER e

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot iiEEE RANER TR A
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only S et - WAERFTEA
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is & B K A BT BE UK 2] A 26 0 e
probable will be recoverable. R e
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (F)

(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(w) AT (&)

(iii) Revenue from services

(iii) AR A

Revenue from rendering of services is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable under the contract or agreement:

— at the balance sheet date, where the outcome
of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably, revenue
from the rendering of services is recognized in
the income statement by reference to the stage
of completion of the transaction based on the
progress of work performed, the proportion of
services performed to date to the total services
to be performed, or the proportion of costs
incurred to date to the estimated total costs; or

— where the outcome of rendering of services
cannot be estimated reliably, if the costs incurred
are expected to be recoverable, revenues are
recognized to the extent of the costs incurred
that are expected to be recoverable, and an

R IRIG E A R W AREN
T ARk #EE W ER
HEMNDAERE

- EERERGEENS
Rkt @ &F PR
RHARTE X 5 H R BE
A SEfEETRY - RER
EEMBRAREEETT
TIFEE 25 RIEE
R AR5 B AR AV AR
BRENLLD - RES
RIEDEERA LA
RABENLLG - 2F
R HH) TR B BN B
KPR 3K

—  ERFRAAEEREN
R BER SEfbRTRY
MEELERRANTEHR]
Yem - WAL TRR A @
MEEERATER - &

equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss FRFE K ASHEE B 58 TY
as service cost; if the costs incurred are not RIBEF R B E
expected to be recoverable, the costs incurred A R AR TE BRI [E]
are recognized in profit or loss and no service EEEKAN BT E

revenue is recognized.

(iv) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognized in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognized as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

P I A HERR I AR
BHA o

(iv) BEEEHEE KA

RipELHEERKNES I
ATy HEE H PR & A B ]
NEB D PR EaEER - &
FEMEEFERREESR
EMEEMREER - AE
Al - EROAEEERTE
RRWAE R AEN—
AN IEE TR - HAHE
SRR & 5 HIRE A R
RWA e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (H)

(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(w) WA (&)

(v) Interest income

(v) FERA

212

(vi)

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is

recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognized as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are recognized initially
as deferred income and consequently are effectively
recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset.
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FEETHEREE (F)

(x) Translation of foreign currencies

(x) ;e

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

RERETHINEZXZ AL SR
HISNEFE R E o RS BRI
INERBEMABNEBEERE
BIRZANINEERIBE - [EX
1BasAIFTE Af8a -

BMELKANINE BB EL
FEREEREE BXHAN
ERBE o LR AETIRRELASN
BEHENFEREERABRS

BHEAREEANERKE -

BINEBORGEIRERZX B
SMNEFEZEEMERBEDAR
- -EERBREBANDERS
HROEMIMNEERBESAR
B-ELEMEAZREEMES
Yo 2 P T o0 I 100 B S feéi 18 P (E
EEMESAE RS -

REERINERE - BRAEIE
BOELZENRFSEREE
MBS ERRERESENEAR
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y) Borrowing costs (y) BERAE
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the NEEHEEE - EIEERE
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which BE (ZEEVER BEREE
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready EHENIETAERESEE) BH
for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the MEEKAN HERNL AZEE
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed BARH)— 2B o HMEER A
in the period in which they are incurred. REABBAZ AR -
The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost BEAEREERA—BHIMEE
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for KRAEREEEALARYE E4L
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being EEKRAERGEEERATEEH
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare Bl HEPT B T VE#ET
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. HERABEARL - EEEEER
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases BERAETETFR&RNH SRS
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare B RN ZEE TIEFR IEk5E
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are KE BEERAERLESE(Z
interrupted or complete. HI=IE ©
(z) Related parties (2) E@EER

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, (a) fWEMNATAL - BlzZ ALk

is related to the Group if that person: ZATHIIHEAREEF R

B
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () 21| = A= = 21 =
= ;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEERATE
713K
(iiy is @ member of the key management personnel (iy AAEEAEEGA
of the Group or the Group’s parent. RINEEZEEEENKE -

21 4 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is @ member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in 2(z)(a).

A person identified in 2(z)(a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTBERBIE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Segment reporting (aa) 2 EHE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment KEHBREDEIEE RZEM
item reported in these financial statements, are identified TSRk FT 2 ¥R A & %8 B Hi R
from the financial information provided regularly to the BAREBESGSRATEIERE LR
Group’s most senior executive management for the REBRNEZED L RHIED M
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the PBELEIRNA R EERIE N5
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and BE—E -

geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not 1 Bl 88 K4 4 5 2R AN & (A B 7& 5
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the CHAMETEHF  BEEHEE
segments have similar economic characteristics and EHEUMLEED - A REMRSE
are similar in respect of the nature of products and RS EE  AEBEMMN
services, the nature of production processes, the type or g BEEASAR - DEE R
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the SR RIGFTAN AN EER
products or provide the services, and the nature of the EOHERUNERRIN - TE
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are FEAFEREL DG S Lilisg
not individually material may be aggregated if they share RNEBDIZERIPIBEEITEOF ©

a majority of these criteria.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 3. EAXSEESHRNETES
ESTIMATES IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S ST & R ER

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group'’s financial condition and results of operations are N E2 B ) B FEAR O R R A A =
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates BB ISmRABNEET A - BRE
that underlie the preparation of the financial statements. The BETATRE AEEREBAELRK
Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical AEBRZREAENEMTRBREEL
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group BERftst BUAZERE RREA
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making % WARBEREMREETNER
judgments about matters that are not readily apparent from ERHE - EREESFE YN EGE{E
other sources. On an on-going basis, management evaluates HElfh c AR BERIBRN - 2B LR
its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates M MEBERERATERIREZS
as facts, circumstances and conditions change. {hst -

21 6 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgments
and other uncertainties affecting application of those polices
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the financial statements. The principal accounting policies are
set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Construction contracts

As explained in the accounting policy notes 2(n) and 2(v)
(ii), revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted
project is dependent on estimating the total outcome
of the construction contract, as well as the work done
to date. Based on the Group’s recent experience and
the nature of the construction activity undertaken by the
Group, the Group makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced such that the
costs to complete and revenue can be reliably estimated.
As a result, until this point is reached the amounts due
from customers for contract work as disclosed in note
22 will not include profit which the Group may eventually
realize from the work done to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be higher
or lower than estimated at the end of the reporting period,
which would affect the revenue and profit recognized in
future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded
to date.

3.

ERAAEESTHRENETES
stH R (F)

EEHMEHRERE  BAEEERS:
BERMNEE HRERAZTRRELY
EHEREBTERERE  ULE
EREEHANEBRE N B
B - TREABEREAIINME2 - KE
BRE LW NEESFBRY MR
B 75 R 2 s P PR MO B B 2R O 4 T %
fligt

(a) BESRE

AP FE2(n) K2 2(v) (i) B & 5H B ER
Bt - LR 7 TI8 B R A
Kom M BURRE @54 RAKR
kiS5 T THEENGR - BEAX
EEMAHEHR R AN EREER
HIEEBMEE  AEEEHER
BTRAERERAR SEHs T
PR R AR B (5T o Bt
TEER LS ERRT - BisE22f T 55
WEKREFARIREREZTE

BAREBRIES TET TR &K
AIERAER o Boh - AL
BIWAFENEREAES
AR R RS HA R P E R il 5T
Bt - BRESDENEEIEL
AR BEMERRRFERERL
WA R i 35 B R 28 o
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 3. EAXSEESBIRNETES
ESTIMATES IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S s H BT R Rk (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of non-current assets

(b) FERBEEMRE

218

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
non-current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognized in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of non-current assets as described in note
2(m)(ii). The carrying amounts of non-current assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the value
in use, expected future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value
of the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods, where
applicable.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (f

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the
customers and other debtors to make the required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the aging
of the receivable balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of
the customers and debtors were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Retirement benefits

The Group establishes liabilities in connection with benefits
paid to certain retired and early retired employees. The
amounts of employee benefits expense and liabilities
are determined using actuarial valuations, which are
calculated by independent valuation professionals who
conduct annual assessment of the actuarial position of
the Group’s retirement plans. These actuarial valuations
involve making assumptions on discount rates, pension
benefit increase rates, medical benefit increase rates, and
other factors. Due to the long term nature of these plans,
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Actual results that differ from the assumptions are
recognized immediately and therefore, affect other
comprehensive income in the period in which such
differences arise. While management believes that
its assumptions are appropriate, differences in actual
experiences or changes in assumptions may affect other
comprehensive income related to the employee retirement
benefit obligations.

Bt 755 R AR Y R
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Recognition of deferred tax assets

(f)

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and
tax credit carried forward and deductible temporary
differences are recognized and measured based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. In determining the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated which
involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a significant level of
judgment exercised by the management. Any change in
such assumptions and judgment would affect the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognized and
hence the net profit in future years.

Income tax

The Group files income taxes with a number of tax
authorities. Judgment is required in determining the
provision for taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determinations are
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcomes of these matters are different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences may
impact the current income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the periods in which the final tax outcomes
became available.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

REVENUE 4.

The principal activities of the Group are construction
contracting on international infrastructure-related projects,
sales of machineries and equipments etc. and provision of
other services.

Revenue represents: (i) an appropriate proportion of contract
revenue of construction contracts, net of business tax and
surcharges, if any; (i) the invoiced value of goods sold, net of
value-added tax and surcharges, and after trade discounts;
and (iii) the value of other services rendered.

A

NG [ ) 3 RS R B R R
RiEBENERE - HERBRES -
AR AR E M BRFS o

WA (\BEERNERKANE
BLEAIRE X RMME (BRE)
(il) 5 &5 & fn #3532 (E R 3 B A R BT n
B WERHRRZ S HIEMS K
REMNEMABREHEE -

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBRWASITHT :
2013 2012
2013% 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#MFT AREFT
Revenue from construction contracts REEEERMUA 15,385,648 13,244,660
Sales of goods in trading business BEHEBHRNEmIEE 4,907,806 7,163,140
Others (note (i) HAth (H1E() 1,132,818 888,263
21,426,272 21,296,063

Note: Hiat -

()  Other revenue mainly represents revenue from the provision
of export-import agency services, tendering agency services,
exhibition services, design services and logistics services.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 - there was
no revenue from an external customer accounted for more
than 10% of total revenue of the Group.

() EMBRAEXBRRENMEEEL AR
BRT - BIERERYE - RERS
REHIRTS S 7 AR TS RO ©

#H E20124F K2013F12 8318 |k 4
B BME-RZIINFRFPHWAGARE
B A #EEBHI10% °
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

AARESIR)

5. OTHER REVENUE 5. HfA
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
A% T AREFT
Dividend income from unquoted BB A FE H I B YA
equity securities 9,907 9,745
Government grants X #eH B 2,443 2,240
12,350 11,985
6. OTHER INCOME, NET 6. HMWKWAZFEE
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHFT ARETT
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of property, BEWE - BENMRIEN
plant and equipment (B18),/ Wz F5E (2,016) 17
Net gains on disposal of an unquoted BREERBRAESN
equity security Wi F5E 2,165 -
Net gains on disposal of interests in a BRE—RHWBARA
subsidiary with loss in control (note 18(ii)) RS F5E
WK AT HIRE (HF18(01) 175,649 -
Net gains on foreign currency forward = HRINE & [A) Jo A 2 2 HR Y
exchange contracts and interest Wi F 58
rate swaps 178,056 5,009
Others Hitp (378) 5,104
353,476 10,130

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/crediting:

(a) Finance income and finance expenses

(b)

AARESIR)

BR B A A
BBAVEREING S FA
(a) BTISWRARHBHX

2013 2012
2013% 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF7R AREFT
Finance income on receivables M = F AR
from customers B RS A 266,134 276,411
Interest income F 2 WA 471,731 306,581
Finance income B UA 737,865 582,992
Interest cost recognized in respect 7% E e iR R AT 2l R
of defined benefit retirement EORRSND 9
plans (note 28(a)(iii)) (Kz228(a)ii)) 13,540 14,140
Interest expenses on borrowings ARAFNBHEEN
wholly repayable within five years EEHFERAX 7,073 10,643
Interest expenses on other borrowings Hih g EMF % 206 115
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net INEBE (Was) F8 368,383 (2,341)
Bank charges and others RITBAREM 12,511 7,713
Finance expenses BT 401,713 30,270
Net finance income recognized RIBm RO I BEKA
in profit or loss R 336,152 552,722

*

December 31, 2012 and 2013.

There was no borrowing cost capitalized for the year ended

* HE20124F K£2013F12A31H
IEFE - BEEEKRANE R -

Staff costs (b) BEIRA
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARMFor
Contributions to defined contribution R EH R IRETE
retirement plans LK 92,443 77,656
Expenses recognized in respect FLEL T W R KA 2
of defined benefit retirement R
plans (note 28(a)(iii)) (K1zE28(a)i) 430 2,800
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 1,087,404 966,672
1,180,277 1,037,128
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7. BRBIADEF ()
(c) Other items (c) HftbigHE
2013 2012
20134 20124F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR¥For
Amortization Y
— lease prepayments — A HEEKIE 39,843 36,458
- intangible assets —\EEE 2,326 1,944
42,169 38,402
Depreciation e
- property, plant and equipment — W BENREE 37,983 58,113
- investment properties — BB 882 2,287
38,865 60,400
Impairment losses on L EEE
— trade and other receivables — B 5 N E bW FKIE 59,398 123,004
— construction contracts (note (i) — @A R EWGRIE
(H17E0)) 5,476 2,164
64,874 125,168
Operating lease charges KETHEE A
— hire of properties — HAm= 25,067 19,787
— hire of other assets —HRAHEMEE 1,635 59
26,702 19,846

224 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7. BREADRF ()
(c) Other items (Continued) (c) HfEHE (&)
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% Bl 57 A
— audit services — EETARTE 5,902 5,996
— tax services — B AR 7S 16 496
— other services — H A RS 3,000 11,300
8,918 17,792
Provision for foreseeable losses on EiEA Rt E RS
construction contracts 53,971 2,788
Rental income from investment RELEMERD
properties HEWA
— Gross rental —EHe 20,284 22,842
— Direct outgoings —EEXH (3,519) (4,081)
— Net rental —FHe 16,765 18,761

Cost of inventories (note (ii)) TFERA (H126) 4,451,323 6,469,206

Notes: KteE -

(i)  The impairment loss made on the construction contracts in ()  M2012%F R2013F EiEiEE e
years of 2012 and 2013 was related to unbilled balances W ER R EEIBESTE
for certain completed projects and a result of the evidence SERIEE M AREE MG B
of significant financial difficulty of the specific debtors came AR & B 20125 K20134F
into the Group’s attention in years of 2012 and 2013. FEIREERANERNTER

HHNFBENER -

(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB6,811,000 (2012: iy HFTERABIFEEE TN T
RMB5,410,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and EREERAYRKEHEEHR
amortization expenses and operating lease charges, which B B KA AR #6,811,000
amount is also included in the respective total amounts 7t (20124 : A R 5,410,000
disclosed separately above or in note 7(b) for each of these JL) BB BENE A X8
types of expenses. Bt 27 (b) Bt 5% 5 5 2 2 S (8 Bl 4

BOHBATEA -
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226

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

AARESIR)

8. EHEESWERAMAES

(a) EHEESBRERANFERE

comprehensive income represents: g
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETT

Current tax ZHATH IE

- PRC Corporate Income Tax — PR EATS 702,121 718,347
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BAMNEH 232 48
— Others — Hftb 25,551 18,287
727,904 736,682
Deferred tax (note 29(b)) EIERIE (K72229(b)) (24,040) (48,966)
703,864 687,716

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal
entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which companies comprising the Group
domicile or operate.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 20183.

The charge for PRC corporate income tax for the
Company and the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC is calculated at the statutory rate of 25% for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, except
for two subsidiaries of the Group, being a small-scale
enterprise, is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
20% for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2018.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. EHHEEWNRRANFIEN
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) KABEAHERAE 2HERAX
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HEEERYER -
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Profit before taxation W T A R A 2,664,105 2,615,878
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRAFANRA  BEFIE -
calculated at the rates applicable REBREEEREA
to profits in the jurisdictions concerned i o ey = 665,929 654,667
Tax concessions M ER (23) (3)
Effect of non-deductible expenses RIS 2 2 24,979 26,606
Effect of non-taxable income FERHBAZZE (2,351) (2,415)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and KERTIEER K
deductible temporary differences REER AN b
not recognized ERIHBHE 14,375 8,685
Others =} 955 176
Actual tax expense ERBIBRAS 703,864 687,716

Annual Report 2013
2013FF5H 227



Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. EEREEHM
EMOLUMENTS
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as EEREEHMHOFBOT ¢
follows:
Directors’ Salaries,
and  allowances Retirement
Supervisors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
ESR  He-EM BINGHE
EEhe  REUAE BiERA H3% as

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ABRTL  AREFZ  ARETr  AREFZ  ARETx

Year ended December 31,2013  EZ2013F12A31 AL EE

Executive Directors: WITES:
Mr. Sun Bai ‘Rt - 209 426 16 651
Mr. Yang Wansheng haBLE - 209 426 14 649
Ms. Li Taifang FRFRT - 501 1,023 36 1,560
Mr. Zhang Chun RELE - 501 1,023 36 1,560
Non-executive Directors: FTES
Mr. Pan Chongyi BRETE 50 32 - = 82
Mr. Wang Zhian TiamikE 50 32 - - 82
Independent non-executive BUHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Liu Li hxsE 238 - - - 238
Ms. Liu Hongyu YFat 238 - - - 238
Mr. Fang Yongzhong FxEEE 238 - - - 238
Mr. Chan Kin Ho REEAE 238 - - - 238
Supervisors: .
Mr. Quan Huagiang PERTE - = = = =
Mr. Qian Xiangdong BRREE = = = - -
Mr. Bai Ming AREE - 520 - 36 556

1,052 2,004 2,898 138 6,092

228 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. EEREEHTM (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
Supervisors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
BXR Heo2W iG]
EEMe  REDI&E B 3% At

RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETL

Year ended December 31,2012  HZ2013F 12831 AL EE

Executive Directors: WIES:
Mr. Yang Wansheng AR LA - 501 769 33 1,308
Ms. Li Taifang FRFRT - 541 1,369 33 1,943
Mr. Jia Zhigiang BEREE - 160 99 7 266
Mr. Zhang Chun RERE - 494 1,340 33 1,867
Non-executive Directors: FRTES
Mr. Pan Chongyi BRELE 50 20 - = 70
Mr. Wang Zhian TA%EE 50 20 - - 70
Independent non-executive BUIENTES
Directors:
Mr. Liu Li i 50 21 - - 71
Ms. Liu Hongyu ATF Lt 50 20 - - 70
Mr. Fang Yongzhong HKBEE 50 21 - - 71
Mr. Chan Kin Ho RERLE - 6 - - 6
Supervisors: EE
Mr. Quan Huagiang PERLE = = - - -
Mr. Qian Xiangdong BRRLE = = - - -
Mr. Bai Ming AB%E = 351 13 88 397
250 2,155 3,590 139 6,134
Note: Mr. Yang Wansheng was retired his position as the Chairman Mzt <45 & B ok &£ 201354 A19R B (T
and Executive Director of the Company on April 19, 2013. Mr. ARAAREERFZNTEE - HIAL
Sun Bai was appointed as Chairman and Executive Director of ER2013F4R 190 BEZERAR
the Company on April 19, 20183, AIEERFNATES -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10. ZSEFMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2012: hE&mHTMALTH  mE (2012
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note FME) BES HENTMRMK
9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of other three O EE - ZIN=F (2012F : =)
(2012: three) individuals are as follows: ATHEBAENT
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Salaries and other emoluments T M E b 357 B 1,278 1,456
Discretionary bonuses BB EAL 2,608 3,162
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B LK 108 98
3,994 4,716
The emoluments of the three (2012: three) individuals with the —Z (2012F : Z&) R FMAL
highest emoluments are within the following bands: T LA TEE R :
2013 2012
20134 20124
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AZ
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 &L &
2,000,000/ 7T 3 3
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 11. BERA DT RRAEF
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the RERARARRENAHENBIEE
Company includes a profit of RMB1,849,218,000 (2012: AN B B 7% 3 2= AR B9 5 A1 A R
RMB1,745,569,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 1,849,218,0007T (20124 : A R #&
statements of the Company. 1,745,569,0007T) °
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit o U === N/NI] == N B ] eyl )
for the year: T s
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Amount of consolidated profit attributable  AZA BB &R *E
to shareholders dealt with in ABRH B AR R A
the Company’s financial statements AR F e R
1,849,218 1,745,569
Final dividends from subsidiaries BBN E—MERN
attributable to the profits of the previous WA FHE R B
financial year, approved during the year By NGO B S 96,803 65,798
Impairment losses of subsidiaries {OY PN NG|
and associates BRI EE B (5,240) (984)
Company’s profit for the year (note 30(a)) 27 B4 K3 5
(K17#30(a)) 1,940,781 1,810,383
Details of dividends paid and payable to shareholders of the B R EMAR B IR RS FEIEEH
Company are set out in note 30(b). RHIEE30(b) °
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2013 of RMB1,959,257,000 (2012:
RMB1,927,689,000) and the weighted average number of
shares in issue of 4,125,405,000 (2012: 3,321,638,000). The

12.

BREFN

FREREFTIIEEZE201835F12 A31
B FEHBR AR R REA SR A
R ¥1,959,257,0007T (20124 : AR
#1,927,689,0007T) & E EE1TH) Ik
I R%8h4,125,405,0008% (20124 :

weighted average number of shares in issue is set out below: 3,321,638,000%) 51 & - B 217/ 1
R EHIN T

2013 2012

20134 20124

Thousands Thousands

shares shares

Fi FHE

Issued shares at January 1 M1A1BME RIS 4,018,000 3,300,000

Effect of shares issued in 2013 2013 F BT DRI & 107,405 21,638
Weighted average number of shares 12 531 8 K hniE

at December 31 TR E 4,125,405 3,321,638

There was no difference between the basic and diluted
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding for the years presented.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organized by a mixture of both business lines and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following three reportable segments.

—  Construction contracts: this segment mainly undertakes
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
contracting business of overseas infrastructure-related
construction projects (including hydropower, thermal
power or other engineering projects) in various countries.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bx

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

Trading business: this segment mainly engages in the
business of importing and/or exporting various machinery,
electrical and instrumental products for domestic and
overseas customers.

Other businesses: this segment mainly engages in
providing export — import agency services, tendering
agency services, exhibition services, design services and
logistics services.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and current
assets with the exception of restricted deposits, time
deposits with original maturity over three months, cash
and cash equivalents, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets,
associates, unquoted equity investments in non-listed

lease prepayments, interest in
companies, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
assets. Segment liabilities include receipts in advance,
trade and other payables (excluding accrued salaries,
wages and benefits, and payables that cannot be
reasonably allocated to any segment), construction
contracts, provisions and borrowings managed directly

for the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortization of assets attributable to those segments.

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

BAEERIN  UAREIIR)

13. DR E (&)

(a)

BREK  AOBIERELE
AINEPEN R /R AR E#
W BHARIAER-

HMER : AOMEEREREM
EHORERYE  BERLER

% RERS - RERE ROR
AR5 o
THEE BERER

AT AR RE RED FBE D

RER ARENESHTER
BENATER EEESAHRED
HEMHHRE  BERAE

DHEBEEBREMEFRBEER

MEBEE - BETHHEBKRIN: R
PR & 773K~ Ran B A R = (A

ANEHRER BehBHeEE
Y- E - BERERE - BANHE
SRR BVEE  BERFN
W RIELETRARIMIERBR
RRE  RERIEEERHEMAK
PTRNEE - DHABBREER
ROMERBNBRKKE - 85
K E A e 7R (N B iR R F
é~I§&Eﬂ'&$%éﬁﬂ

2 BC = (E ] 55 B &Y e A IR -
BEAREMNRIE - BiERE
DB TR #HE D FBAIWA R F X
TRBEZEDHMELNIHE
BMNRZED B EENR X E
BRZENMNBEERTELHE
SH HIMNEEMFIZ ©
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D E|E (&)

THRARE  BERER (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(a)

ARBESE NN EEEZ
B BRI & A o B E20129F Kk
2013F12A31B L FE ' Bt 5
LB R kAT S RIB MM A&
ErsEeaRTERERENAS
B AT ¥ 5 o AR & R E S a0

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the
profit before taxation. Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended December 31, 2012 and

2013 is set out below:

T

Year ended December 31, 2013

HZ2013512831HLLEE
Construction Trading Other
contracts business businesses Total
BEAR ECES Hin#% &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AE® T AE®TF AE®FT
Revenue from external customers R E5MEE B A 15,385,648 4,907,806 1,132,818 21,426,272
Inter-segment revenue LN - 265,705 426,583 692,288
Reportable segment revenue aERED KA 15,385,648 5,173,511 1,559,401 22,118,560
Reportable segment profit AERE DR F 2,116,699 2,791 121,112 2,240,602
Interest income on receivables W B 2B BULA
from customers 266,134 - - 266,134
Interest expenses MEF% 4,109 3,170 - 7,279
Depreciation and amortization & R - - 1,158 1,158
Provision of impairment losses REEERE
- trade and other receivables - B REMEKGE 43,640 4,591 11,167 59,398
— construction contracts — EiEARENE 5,476 - - 5,476
— foreseeable losses on - BEAREEE
construction contracts 53,971 - - 53,971
Reportable segment assets HREDHBEE 8,309,516 1,997,682 799,250 11,106,448
- capital expenditure - BXRX = - - -
Reportable segment liabilities AREDHEE 15,924,759 2,312,069 749,367 18,986,195

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D EBIRE (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DEEE - BEERAE (&)
(Continued)

Year ended December 31, 2012

HZE2012612831BLLFE
Construction Trading Other
contracts business businesses Total
BEAR EUES S Hin %% G}

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETIT  ARETE  ARETT  ARETT

Revenue from external customers 3R B9MEE P HUA 13,244,660 7,163,140 888,263 21,296,063
Inter-segment revenue AEEBA - - 462,318 462,318
Reportable segment revenue AERES BRA 13,244,660 7,163,140 1,350,581 21,758,381
Reportable segment profit BEGRE D 2,009,305 168,500 228,355 2,406,160

Interest income on receivables  EREF ZIEMFIS A

from customers 273,904 2,507 - 276,411
Interest expenses FEHE 6,862 3,892 4 10,758
Depreciation and amortization WER#H - - 2,587 2,587
Provision of impairment losses BB EEE
- trade and other receivables - B REMERR 82,301 37,741 12,695 132,737
- construction contracts - BEAREKRZUR 2,164 - = 2,164
— foreseeable losses on - BIESREEE

construction contracts 2,788 = = 2,788
Reportable segment assets AREHBEE 10,184,428 2,488,884 743,233 13,416,545
- capital expenditure - BARY - = = =
Reportable segment liabilities BE =l 20,293,790 2,401,958 652,400 23,348,148
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D ER R4 (48)

(b) AIEMEDIRA BRI (B
B) BEERAENHER

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit/(loss), assets and liabilities

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Revenue LON
Reportable segment revenue BE: RN 22,118,560 21,758,381
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7350 F U A B 8 (692,288) (462,318)
21,426,272 21,296,063
Profit i Al
Reportable segment profit A] R  E2a A 2,240,602 2,406,160
Share of profits less losses FEMR B & R E)m
of associates BEE (199) (86)
Other revenue E A 9,907 9,745
Other income, net H g A F 58 172,441 (143)
Other operating expenses Hi @MY (602) (328)
Interest income from bank deposits KB RITFERA
HMEKA 471,731 306,581
Interest cost recognized in respect L% W iR PRET £l
of defined benefit retirement plans TSR R B R A (13,540) (14,140)
Foreign exchange losses, net b 5 5185 R (136,359) (5,429)
Depreciation and amortization ITE R (79,876) (96,215)
Reversal of impairment losses H th fE Y SR IB R (E
on other receivables gk - 9,733
2,664,105 2,615,878

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. DR R (&)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit/(loss), assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) AIEMEDEBA BRI (B
B) -BEERAENHR (A)

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARETFT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIRE D BB E 11,106,448 13,416,545
Elimination of inter-segment receivables % 2B fE U 3R IB 4K 5% (635,266) (412,984)
10,471,182 13,003,561
Restricted deposits X PR #1775 251,435 447,351
Time deposits with original maturity RIGEHA B BB =1 A
over three months B E HATF 3K 3,622,336 6,472,079
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 14,550,166 12,089,395
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N RE 485,012 444,205
Lease prepayments TE T E K08 1,776,129 1,814,951
Intangible assets A E 7,919 7,659
Interest in associates /N 3 215 413
Deferred tax assets EEF A E 154,577 131,311
Other non-current assets BEMIERBEE 343,944 253,952
Other unallocated assets Hihrx DB EE 290,249 104,952
31,953,164 34,769,829
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities AIFRED S A E 18,986,195 23,348,148
Elimination of inter-segment payables 73 HB fE FE S SR 8H (635,266) (412,984)
18,350,929 22,935,164
Retirement and other supplemental RN R E AT
benefit obligation B ER 356,690 397,200
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits ezt e - TE KRG 655,507 557,407
Income tax payable JES TS Fi 276,014 451,258
Deferred tax liabilities EETIBEE = 74
Other unallocated liabilities HtARDBEEEE 557,963 510,603
20,197,103 24,852,406
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D E|E (&)

(c) Geographic information

(c) HEEFHER

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, lease prepayments,
intangible assets, interest in associates and other
non-current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or to which
the goods were delivered. The geographical location of
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and lease prepayments,
the location of the operation to which they are used,
in the case of intangible assets, and the location of
operations, in the case of interest in associates and other
non-current assets.

TRHIIARETIHEEMER
HER: ((ANEERAINIFR
FMIRA KRR EENYE - BE
K&l REWE BHHEER
A BVEE BERREDR
HipEmBEE ([HEFRBE
E]) c EFMMIEME IR
AR B b B R XA B R O 1 B
oo MEME - WELRE
BREWMENRANEERER  HE
FRBEENMIEMETNRER
ENMEMLS D WBEFKE
E - ARBERETLEENEY
RIFTFEHL S D ¢ anEHE = N B
S REMIERBDEE - AREBE
MR o

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F T ARMFr

Revenue from external customers RENFEF A
China (Mainland) RRE (RRE) 2,555,267 2,403,451
The Republic of Iraq Pz 5e A EY 2,486,528 2,208,441
Venezuela Z XAz 2,414,504 159,375
Turkey TEH 1,705,416 1,093,373
Belarus B EHT 1,581,366 1,899,738
Equatorial Guinea IREE AT 1,089,825 1,269,250
Sri Lanka HEBFR 994,791 2,081,669
Nigeria fE B FZ8 984,034 452,983
Angola Eoa S EAA 920,578 1,418,008
The Republic of Congo fij| 52 £ 01 883,468 670,610
Others Hib 5,810,495 7,639,165
21,426,272 21,296,063

Specified non-current assets BEERRBEE

China (Mainland) R (KBE) 2,514,513 2,523,083
Others EAh 19,449 26,005
2,533,962 2,549,088
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ - BERRE

AARESIR)

The Group P
Office
Motor and other Construction
Buildings vehicles equipments in progress Total
AR
gF AE Hit& HEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ANREFT AREFT AREFT  AREFT
Cost: RA :
At January 1, 2012 R2012%F1A1H 458,030 82,329 52,498 18,061 610,918
Additions NE 10,9056 34,045 10,562 42,038 97,550
Transfer from investment properties & B #% &% 28,530 = = = 28,530
Disposals RE (30,508) (9,372) (2,631) - (42,506)
Exchange adjustments kS 397 (181) 82 - 298
At December 31, 2012 2012612 A31H 467,359 106,821 60,511 60,099 694,790
At January 1, 2013 201351 A1H 467,359 106,821 60,511 60,099 694,790
Additions NE - 10,213 11,494 66,340 88,047
Disposals RE (6,955) (4,710) (6,445) - (18,110)
Exchange adjustments BN AR (2,987) (3,408) (351) - (6,741)
At December 31, 2013 12013E12A31H 457,417 108,921 65,209 126,439 757,986
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHE .
At January 1, 2012 m2012%1A1H 148,935 43,380 26,958 - 219,278
Charge for the year FRTH 34,865 14,559 8,689 - 58,113
Transfer from investment properties B 5% EME 14,353 - - - 14,353
Written back on disposals RERAM (30,503) (8,603) (2,598) = (41,704)
Exchange adjustments B AR 278 117 155 = 550
At December 31, 2012 R2012F12A31H 167,928 49,453 33,204 - 250,585
At January 1, 2013 R2013F1A18 167,928 49,453 33,204 - 250,585
Charge for the year EREH 18,226 11,893 7,864 - 37,983
Written back on disposals RERRE (4,690) (4,252) (6,057) - (14,999)
Exchange adjustments B i R 217 (719) (93) - (595)
At December 31, 2013 R2013F12A31H 181,681 56,375 34,918 - 272,974
Net book value: BEFE
At December 31, 2012 R2012F12A31H 299,431 57,368 27,307 60,099 444,205
At December 31, 2013 R2013%F12A31H 275,736 52,546 30,291 126,439 485,012
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y13 - BMERRE (&)

240

(CONTINUED)
The Company AT
Office
Motor and other Construction
Buildings vehicles equipments in progress Total
AR
BF RE Hitrikfe HREIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT  AREFT
Cost: B
At January 1, 2012 1201261 A1H 338,260 34,576 19,951 15,911 408,698
Additions RE - 12,992 8,150 15,101 36,243
Disposals RE - (1,355) (558) - (1,913)
At December 31, 2012 2012412 A31H 338,260 46,213 27,543 31,012 443,028
At January 1, 2013 M2013F1A1R 338,260 46,213 27,543 31,012 443,028
Additions NE - 2,951 4,003 6,995 13,949
Disposals RE - (913) (2,634) - (3,547
At December 31, 2013 2013412 A31H 338,260 48,251 28,912 38,007 453,430
Accumulated depreciation: 25E
At January 1, 2012 R2012€1 818 99,648 20,031 7,632 - 127,311
Charge for the year FRLH 14,224 3,762 4,346 - 22,332
Written back on disposals BEEEM - (832) (463) - (1,295)
At December 31, 2012 20124124318 113,872 22,961 11,515 - 148,348
At January 1, 2013 120131 A1H 113,872 22,961 11,515 - 148,348
Charge for the year FRTH 14,224 3,943 3,535 - 21,702
Written back on disposals RERERD - (867) (2,504) - (3,371)
At December 31, 2013 201312 A31H 128,096 26,037 12,546 - 166,679
Net book value: REFE
At December 31, 2012 M2012412A31H 224,388 23,252 16,028 31,012 294,680
At December 31, 2013 201312 A318 210,164 22,214 16,366 38,007 286,751
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - BMERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) The analysis of net book value of properties is (a) MENREFEIAWOT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTT ARMFT AR¥TT

Outside Hong Kong EB AN
— long leases - REHEE 41,519 41,719 40,145 35,930
— medium-term leases — RHEfE 216,973 213,231 142,195 159,541
— freehold — KA 39,244 44,481 27,824 28,917
297,736 299,431 210,164 224,388
(b) As at December 31, 2013, certain of the Group’s (b) M2013%F12A318 ' A& E@ &
borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s THEEAAEEEDAFER
buildings with an aggregate net book value of AR%4,698,0007T (20124F = A
RMB4,698,000 (2012: RMB5,063,000). R #5,063,0007T) H & TIEFE

R o

(c) As at December 31, 2013, the Group was in the (c) M2013F12A318 A& E IE
process of applying for the ownership certificates for EAETEFHEMAEESE -
certain buildings. The aggregate carrying value of such REBENZEMENDREEFE
properties of the Group was RMB45,973,000 (2012: A AN B ¥45973,0007T (2012
RMB51,146,000). The directors are of the opinion that the F . AR ¥51,146,0007T) © &
Group is entitled to lawfully occupy or use these buildings. ERR AEEEREAEAN

ERLEET -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEY
The Group The Company
£33 LN
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®TrT ARETT

Cost: AN :
At the beginning of the year REFEH] 27,538 56,148 21,244 21,266
Additions = - = - =
Transfer to property, BAYE - BE

plant and equipment Ba] - (28,530) - -
Disposals & (865) (80) - (22)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 (50) - - -
At the end of the year RER 26,623 27,538 21,244 21,244

Accumulated depreciation: Ri#7E :

At the beginning of the year REA] 11,827 23,893 5,041 4,042
Charge for the year FAZH 882 2,287 979 999
Transfer to property, BAYE - BE

plant and equipment R A = (14,353) - =
Written back on disposals BEE&ED (237) - = -
Exchange adjustments Rk (12) - - -
At the end of the year MRER 12,460 11,827 6,020 5,041
Net book value: ARMENRE - 14,163 15,711 15,224 16,203
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

AARESIR)

15. REWE (&)

The analysis of net book value of properties is (a) MENEREEEINWT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
rEE AATE
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124F 201345 20124F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
In Hong Kong REB
— freehold — KA 1,213 1,273 - -
Outside Hong Kong B LASI
— medium-term leases — FRHEIfE 12,950 14,438 15,224 16,203
14,163 15,711 15,224 16,203

According to the Property Valuation Reports issued by
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, a firm of independent qualified valuer in Hong
Kong, on March 17, 2014, the fair value as at December
31, 2013 of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
properties, including land use rights, which are classified
in “lease prepayments” (note 16), are RMB134,650,000
(2012: RMB131,530,000) and RMB79,526,000 (2012:
RMB76,129,000), respectively.

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 19 years, with an option to renew the
lease are after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

(b) REMEMITEEFGERERNE

(c)

RAR (BENBILAEKGE
Bl = 75 BT) M2014F3817H %
L YA E RS - 2013612
A318 ' AEERARAFNIKE
ME (BIEES R [FERNEER
1B (M 7E16) M L 40 A 4E) &Y
RARERD B A AR134,650,000
7T (20124 © A KK 131,530,000
7t) B AR#79,526,0007T (2012
F : AR¥76,129,0007T) °

AEBEUKEHEFTALARE
ME - BOGH—RASHIE19
F o HRAEEHERIA KR
BER T EE - AT
BT -
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REY ¥ (&)
(c) (Continued) (c) (#&)
The Group’s and the Company’s total future minimum REBRARBBRE N HE S
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease EMARREWRREESEENAT :

are receivables as follow:

The Group The Company
£33 AR
2013 2012 2013 2012

20134 20124 2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ANRB¥Fr ANREFT AR¥FrT AKEFT

Within 1 year 1F LA 9,988 7,250 5,093 4,194

After 1 year but 1FE A EBSFEIUAR
within 5 years 12,129 10,096 7,343 5,432
After 5 years 5%F A E = 40 - _
22,117 17,386 12,436 9,626
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

16. LEASE PREPAYMENTS 16. A HERE
The Group The Company
rEE N
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013F 20124 2013% 20124

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®TrT ARETT

Cost: AN :
At the beginning of the year — %) 1,894,201 1,660,966 1,545,392 1,515,392
Additions NE 804 233,235 - 30,000
At the end of the year RER 1,895,005 1,894,201 1,545,392 1,545,392

Accumulated amortization: ZR:sH#Ed :

At the beginning of the year  RF4] 67,053 30,595 58,085 24,055
Charge for the year FATH 39,843 36,458 34,192 34,030
At the end of the year RER 106,896 67,053 92,277 58,085
Net book value: BRMEFE : 1,788,109 1,827,148 1,453,115 1,487,307
(a) Lease prepayments mainly represent land use right (a) ANEERBETIZRAEEMA
premiums paid by the Group for land located outside FAZE 8 LAGN + 3 ) + b 58 FR A AT
Hong Kong. The analysis of net book value of lease ST ES - BANAERIEN
prepayments is as follows: REFELITET :
The Group The Company
REE RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT AR®TrT AKRETT

Outside Hong Kong EBLAGN
— long leases - RHMEE 6,387 6,404 - =
— medium-term leases — hEHE 1,781,722 1,820,744 1,453,115 1,487,307

1,788,109 1,827,148 1,453,115 1,487,307
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

16. LEASE PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 16. EHEENKE (&)
(b) As at December 31, 2013, none of the Group’s borrowings (b) 7M2013F12A31H + & & B #
were secured by the Group’s land use rights (2012: EAMNEERAER/N T E
RMB8,592,000). BAREERE (201260 : AR

8,592,0007T) °

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
The Group The Company
AEE RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARMFT ARETT

Cost: AR
At the beginning of the year R E4] 11,248 6,850 6,948 4,827
Additions NE 2,586 4,398 2,464 2,121
Disposals BRE (2,303) — (2,303) —
At the end of the year RER 11,531 11,248 7,109 6,948

Accumulated amortization: ZE3t#sy :

At the beginning of the year — P 4] 3,589 1,645 2,508 833
Charge for the year FRLH 2,326 1,944 2,041 1,675
Disposals BE (2,303) = (2,303) =
At the end of the year RER 3,612 3,589 2,246 2,508
Net book value: EREEE : 7,919 7,659 4,863 4,440
Intangible assets mainly represent computer software. The BREETZRBEMEM - FN#H
amortization charge for the year is included in “administrative FXErAGHERERZEZMN [1TE A
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive <]
income.
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

AARESIR)

18. HIf B R AR E

The Company AT
2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFTT AREFT

Unlisted investments, at cost FELEFESE @ KA 1,964,706 1,782,488
Less: impairment losses o OREEE (5,041) (1,573)
1,959,665 1,780,915

As at December 31, 2013, the subsidiaries of the Company,

all of which are unlisted limited liability companies, were listed

M2013F12A31H * AR EIMMEA
Al (ARELTAEREMERR) HM

as follows: T
Place and date of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
EMAL /R BRTRER
DRER BERAE &%/ ZMER JEf g TERE
Direct  Indirect
Ef 3
1 CMEC International The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd. (note ) September 9, 1997 contracting and trading
hRERETREREFAT Gl AR¥50,000,0007T BIABRES
(Hiti) 199759A9A
2 China Everbest Development Hong Kong SAR HKD22,136,400 100% - Trading and security
International Limited August 12, 1988 investment
EREERERAT BRRAITHE 22,136,400 EHREFRE
198848 A 120
3 China Machinery & Equipment Hong Kong SAR HKD25,115,970 100% - Trading
(HK) Company Limited September 20, 1983
PRERRBEEEERAA BRRIITHE 25,115,970 g5
198369A20H
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

AARESIR)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place and date of

Issued and

18. BB A RAMNKRE (&)

incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HMRL/ B BRTRES
NAER WERAH BX/ERER FEfERE TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef 3f3
4 CMEC Engineering Machinery The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Trading
Import & Export Co., Ltd. (notej) ~ January 9, 1995
hRIIEEMEL D i AR #20,000,0007T g5
BREMAR (H:2i) 1995%1A9A
5  CMEC Comtrans International The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Transportation agency
Co., Ltd. (note i) March 5, 1997
PRERBBEALRE i AR#20,000,0007 EafE
BREMLAR (Hrati) 19973750
6 Ausino Pty. Ltd. Australia AUD3,974,486 92.95% - Wholesale and retail
BANERERRARDA September 13, 1984 of machinery equipment
BARE 3,974,4862 7T ERXEHERTE
198497130
7 Shanghai International The PRC RMB10,820,000 100% - Transportation agency
Transportation Co., Ltd. (note i) January 30, 1996
HREE DEEREREE i AR%10,820,0007 ERfE
BRAR (HiH) 199651730
8  Shenzhen CMEC Industry The PRC RMBS,200,000 100% - Storage and property
Corporation Limited (note i) March 18, 1992 service
ATHREXERNA i A #9,200,00070 B RE RS
(Writi) 19923 A8R

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place and date of

Issued and

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

AARESIR)

18. BB A RANKRE (&)

incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HMARL/ KL BRTRER
DAER HER AL BX/ERMER EfERE TEEHR
Direct Indirect
Ef R
9  CMEC International Trading The PRC RMB8,000,000 100% - Trading
Co., Ltd. (note /) January 16, 1995
PRERESBEREELT i AR #8,000,0007C g5
(Hiiti) 1995517164
10 CMEC Machinery & Electric The PRC RMB8,000,000 100% - Trading
Equipment Import & Export January 16, 1995
Co., Ltd. (note i)
MR EEL O ERAT i AR #8,000,0007C g5
(Hiiti) 1995517164
11 CMEC International Exhibition The PRC RMB4,000,000 100% - Exhibition services
Co., Ltd. (note i) January 9, 1995
BERERREERELAT e AR#4,000,00070 RERS
(Hiti) 19956 1A9A
12 CMEC Beijing Property The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - Property management
Development Co., Ltd. (note i) January 15, 1985 and rental
PEERRBELALRY il AR#5,000,0007 NXEBRES
FERBREMRAE (M) 1985517158
18 CMEC General Machinery The PRC RMB6,000,000 100% - Trading
Import & Export Co., Ltd. (notej) ~ January 9, 1995
hRBAREELD i AR %6,000,0007C g5
BEREELR (Hiti) 199561A9A
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

AARESIR)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. BB ARAMNKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HMRL/ B BRTRES
NAER WERAH BX/ERER FEfERE TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef 4
14 China Machinery and Equipment The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - Tendering for construction
International Tendering Co., Ltd. April 29, 1996 contracts
(note i)
hRERERAREARR il AE#5,000,0007T BEARAER
(Witi) 19964 A29A
15 China Machinery Industrial The PRC RMB15,000,000 100% - Trading
Products Co., Ltd. (note i) February 6, 2002
PREEIEUR e AR #15,000,0007C g5
BREEAR (i) 200242A6H
16 CMEC Petrochemical-General The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - Trading
Machinery Co., Ltd. (note i) January 16, 1995
PRACBHBRAF P AE#5,000,0007T g5
(Writi) 199551716
17 China Machinery International The PRC RMB116,220,000 100% - Engineering design,
Engineering Design & Research October 5, 1993 contracting and
Institute Co., Ltd. (note i) supervision
PHRER TR %R HE AK116,220,0007 Tidsr ABRER
BREMLAR (H:2i) 1993510A5H
18 China-East Resources Import & The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Construction contracting
Export Co., Ltd. (note i) July 22, 1993 and trading
PERRELODEREARR i AR20,000,00070 BIZBERES
(W) 199357 A22H

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place and date of

Issued and

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

AARESIR)

18. BB A RNKRE (&)

incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HMARL/ KL BRTRER
DAER WERAH BX/ERMER EfERE TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef &
19 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB19,562,000 100% - Trading
Equipment Import & Export February 20, 1987
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (note i)
& (BM) R L0 il AE#19,562,0007 g5
BREMLAR (Hiti) 19876220
20 Shanghai Zhong Jing Import & The PRC RMB3,500,000 100% - Trading
Export Corporation (note i) December 21, 1995
LEPEERNAREALE e ABR#3,500,0007 g5
(Hiti) 1995%12521A
21 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB11,500,000 100% - Trading
Equipment Import & Export April 9, 1987
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (note i)
& (£5) BHREELD t ARE11,500,0007C g5
BREMAR (Hati) 198754 A9R
22 Sino American Machinery United States of USD1,918,476 100% - Trading
Corporation America (“USA")
FEEFENBRAR August 22, 1983
FHEaRE (X&) 1,918 476 T g5
1983%8 4227
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place and date of

Issued and

AARESIR)

18. BB ARAMNKRE (&)

incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HMRL/ B BRTRES
NAER WERAH BX/ERER FEfERE TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef 4
23 Euro M.E.C. Import & Germany DEM100,000 100% - Trading
Export GmbH March 9, 1990
BERELOARAR (e 100,0002E 5% 85
199053 A9H
24 CMEC Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY50,000,000 80% - Trading
CMECE A= &4t April 2, 1986
AX 50,000,0008 g5
198654 A2H
25 Henan Machinery & Electric The PRC RMB4,180,000 67% - Trading
Import & Export Co., Ltd. (note i)~ April 17, 1997
AP EELIEREEATR e AK4,180,0007C g%
(Witi) 1997648178
26 CMIC International Exhibition The PRC RMB1,000,000 90% - Exhibition services
Co., Ltd. (note |) May 17, 1995
PEERREARAT g AK#1,000,0007C RERK
(Writi) 199585 A17H
27 CMIC Enmei Co., Ltd. Japan JPY26,000,000 7% - Trading
CMICEBRR A &1t May 13, 1994
AR 26,000,0008 g5
1994554 13H
28  CMEC International Economic & The PRC RMB500,000 100% - Legal consulting
Legal Advisors (Beijing) Inc. (note i)~ September 24, 1993
RBER () EREE G AE#500,0007 e
EEFRABREERE (M) 199359A24H
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

AARESIR)

18. BB A RMNKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HMAYL/ KL BRTRER
NRER WERAH EX/RER FEfEIE TERK
Direct  Indirect
Ef R
29 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB5,460,000 55% - Trading
Equipment Import & Export February 21, 2001
(Fujian) Co., Ltd. (note i)
BEPREARBELD i AR #5,460,0007C g5
BRAR (fi) 200142A21R
30 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB5,000,000 51% - Trading
Equipment Import & Export November 30, 2007
(Hubei) Co., Ltd. (note i)
PREEFIBRRE G AR #5,000,0007c g5
EHABRRAR (M) 2007%11A30R
31 CMEC Senegal S.A. Senegal XOF10,000,000 100% - Construction contracting
FEER R EEL NEAT April 20, 2009
ERMRRABRAR
ERNE 10,000,00078 3£ %58 HELEE
200944 A20R
32 CMEC Engineering, C.A. Venezuela VEF200,000 99.9% 0.1%  Construction contracting
BERZRRILTIRAR March 11, 2011
ZWRH 200,000 ZH A L& HBIAR
2011E3A11R
33 CMEC Nigeria Development Nigeria NGN20,000,000 100% - Construction contracting
Limited March 25, 2011
il R RN [ER#E 20,000,00054 HIEp
ERNZERERART 201143 /250
34 China Machinery Engineering Argentina ARS429,000 90% 10%  Construction contracting
Argentina S.A. July 30, 2012
PERARETRMRERR PR 429,000t R IR
BRAT 20127 R30R
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AARESIR)

18. BB A RANKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-in capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital equity interest Principal activities
BN BRTRES
NRER BERAE &%/ dMER EfRE TERHK
Direct Indirect
B 83
35  China Power Construction The PRC RMB5,000,000 50% - Engineering design
Engineering Consulting Central January 11, 1993
Southern Corporation (note i)
hEENRR IR AT i AR5,000,0007 I8%:
BRRAE (W) 1993517118
36 China Machinery Engineering Namibia NAD20,000 100% - Construction contracting
Corporation Namibia June 11, 2013
(Proprietary) Limited
REERR BT RROBRAR MR 20,0004k BT LA
WAL EEREERT 201356118
Notes: Hiat -

(i)

(i

Except for China Everbest Development International Limited,
China Machinery & Equipment (HK) Company Limited, Ausino Pty.
Ltd., Sino American Machinery Corporation, Euro M.E.C. Import
& Export GmbH, China Machinery Engineering Corporation
Namibia (Proprietary) Limited and CMEC Nigeria Development
Limited of which their official names are in English, the official
names of CMEC Senegal S.A. are in French, the official names
of CMEC Japan Co., Ltd. and CMIC Enmei Co., Ltd. are in
Japanese, and the official names of CMEC Engineering, C.A. and
China Machinery Engineering Argentina S.A. are in Spanish, the
official names of other entities in the list above are in Chinese and
the English translation of their names is for identification only.

On November 27, 2013, the Company disposed its equity interest
in and receivables due from COMIBEL.S.A. at a consideration
of USD32,528,870 (approximately RMB198,325,000). On the
disposal date, the share of carrying value of net assets of
COMIBEL.S.A. was approximately RMB36,665,000 and the
carrying value of receivables due from COMIBEL.S.A. was
RMB59,341,000. Gain on the disposal was included in “Other
income, net” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S

U

(i)

BRERERRERAF - PR
BEBAERQE BN EIRELR
BRAR  XEEXBMERAF
BMEREHODERAR - REI#RR
BIRRNHBERABDNKLEFRE
FE R B B R B M AR RR A D AR X A
EEMNEERARAANEXELHES
WX B hERRREELOAR
AIERMBRN AR ARMNIEREE
RENETE - CMECHA AR & 4 &
CMICERAIMRAGHHEALHAHAX
EEMAEZERZ AR TREAR RS
B M A %t TRZ AR SE AR D AR A A
WIER BB REMES XEMWI X
Hib BB IEABE ST XA -

M20135E11B278 * KA RIUKE
32,528,870% (X A R ¥
198,325,0007t) & H R MZE B
MRN8 1 2 B /O R AR K B MR SRIA o
REZEBEHE - o Gr9nE B #Rm
BHEARFEAEFRAENAARK
36,665,0007T * LA K & U i & B #&
MEBBEARNRBNEAEASARE
59,341,0007T ° R E W= E T AS B
AW RAE [HAWAFE] -
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19. HERBEE

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANEEFT ARBEFT AEETT
Cost and prepaid consideration  3F A AIHIET A
of unquoted equity R AR & IR AN K
investments in non-listed BRRE
companies 344,214 254,222 347,448 252,340
Less: impairment losses B REEE (270) (270) (5,041) -
343,944 253,952 342,407 252,340
20. INVENTORIES 20. &
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: (a) IINEEEBRANEESR
¥E
The Group The Company
AEH ¥ NN |
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124F 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT ANEETT AEEFT AREFT
Goods in transit (note (i) wwmm (BaE) 4,265 32,211 3,714 27,314
Finished goods (note (i) &k (A1aE(i) 178,796 155,434 = =
Entrusted processing ZEMIYE
materials (note (iii) (B9 &£ i) 15,745 28,126 1,647 297
Others (note (iv)) Hib (B aE(v) 13,929 9,960 = =
212,735 225,731 5,361 27,611
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

20. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 20. BE& (&)

(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: (a) FIINEEEERANEFESR
(Continued) (&

Notes: Hiat -

The inventories were mainly related to the Group’s trading FETEHRAREENEFEKEM -

business.

(i)  Goods in transit represent goods on its delivery to the (i) SAEREEERREERMAH
customers while risks and rewards of ownership of the Em MEMMAMEENRR &
goods have not passed to the customers. B AREBERS -

(i)  Finished goods represent goods ready to be sold to the (i) HEKREEEETFRNEFPESE
customers. HWEm °

(i)  Entrusted processing materials represent materials owned (i) ZEFEMIMEEAEEERL
by the Group and entrusted to third party entities to ZRAETE—FEBNIUAEE
process for the purpose of selling to the customers. HBRENYME -

(iv) Others mainly represent packaging materials and materials (ivy EtErZHEEWERANT
purchased for processing for the purpose of selling to the BEUHERTENDE -
customers.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2013, the carrying (b) % B Z2013F12A31H Ik F
amount of inventories sold was RMB4,451,323,000 E BEREFENREEAAR
(2012: RMB6,469,206,000). There was no write down of #4,451,323,0007T (20124 :
inventories for the years ended December 31, 2012 and A K #6,469,206,0007T) ° &
2013. 220129 N2013F12A31H IF

FE  BEMRERNTFE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AARESIR)

21. EZ R HMEWRIE

The Group The Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
20136 20126 2013% 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
Bills receivable EEE 33,471 20,500 - -
Trade receivables B S EWIE
- SINOMACH (note 21(d)) — B (f1z£21(a)) 10,159 265,913 = 265,913
~ fellow subsidiaries (note 21(d)) — BRKBAR
(Hia#21() 995 2,591 - 200
- subsidiaries (note 21(d)) —WBAR (H221(d) = - - 150
— third parties —E#=7 2,775,855 3,209,931 1,601,661 1,902,955
Less: allowance for doubtful debts  Ji : RERHE & (461,300) (407,592) (214,478) (172,210)
Trade and bills receivables BORNTIERERER 2,359,180 3,091,343 1,387,183 1,997,008
Amount due from/advances to Y/ SRR KB
fellow subsidiaries (note 21(d)) NEFIE (ME21() 21,034 206,150 20,262 206,150
Amount due from/advances to U/ BB
subsidiaries (note 21(d) DEFIE (Hat21() - - 897,262 825,521
Advances to suppliers TR 1,213,714 1,243,476 692,426 736,322
Other receivables related to RIZRRFAERAE
agency services Eoh WA 336,388 313,344 1,789 54,614
Derivative financial instruments fTESmI A 142,332 15,117 118,165 15,117
Other receivable related to BEE—KMELRE
disposal of interests in B AE R AR
a subsidiary (note 18(i)) B (fi:#18(i) 198,325 = 198,325 -
Others Hith 734,392 738,191 504,427 499,848
Less: allowance for doubtful debts  J& : RERE (57,330) (58,512) (3,151) (47,279)
4,948,035 5,549,109 3,816,688 4,287,301
Less: portion classified as " DEARBEE
current assets HE D 4,894,653 5,510,059 3,766,502 4,282,918
Non-current portion FEREFH 53,382 39,050 50,186 4,383
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

21. EZREMBWRFRE (&)

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRER AT

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (which
are included in trade and other receivables), based on
the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts,

RIZFEZEH BHREFER
R R IR (X E 5 N H B YR
TAARR) EF0ER R IR B A BRIk

is as follows: DT ¢
The Group The Company
AEE PN

2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETT AR¥FrT AREFT
Within 3 months 31E AR 1,306,468 1,814,702 839,830 1,271,283
3 to 6 months 3Z6fE A 218,537 398,909 80,262 251,508
6 months to 1 year 6fE A =14 301,757 370,638 149,204 192,877
Over 1 year 1M E 532,418 507,094 317,887 281,340

2,359,180 3,091,343 1,387,183 1,997,008

HIFERBEERESHEBHEF
WEERG—REEEHR - BT
HIABREBEEFPMNEESRTD
RERIERERBILHGE + WH
IIRBBERRN - HTEHED
BEEHNEER—ROBR=Z/,1
A BREE—MNEITAERE
FT180R A EIE - REBEMEE
BRI FES1(a) ©

There are no unified standard credit terms granted to
customers of construction contracting business and
trading business. The credit terms granted to customers
of construction contracting business are negotiated
individually on a case-by-case basis and set forth in the
relevant contracts. The credit terms granted to customers
of trading business are normally about three to six
months. The bills receivables are generally due within 180
days from the date of issuing. The Group’s credit policy
is set out in note 31(a).
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZ REMEWRIE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables (b) ESRHMERKERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other ERE S &EMEU R IER B
receivables are recorded using an allowance account BRI FERBESEER  BIE
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount AREBRESEWE /AT
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written TRAK - FEHBER T  REEEK
off against trade and other receivables directly (see note B 5 K H i FE UG 30 I8 AR B
2(m)(i)). (RHEE2(m)(0)) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during RIEBERFERNNEENT :

the year is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH ¥ N/NE
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 2012%F 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT ARETT AR¥FT ARETT

At the beginning of the year A4 466,104 354,786 219,489 157,568
Impairment losses BRI EEE

recognized 59,398 123,004 43,641 72,568
Uncollectible amounts HEET AT R B ) 2 58

written off (6,872) (11,686) (45,501) (10,647)
At the end of the year RER 518,630 466,104 217,629 219,489
Attributable to: o FEM -

Trade and bills B HRBHIER

receivables e 1% 461,300 407,592 214,478 172,210
Other receivables H it A 50R 57,330 58,512 3,151 47,279
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at December 31, 2013, the Group’s trade
and bills receivables of RMB844,877,000 (2012:
RMB1,142,991,000) and the Company’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB534,429,000 (2012: RMB870,449,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to debtors
that were in financial difficulties or under the lawsuits
proceedings, and management assessed that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, as at December 31, 2013, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of RMB461,300,000
(2012: RMB407,592,000) and RMB214,478,000 (2012:
RMB172,210,000) were recognized by the Group and the
Company, respectively.

As at December 31, 2013, the Group’s other receivables
of RMB85,292,000 (2012: RMB68,433,000) and the
Company’s other receivables of RMB3,452,000 (2012:
RMB48,296,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
debtors that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, as at December 31, 2013,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB57,330,000
(2012: RMB58,512,000) and RMB3,151,000 (2012:
RMB47,279,000) were recognized by the Group and the
Company, respectively.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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AARESIR)

21. EZREMBWRFRE (&)

(b) BEZRHMEWKERE (&)

MR2013F12831H ' A& B &
B SRR RIERERERARE
844,877,0007T (20124 : A R
#1,142,991,0007T) & A& A A
B E 5 W E R E R A
R #534,429,0007T (20124 :
A R #870,449,0007T) % 1@ Bl
EEADRMME - ERIRERNEK
FIB B E K F R B IS R 2 sk
HFARFNEBAER 12
EsEh - BHES —FH
B U R IE A] LA UK ] o A Bt
A& B &A QA R2013F12 4
BABRBEREBEES AR
A R #461,300,0007T (20124 :
AR#407,592,0007T) kAR
214,478,0007T (20124 : A K
#172,210,0007T) °

R2013F12831H » AEEH
H i W 50 I8 A R 685,292,000
7T (20124 = A R %68,433,000
T0) RN B A H Ath fE YR IE A
R ®3,452,0007T (20124 : A
R #48,296,0007T) # 1@ Bl & &
ABERIE - @RI E & W RIE
HERFENVHEEENESA
B BEEBRWTME - EHE
IR EWGRIB R A E -
Et - RNEE KRR A]R2013F
12A3MAREEREEE D
Bl & A R #57,330,0007T (2012
F: AR#58,512,00070) & A
R #3,151,0007T (20124 : A
R#47,279,0007T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZ REMEWRIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired (c) KREBENESERKEREWK
g
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that MARBBIAHEBERBRENE
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be 2 e WA & e R 1B K BR R 2
impaired are as follows: W
The Group The Company
EH RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 201345 20124

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFR ARETT

Neither past due nor SEARE IR RE
impaired 1,681,820 1,721,295 884,445 774,222
Within 3 months past due FHEASE A AR 135,350 268,828 104,689 252,546
More than 3 months to #HI3E6(EH A
6 months past due 46,517 259,524 37,151 233,112
More than 6 months to BEGIE A E14F
1 year past due 26,491 38,295 4,210 20,320
More than 1 year past due BERIFA | 85,425 68,002 36,737 18,569
293,783 634,649 182,787 524,547
1,975,603 2,355,944 1,067,232 1,298,769
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate BE R 380 5 71 R R (B #Y FE Wk 7R B
to customers and debtors for whom there was no recent MHY AR B E RED
history of default. ABE -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate %80 BB N 2R OB (B B FE M R IE B
to a number of independent customers that have a good BEUEFAR RERAKHE
track record with the Group or entered into collateral with BEERMARTHEIERE
the Group. Based on past experience, the management BB mTH - RIBAREL
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary B BHRNEEEETEEAE L
in respect of these balances as there has not been a BZEERTNER A B EW
significant change in credit quality and the balances are B WEEEREHBERZEZLS
still considered fully recoverable. SRYERERME -
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZREMBWNKIE ()

(CONTINUED)

(d) These balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and (d) ZEEBRBEER  TFIELIE
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the AR AEEFERFERHEY
major customers of the Group. =EHiEE -

(e) As at December 31, 2013, none of the Group’s borrowings (e) M2013%F12H31H @ 7N & B #
were secured by the Group’s trade receivables (2012: EEEHAEENE S5 EKNR
RMB6,754,000). BEEREA (2012F : AR

6,754,0007T) ©

22. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 22, BiEAE
The Group The Company
REE RAF]
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 2012%F 20134 20124F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT AREETT AREFT ARETT

Gross amount due from contract &4 [ fEURIB A58
customers for contract work

— current portion — REED 2,372,575 3,191,436 2,059,414 2,905,004
- non-current portion — EREE D 3,201,943 4,114,329 3,136,275 3,973,699
5,574,518 7,305,765 5,195,689 6,878,703
Contract costs incurred plus S BELESRBA
recognized profits less MERER BT
recognized losses to date B ERIEE 61,086,026 52,473,571 57,234,187 50,139,957
Less: progress billings W EE KIS 55,330,915 44,992,689 51,857,905 43,086,137
allowance for doubtful BiEERERRE
debts for construction KR ER B
contracts 180,593 175,117 180,593 175,117

5,574,518 7,305,765 5,195,689 6,878,703
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

22. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (CONTINUED) 22. BERE (&)

(a) As at December 31, 2013, the amount of retentions (a) M2013F12A31H ' & LR &

receivable from customers, recorded within “Construction
contracts” of the Group and the Company are
RMB470,679,000 and RMB447,137,000 (2012:
RMB300,333,000), which are expected to be recovered

SERARAGE [BESRERK
Bl ANERKEFERESER
A R #470,679,0007T & A R #&
447,187,0007T (20124F : A B

as follows: #300,333,0007T) + B UK E A
BRSNS T
The Group The Company
rEE PN

2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETRT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Within one year 1FELA 91,807 138,341 91,807 138,341
After more than one year 1F LA 378,872 161,992 355,330 161,992
470,679 300,333 447,137 300,333
(b) As at December 31, 2013, none of the Group’s (b) 2013128318 @ A~ & & ##

borrowings were secured by unbilled amount of the
Group’s construction contracts (2012: RMB30,759,000).

EEEHAEENEESRAL
B EEER (2012F : ARK
30,759,0007T) ©

23. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 23. ZRHFR
Restricted deposits mainly represent cash pledged for bank ZREFTAREZRUIRITREE K EAT
facilities or for issue of letter of credit. These restricted ERBERNES - BHHEFEZRF
deposits are expected to be released within one year. TR —FNER o
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERREEEY
The Group The Company
rEE KA F]
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBETR ARETT AREFT ARETT

Cash on hand FEBES 1,660 1,429 83 117
Cash at bank and other RIRTT R H & B

financial institutions EHRS 14,548,506 12,087,966 12,907,538 10,707,132
Cash and cash equivalents e RBREEEY 14,550,166 12,089,395 12,907,621 10,707,249
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

(%) AREFR

%% AE¥TT

FE%) AREFR

25. BORROWINGS 25. 8 &
The Group The Company
A5 A
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 2012% 20135 2012%
Interest Interest Interest Interest
rate (%)  RMB’000 rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%)  RMB’000 rate (%) RMB’000

HE%) AEETT

Current:

Short-term borrowings
Bank loans
- unsecured
- secured

Add: current portion of
long-term borrowings

Non-current:
Long-term borrowings
Bank loans
- secured
- Unsecured

Less: current portion of
long-term borrowings

ik §

RHEE
HTEH
- BER
- BiER

i REEED

R

FRE

REE
RITEH
- BER
- BER

B RERERN

ity

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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5.39-6.72
3.26-6.60

16,933
145,650

162,583

71,724

234,307

1.80-2.41 148,628
1.25 2,733

151,361

313,944

3.48-7.07
5.17-7.20

18,621
33,801

81,498

133,920

1.80-5.17

288,538

241 142,668

142,668

142,668

2.67 216,850

216,850

216,850
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

25. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@) The borrowings are repayable as follows:

(b)

25. &8 (&)

() EENEEHWT :

The Group The Company
rEH KAF

2013 2012 2013 2012

20135 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ANREFT ARB¥Fr AREFT

Within 1 year or on demand ~ 1EAARHIZERER 234,307 133,920 69,810 69,769
After 1 year but within 1FEZE25F

2 years 73,728 73,601 71,943 71,969
After 2 years but 2FE5F

within 5 years 3,959 77,894 915 75,112

After 5 years 5% F 1,950 3,123 - -

79,637 154,618 72,858 147,081

313,944 288,538 142,668 216,850

As at December 31, 2012 and 2013, certain borrowings
Group’s property, plant and

were secured by the
equipment and restricted

deposits.

As at December 31, 2012 and 20183, no borrowings of
the Group were guaranteed by SINOMACH.

(b) 2012 K2013%F12A3180 + &
TEREBASENYE  BE X
BERZREFERIERER

A20124 20135124318 -
MR RAEBNEMEE -
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

26. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 26. AW FKIE
The Group The Company
A%H AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013% 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTFRL ARETT ARETn ARETTL

Receipts in advance for ‘s RMTEBGRIE
construction contracts (H1723)
(note (i) 6,035,713 12,023,465 5,865,212 11,925,068

Receipts in advance HEEmATRIGIR

for sales of goods 885,437 614,442 569,881 151,873

Others Hit 100,514 72,503 - 7,002

7,021,664 12,710,410 6,435,093 12,083,943

Note: Mt -

(i)  The balances as at December 31, 2012 and 2013 represented (i) 20124 %2013F 12 A31H & 4 £
advances received from customers (or main contractors, if TEERF (@A em (niE)) Ik
relevant) for which the related construction work have not been BBV TEMR - i E AR e T TER
performed as at the end of the reporting period. HEEARIIARELT ©

266 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEREREIREROERAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

AARESIR)

27. EZ RHMENRE

The Group The Company
REE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARB¥FT ARETFT
Bills payable e 60,494 39,917 = =
Trade payables B SR
— fellow subsidiaries —RZEKBAF 551,194 236,446 551,194 235,026
- subsidiaries — B AR - - 160,309 171,289
— third parties — =75 10,161,219 9,319,206 8,908,689 7,971,314
Trade and bills payables BHRNFERENRE 10,772,907 9,505,569 9,620,192 8,377,629
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries & & Z [ B A 7) I8 2,464 2,360 2,444 2,221
Amount due to subsidiaries RITBARIFRIE - - 214,689 36,669
Other payables related to K2R
agency services Hofth & (508 506,169 401,938 203,734 76,904
Accrued salaries, wages and EEe  TARER
benefits 655,507 557,407 583,861 498,101
Other taxes payable H b pE 5518 90,161 99,164 63,816 94,862
Others HAt 195,275 314,110 87,090 238,700
Financial liabilities measured RESHK AT EN
at amortized costs THEE 12,222,483 10,970,548 10,775,826 9,320,086
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4@ T A 6,279 33,208 6,279 33,208
Others HAh 30 470 - -
12,228,792 11,004,226 10,782,105 9,353,294
Less: portion classified W pEARBAEN
as current liabilities 25 12,227,087 10,943,270 10,780,400 9,329,793
Non-current portion FmEED 1,705 60,956 1,705 23,501
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EZ REMENIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables (which are RIEBHZAE  ZEZENRERER
included in trade and other payables), based on the invoice ZE (RNESREMEMNRIEAR) 8
date, is as follows: BRER DATINT ¢
The Group The Company
KEE P N/NE
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 20134 20124

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFTRT ARETT

Within 3 months 3 A AR 4,707,016 6,039,306 4,292,096 5,553,722
3 to 6 months 3=6fAA 761,383 468,593 606,596 381,383
6 months to 1 year 6EAZ1E 534,083 547,112 255,111 158,466
Over 1 year 1 £ 4,770,425 2,540,558 4,466,389 2,284,058

10,772,907 9,595,569 9,620,192 8,377,629

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 28. EEER
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (a) REUWHEBMNETE

The Group provides supplementary pension subsidies AEER2010F1 A1 HATRKA
(including post-retirement medical benefits) to its BTRHBRRKERN (BFER
employees who retired prior to January 1, 2010. In REBERF) - i NEH
addition, the Group provides subsidies to early retirees. AR AR K& RRADERL - A&
The Group’s obligations in respect of such defined benefit B EBAREZ SR E R
retirement plans at the end of the reporting period were RETEIMEXHBLFEMES
computed by an independent actuary, Towers Watson, B (ZRARBEMAERBE
whose actuaries are members of the Society of Actuaries ek8) KABEMERE
of the United States of America, using the projected unit FTE o

credit method.
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 28. EEEH (4&)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (Continued) (a) FREW=EBNKRETE (F)

(i) The amounts recognized in the consolidated () REHEEEEZRAEZL
balance sheet are as follows: 2EUT -
The Group The Company

A5 PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013% 20124 2013F 2012

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARB®FR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Present value of defined REREEBHIRE
benefit obligations 356,690 413,950 267,150 309,960

Net unrecognized AEREE R T
actuarial losses - (16,750) - (8,400)
356,690 397,200 267,150 301,560

Less: portion classified as B DEARE ARG

current liabilities i) 30,870 31,660 23,950 24,570
Non-current portion FEREF S 325,820 365,540 243,200 276,990
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 e H,Z2013F12 831 H It
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bx BB ERAS -

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (Continued)
(ii) Movements of the defined benefit obligations

recognized in the balance sheet are as
follows:

FE
AARESIR)

28. EEREA (&)

(a) REWFBMKETE (&)

(i) REEREXRAEZLRE

KnmBFEBMT -
The Group The Company
r5E NG
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20136 20124

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARFTRT

RMB’000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETT

At the beginning of the year REH]
Benefits paid during the year ~ ERKIE &7

397,200 411,400
(32,770) (31,140)

13,540 14,140
430 900
(21,710) 1,900

301,560 316,720

(24,890) (24,910)
10,070 10,620
(19,590) (870)

Interest cost MEBHA
Recognized prior service cost B HERATEARMH A&
Actuarial (gains)/losses B8 (W) B
At the end of the year RER

356,690 397,200

267,150 301,560

(iii) Expense recognized in the consolidated

(iii) RE O & Wt 7% A HY

statement of comprehensive income is as BZTF -
follows:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Interest cost BB 13,540 14,140
Recognized prior service cost B R AT B RR TS B AR 430 900
Net actuarial (gain)/losses BRERBE (M)
recognized b (21,710) 1,900
(7,740) 16,940

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 7ERASN -

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (Continued)

(iii)

Expense recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is as
follows: (Continued)

The expense is recognized in the following line items

AARESIR)

28. BEEEA (&)

(a) REWFSBMKETE (&)

(i) REGEE Wi 2 AFEZ
BT : (4&)

AR A R a RERAE

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive AT B A fER -
income:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Finance expenses 5 13,540 14,140
Administrative expenses THAX 430 2,800
13,970 16,940
(iv) The principal actuarial assumptions used for (iv) SEEGEEANEERE
the purpose of the actuarial valuation are as BT -
follows:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AREFT
Discount rate I =K 4.50% 3.50%
Early retirees’ salary and retirees’  3ZRERA T
supplementary benefits I RIKA LR nil-10.00% nil-10.00%
increase rate BRI KR 2£-10.00% £-10.00%
Medical cost increase rate BE B AR AN IE R R 8.00% 8.00%

Mortality is assumed to be the average life BREBEATERHEERNF

expectancy of the residents in the PRC and the HEd 0 TRFEGSFE
subsidies paid to retirees are assumed to continue YHERRATHH -

until the death of the retirees.
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 28. EEEA (#)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (Continued) (a) FREW=EBNKEE (F)
(v) 1RRERELAKIGRFEE—

(v) A one percentage point change in the

assumed rate of increase in medical cost 1B E D HR & -
would have the following effects:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT

Increase in effect on the SR BB N O B2 2 3
interest cost 150 160
HF B AR E R

Decrease in effect on the

272

interest cost (130) (140)
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARETF T
Increase in effect on the defined HRTW=mEIFH
benefit obligations =25l 3,360 4,510
Decrease in effect on the defined HR T WS RIS
benefit obligations AR (2,930) (3,890)

(b) Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and the regulations
in the PRC, the companies of the Group in the PRC
participated in defined contribution retirement schemes
(the “Schemes”) organized by the relevant local
government authorities for its employees. The Group is
required to make contributions to the Schemes at the
rate of 11% to 22% of eligible employees’ salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 28. EERH (&)
(b) Defined contribution retirement plans (b) FREMFGERAKEE (&)

(Continued)
In addition, some employees of the Group participate in N REBIH S EE L H A
a retirement plan managed by SINOMACH to supplement HEBRRKGTE - 1ER Lz
the above-mentioned Schemes. The Group is required to FtENET c AEFHEZEE
make contribution to SINOMACH at the rate of 5% of the &A1& 8 %7 B 195 % (A B # 1F ) (it
eligible employees’ salaries. Ko
Except for those in respect of the defined benefit MR EWER R EIFTAENS
retirement plans (see note 28(a)), the Group has no £ (5 M zE28(a)) 4 @ AEEH
other obligation to make payments in respect of ZEFERNBARKEENHE R
pension benefits associated with these Schemes and BRRET SRR E E SR A&
supplementary retirement plan managed by SINOMACH Pt F AN E AT R E
other than the annual contributions described above. £ -

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20. REHEEEBRANHE

BALANCE SHEET

(a) Income tax payable in the consolidated balance (a) EHEEEBRANENHAE
sheet represents: BiiE -
The Group The Company
r%EE b NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEETT ARETT AEETT

Income tax payable at FYEMNETER

the beginning of the year 451,258 318,016 384,792 254,890
Provision for the year (note 8) FR#EE (f1:28) 727,904 736,682 678,589 653,142
Income tax paid B ATEE (903,149) (603,440 (836,646) (5283,240)

Income tax payable at the FREFNFEH
end of the year 276,013 451,258 226,735 384,792
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20. REHEEEBRANAEN
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) (4 )
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized: b) ERRBNELEBEEERSE
& :

(i) The components of deferred tax assets/ (i) EEZEWEEHELE -~
(liabilities) recognized and the movements (B1E) H94H B 58 7 R 4F Ay
during the years are as follows: BT
The Group AEE

Surplus on

Impairment revaluation of

losson Construction ~ Accrued Changesin non-current
receivables  contracts  expenses fair value assets Others Total

FWFE FRBEE

REFR  BEGR  EdWx OAERE  EfRR it aif
RVMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOO0  AMB'OO0  AMBO00  AMB'O00  RMB'000
ARRTEL  AGRTT ARETL  ARETL  ARETL  ARETL  ARETR

At January 1, 2012 201261418 123,028 7,044 97,603 6,204 (162,627) 319 81,671

Credited/[charged) o REREPFA/
profit or loss (note 88) (3% (#/:28)) 27,009 (6,939) 26,678 (1,681) 3,664 28 48,966

At December 31, 2012 20126 12A31R 150,037 106 124,281 4,523 (148,963) 564 130,537

Credited/(charged) to RE&FHA/
profit or loss (note 8(a)) (308) (H:28/2) 7,264 41,030 12,433 (38,536) 1,791 68 24,040

At December 31,2013 R2013%12A31A 167,291 41,135 136,714 (34,013 (147,172 622 164,577

274 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 2. REBEERBRANAESR
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized: b) ERANELEBEEERSE

(Continued) & : (&)

(i) The components of deferred tax assets/ () EEZWELEHALE -~
(liabilities) recognized and the movements (BfE) WA E5 R F i
during the years are as follows: (Continued) BT - ()

The Company AAT
Surplus on
Impairment revaluation of
losson Construction ~ Accrued Changesin non-current
receivables  contracts  expenses fair value assets Others Total
e FRBEE

HEER  BEGR  EfFx OAERD EfRR L ai
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMBI00
NRRTT  AERTT  ARETL  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARRTT

At January 1, 2012 R201261 A1 76,298 7,044 90,003 6,204 (162,627) = 26,922

Credited/(charged) to RERPEA /()
profit or loss 20,229 (6,939) 25,668 (1,681) 3,004 - 40,941

At December 31, 2012 20125124318 96,027 105 115,671 4,523 (148,963 = 67,863

Credited/(charged) to REETHA /(1R
profit or loss 904 41,030 18,753 (32,494) 1,791 = 29,984

At December 31, 2013 20135124318 97,431 41,13 134,424 [rar) (147172 = 97,847
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 2. REBEEEBRANAES
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized: b) ERANEEBHEEERE
(Continued) &: (&
(i) Reconciliation to the balance sheet: (i) BEEEEXRIIE K -
The Group The Company
PN | PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTFTL ARFETT ARETR ARETT

Net deferred tax assets AHEEABRAKN
recognized in the ERRELERIE
consolidated balance sheet —~ &EF4 154,577 131,311 97,847 67,863
Net deferred tax liabilities AHEEEBRAN
recognized in the EHRERIELEN I
consolidated balance sheet BEFE = (774) - _
154,577 130,537 97,847 67,863
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized (c) KRERVELEHBEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in R AE B FE2(u) AT S A = 5T IR
note 2(u), the Group has not recognized deferred tax HREEBENER ZEERNE
assets in respect of unused tax losses and certain B NTEST 2 A JE S R R FE R B
deductible temporary differences of RMB156,604,000 as FIBE BB LASE 0 B 18 % A] $K 0 2 B
at December 31, 2013 (2012: RMB167,705,000), as it is = % It 2013412 A 31
not probable that future taxable profits against which the H @ AREBE I KGR E) R E
losses and the deductible temporary differences can be BEETRAIRIEREZ3EARK
utilized will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions 156,604,0007T (20124 : A B
and entities. #167,705,0007T ) HERELERIE
BEE o
The Group’s unused tax losses of RMB102,735,000 as at NE B R2013FE12 831 H By K &
December 31, 2013 include tax losses of RMB70,983,000 AR EE A ARK102,735,000
that will expire, if unused, on or before December 31, JC B 1E W 2025512 A31H
2025 and tax losses of RMB31,752,000 with no expiry kAR AESBAIEEROAR
date under relevant tax legislation. #570,983,0007T it 75 &5 18 A K AR
BEABRBERETEEROAR
#31,752,0007c B F5 &5 18 o
The Company has no unused tax losses as at December AN A Al R2013F12 A31 3 #f &
31, 2013. ERARBATBERE -

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 30. EX K f#ie
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEZAEREDEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEE RS EKE DB F
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated IR FREGHERHN G OF 1
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes mEHE o  AARFYRFERE
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s S ARE D B B B F B H S 4
individual components of equity between the beginning i

and the end of the year are set out below:

Share Capital Reserve Retained
capital reserve fund eamnings Total
RA  EXREE  REEE RERMN Ch

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARETLT ARETT ARKTX

At January 1, 2012 R20125181H 3,300,000 1,157,077 135,052 1,145,175 5,737,304
Changes in equity: EREE .

Profit for the year ERER = - - 1810383 1,810,383
Total comprehensive income LElRES - - - 1,810,383 1,810,383
Issuance of shares upon public AREERR -

offering, net of issuing HRETER

expenses (note 30(c)) (H1##30(c)) 718,000 2,294,300 = - 3,012,300
Distribution to the controlling ARABERRAAH

shareholder of the Company ERER SR

before public offering - - - (42,782) (42,782)
Appropriation to reserves YN - - 181,038 (181,038) =
Dividend paid to shareholders FFRAFRROBRE

of the Company (note 30(b)) (Hi#30() = - - (354,238)  (354,238)
At December 31, 2012 R2012%5128318 4,018,000 3,451,377 316,090 2,377,500 10,162,967
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXKfR1E (&)

(a) BEmAKIDHE (F)

(@) Movements in components of equity

278

(Continued)
Share Capital Reserve  Retained
capital reserve fund  earnings Total
BE  EXfEE  REEE RERF CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETR ARETT AREFZ
At January 1, 2013 R2013F181A
Changes in equity: ERgE .
Profit for the year FREF - - - 1,940,781 1,940,781
Other comprehensive profit FREMGARF
for the year - - - 19,590 19,590
Total comprehensive income RN Gk - - - 1,960,371 1,960,371
Issuance of shares upon public NREERH -
offering, net of issuing NBRETER
expenses (note 30(c)) (H##30(c) 107,700 411,726 - - 519,426
Appropriation to reserves NG - - 194,078 (194,078 -
Dividend paid to shareholders FFAREREORE
of the Company (note 30(b)) (Hi£300)) - - - (674,965  (674,965)
At December 31, 2013 R2013%F12A31H 4,125,700 3,863,103 510,168 3,468,828 11,967,799

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXKfR1E (&)
(b) Dividends (b) BKE
Dividends payable to shareholders of the Company RNEERNADRRBRREARS

attributable to the year:

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#¥FT AREFT
Final dividend proposed after the RMERRBEZ

end of the reporting period kAR B B 783,883 674,965
The directors of the Company resolved on March 24, KRN AEFR2014F3 8248 1
2014 that RMBO0.19 per share is to be distributed to LR - BL2013F B H R R EST
the shareholders for 2013, subject to approval of the REDIE  SRARK019T
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. % FH R AR R A BN B F Y
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting IRERBFRSHE - RI|EHR
period has not been recognized as a liability at the end of &3 D KA R EARR B R 7E )

the reporting period. HEHRBERAEBE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXKRR1E (&)

(c) Share capital (c) B=&

No. of shares

B &E
‘000 RMB’000
Fi& AREFT

Ordinary shares, registered issued EEMBETRBZEHN

and fully paid: ZTER:
Domestic shares of RMB1.00 each ERAR¥1.00THARER
At January 1, 2013 MN2013F1 A18 3,228,200 3,228,200
Converted to H shares EBEHRMLRES

for NSSF (note 1) BEeWn (421) (10,770) (10,770)
At December 31, 2013 M2013F12A31H 3,217,430 3,217,430
H shares of RMB1.00 each BRARE1.00THHE
At January 1, 2013 M2013F1 A18 789,800 789,800
Issuance of shares by over-allotment ARBER AL AR i 35 1T AR 1)

option (note 1) (Bfaz1) 107,700 107,700
Converted from domestic shares BEEAENERNLRES

for NSSF (note 1) BEelky (Mi1) 10,770 10,770
At December 31, 2013 M2013F12A31H 908,270 908,270
Total &5t
At January 1, 2013 201351 A1H 4,018,000 4,018,000
At December 31, 2013 7201312 A31H 4,125,700 4,125,700

All shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote

per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank

equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXKfR1E (&)

(d) Reserves (d) &
(i) Capital reserve (i) ZEXE#E
Capital reserve includes: BARFEHBIE
- the contributions or distributions to

shareholders;

share premium as the difference between the
total amount of the par value of shares issued
and the amount of the net proceeds received
from the IPO; and

the revaluation surplus resulting from
state-owned enterprises restructuring.

During the Predecessor’s reorganization, the
Predecessor was converted from a state-owned
enterprise into a joint stock company and
multiple subsidiaries of the Predecessor were
converted from state-owned enterprises into
limited liability companies in 2009 to 2011.

As required by PRC regulations on the
restructuring of state-owned enterprises, the
Predecessor and these subsidiaries engaged

ARRAS RIS
i

Pin (B - BIE &7
DEEAREERAFN
BEMRSIIAFHEZHE
MWERE K&

BAELCXBEHEHELNE
BEER o

2009F Z20114F + 7£R1
SEAR - B HEE
B HIARD AR -
A& &% KK B A A
Al BRI AB
REMLRAA °

RIBHBEUERBREEAR
ERBENBE AT H
RAEBHBRRBBR

China Enterprise Appraisals Co., Ltd. (FR{>%E BT Y B ERT
EEHAR]), an assets appraiser certified AR & ET AR
in the PRC, to carry out an independent HERFTEENEER

valuation of their assets and liabilities at the
measurement dates. The valuation results have

BEETEIMGE A
EERERAT T RZF

been recognized in the financial statements of N EPNGIECE e

the Predecessor and these subsidiaries. These TR o ZERE FHER

event-driven fair value measurements have been B AR EFEAER

used as deemed cost in the financial statements T2 BB EmER AR

at the measurements dates, and the resulting ERA - MATELRE

revaluation adjustments have been recognized HPABENERFEETE
=7 o

in capital reserve.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXKRR1E (&)

(d) f#ts (&)

(d) Reserves (Continued)

(i) HEEZ

(ii) Reserve fund

282

(iii)

The reserve fund of the Company includes statutory
reserve fund and discretionary common reserve.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Company transfers 10% of its
net profit as determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC to its
statutory reserve fund unless the statutory reserve
balance of the Company has reached 50% or more
of its register capital.

The Company transfers some of its net profit as
determined in accordance with accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC to its discretionary common
reserve when it is approved by its shareholders.

The transfer to the reserve fund must be made
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.
The reserve fund can be utilized in setting off
accumulated losses or increasing capital of the
Company and is non-distributable other than in
liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations that have functional
currency other than the RMB. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(x).
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXKfR1E (&)
(d) Reserves (Continued) (d) f#fE (&)
(iv) ZEi#E

(iv) Distributability of reserve

Following the Reorganization, the payment of future
dividends will be determined by the Company’s
shareholders. The payment of the dividends will
depend upon the future earnings, capital requirement,
financial conditions and general business conditions
of the Company. As the controlling shareholder,
SINOMACH will be able to influence the Company’s
dividend policy.

Following the establishment of the Company, under
the Company Law of the PRC and the Company’s
Articles of Association, net profit can only be
distributed as dividends after allowances have been
made for the following:

(i)  Making up prior years’ cumulative losses, if any;

(i)  Allocations to the statutory reserve fund as set
out in note 30(d)(ii) above; and

(iliy  Allocations to the discretionary common reserve
if approved by the shareholders.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company, the net profit of the Company for the
purpose of dividends payment will be the lesser of
(i) the net profit determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC; and (ii)
the net profit determined in accordance with IFRSs.
As at December 31, 2013, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was RMBS3,468,828,000 (2012:
RMB2,377,500,000).

REAR - REBER ST
AR B R BIREE © X
BH) S BURR A A 7] #)
RRAN  BARER - B
RILA R —RRETFIB R - 1
REBBCR - B KERT
ERRAMBEEEK -

RARBIRILIE @ RIETEH
RAVERARRRER @ Fi
MBAEEHRIA T BE 2R
FAMERRE DK

() BWEBEFENRE
18 (wa)

(iy  RIE L CHIEE30(d)(iFt
REACRERES &

(i) EWEAETIRTIER
BREEM o

BEARARER - RAFH
A& B A5 & K9 50E A A LA
TRIEE : ((RETFESE
il [ R OE AR TE BT i A
R (i) A8 4% B B B 65 i 5 ZE )
BT R F R F o R20134
128318+ Al Dk &G A A
ARFENFEESEAREAR
#3,468,828,0007t (2012
F: A R %2,377,500,000
TL) °
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. EXK{#E (&)

(e) Capital management (e) EXEHE

284

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
liability-to-asset ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
liabilities by total assets. The liability-to-asset ratio of the
Group as at December 31, 2013 is 63% (2012: 71%).

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management compared with 2012. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group primarily evaluates customers’ credit status
and their ability to guarantee payment through its
establishment of an appropriate business evaluation
system. The Group generally requires customers to settle
progress billings in accordance with contracted terms
and other debts in accordance with agreements. Credit
terms may be granted to customers, depending on credit
assessment carried out by management on an individual
basis. Also, in order to properly control the credit risk on
trade and other receivables, the Group issued policies
on the purchase of export credit insurance. To protect
against credit risk in its trading business, the Group
requires the Company and its subsidiary entities to buy
unified export credit insurance from China Export & Credit
Insurance Corporation (“SINOSURE?”); for its construction
contract business under the financing arrangement of
export seller’s credit provided by the Group to relevant
customers, the Group requires each project to meet
financing needs and control for credit risk on trade and
other receivables by buying export credit insurance from
SINOSURE.

The Group’s significant concentration of credit risk stems
from its significant trade and other receivables due from
individual customers.

MREREERAAE

AEENBFEBBEPEERREAR
b2 RBE SRR - FEEREREE
[R B o 7N £5 [ T R 89 5% 55 R B DA KR AR
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BERREEMEAT -
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AEENERRRIERBRE
5N EAMEYHIE - EEECH
TE 5 B R #5748 B 12 T R B 7%
FEAER -
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EBFENEAFETFNER
ARRARERBEXMORES - K&
B —REREFFPLERA RIGHE
B ERERRE BB ERM
B - REEEEHSERET
MIERFHE - TEREPRTE
B I BEEEHNEIR
HiEYRENERRR - A&
BHETRBE LD ERRRAK
Ko RHBEEZEHHHNERR
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at December 31, 2013, 9% of the total trade and
other receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer (2012: 10%) and 26% of the total trade and
other receivables was due from the five largest customers
(2012: 25%).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 21.

Liquidity risk

The funding needs of the Company and its subsidiary
entities are raised and allocated by the Group. Fund
raising from external sources by subsidiary entities is
subject to approval by the Company. The Company and
its subsidiary entities manage cash flows according to
their own business approval processes. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirement in the short
and longer term.
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. BEREERARE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESR (&)

The following table details the remaining contractual TRFMARE AR EE KA
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the NRAMESREENEH®E RS
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are R EREBENRERARITFIER S
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including mE (EFHARF = KiER
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if HHARNBITHE (N RZH)
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting HENNEYRN) UERAEER R
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company. ARBMWENROZFEBE :

can be required to pay:

The Group EE

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRKTERERE

More than  More than

Within 1 year 2 years

1yearor butwithin but within More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
L 1EUE 25N E
RERER BT BFHSE 56N an REE
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFL

At December 31, 2013 R2013E12A31H
Borrowings EE 241,463 73,828 4,141 2,020 321,452 313,944
Trade and other payables BHRAMENTE 11,705,127 517,356 - - 12,222,483 12,222,483
11,946,590 591,184 4,141 2,020 12,543,935 12,536,427
Interest rate swaps (net settled) ~ FZ i (FBLEH) 4,580 1,706 1 - 6,297 6,279
Derivatives settled gross: BEHENETR
Foreign currency forward EHNERR :

exchange contracts:

- outflow —inih 5,582,799 1,364,971 1,559,991 - 8,507,761

- inflow —-mA (5,655,226)  (1,395,100) (1,610,720) - (8,661,046)
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. IEREERARE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESR (&)
The Group (Continued) REE (&)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRARRE TR

More than ~ More than

Within 1 year 2 years
1yearor  butwithin  butwithin ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

1ERRR 1ENE 2FNE

RERER EFE  EAHsE  SFIAE e HHEfE
RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000  AMB'000  AMB'000
NRETEL ANRETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR

At December 31, 2012 R20126128318
Borrowings 1 139,786 76,376 78,831 3,266 298,259 288,538
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMENZE 10,475,475 500,778 2,440 - 10,978,693 10,970,548
10,615,261 577,154 81,271 3,266 11,276,952 11,259,086
Interest rate swaps (net settled) FlREH (FELE) 7,117 4,564 1,721 - 13,402 13,388
Derivatives settled gross: BEEETR
Foreign currency forward EHNERR :

exchange contracts:

- outflow — A 944,662 665,638 327,189 - 1,937,489

- inflow A (953,046)  (664,832) (313,982 - (1,931,860)
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

1. UABEERARE (F)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESRR ()
The Company N

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

RRRARR LML
More than  More than
Within 1 year 2 years
1yearor butwithin  but within  More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
D E 1L 25N L
REREY BFHF (EFHsE 56N aE REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIL
At December 31, 2013 12013512A31H
Borrowings EE 72,127 72,546 916 - 145,589 142,668
Trade and other payables B R EhENTE 10,255,698 520,128 - - 10,775,826 10,775,826
10,327,825 592,674 916 - 10,921,415 10,918,494
Interest rate swaps (net settled)  FIXIEH (FELE) 4,580 1,706 11 - 6,297 6,279
Derivatives settled gross: BEHENETR
Foreign currency forward BEINESH :
exchange contracts:
- outflow i 5,379,463 1,071,607 1,035,632 - 7,486,702
- inflow - (5,448,989) (1,095,190) (1,069,071) - (7,613,250)
At December 31, 2012 R2012F12A318
Borrowings B 74,312 74,616 75,802 - 224,730 216,850
Trade and other payables EHRAMEMTE  8867,139 452,947 - - 9,320,086 9,320,086
8,941,451 527,563 75,802 - 9544816 9,536,936
Interest rate swaps (net seftled) — FEe ) (FELEE) 7,117 4,564 1,721 = 13,402 13,388
Derivatives settled gross: BEABIETE -
Foreign currency forward EHINESH :
exchange contracts:
- outflow — il 944,662 665,638 327,189 - 1,937,489
- inflow - (953,046)  (664,832) (313,982 - (1,981,860)
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 1. EBEERARE (F)
VALUES (CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=XEBs
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest REBRNFERREZRBERE
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates BEAE - BZ8H =K EE F X
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest ERNEESREAEBEERR
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The EREMERR LA DEER
Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed and % o REERBITEEMEER
variable rate borrowings either through the contractual BEME RMERE B & ie 5
terms of the interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities B {5 FA TE B2 & I BE 52 [ E Il =K
or through the use of interest rate swaps in order to MZEBFENBELLD - AEE
manage its interest rate risks. B e o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEHX
The following table details the interest rate profile TR FF A ET R A R B 52
of the Group’s and the Company’s net instruments 2 AEBRAAGRHE
(interest-bearing financial assets less interest-bearing HRMNFILA GrESmE
financial liabilities) at the end of the reporting period, ERGTESmBE) FIEH
after taking into account the effect of interest rate I
swaps:
The Group The Company
r£E RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 2012%F 20135 2012%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABMTFL  ARETT  AR®FTr  ARKETL

Net fixed rate instruments: BEEFARIA:

Trade and other receivables B o REEKIE = 101,000 = -

Construction contracts BiEARENIE 4,150,113 5,221,298 4,015,793 4,922,132

Bank deposits BITER 13,756,307 14,346,426 13,259,911 13,671,399

Less: Borrowings o EE 309,394 282,128 142,668 216,850
Trade and other payables 2o REMERTIE - 109,307 - =

17,597,026 19,277,289 17,133,036 18,376,681

Net variable rate instruments:  Z¥EHFIZIA :
Bank deposits RITFR 4,665,970 4,660,970 3,383,731 3,734,114
Less: Borrowings W EE 4,550 6,410 - -

4,661,420 4,654,560 3,383,731 3,734,114
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

3. MKEBEERARE (&)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(c) F=mEbz (&)

(i) Sensitivity Analysis (ii) BETEDH

At December 31, 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates of net variable rate instruments, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB35,303,000 (2012:
RMB34,951,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at the end of the reporting period.

The estimated 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the end of the next annual reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2012.

R2013F12 A31H » [FZF
METAMFIRBELEZ
TF100fE & 2h M AT B E A
BERFTE  HFHEH
NE BB BRBE 5 F R AR E
wmADRIEM SR HIAR
#35,303,0007T (20124 :
AR #34,951,0007T) °

R ST (R
B0 R 5 AT A B
AT EDIITLELR
TABENRSREFEM

B o

fib 5H100E 2 B 0 £ 3% 3¢ T
FREEREHEET M
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

1. UREMEERAAE (F)

(d) Currency risk (d) ExE b

292

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through

sales, purchases and financing which give rise to

receivables, payables, borrowings and cash balances

that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency

other than the functional currency of the operations to

which the transaction relate. The currencies giving rise

to this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”),
Euros (“EUR”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). The Group
manages this risk as follows:

AEETEREE KB RE
BESHAINE (BN ZHEEH
EBMEEEB AN EE) 5HE
MEWRR - BNFIR - BER
RedunmukESRR - E4
ZEBRHNEEETERXT ([X
) BT (B Tl) & T
(MBx)) - AEEHZEARNE
BT

(i) Forecast transactions (i) FBAXEZ
The Group uses foreign currency forward exchange AREEF A=EINES [ &
contracts to hedge some of its currency risk in HERERBERREERS
respect of committed future sales transactions. BB B ¥ E R - 72013
At December 31, 2013, the Group had foreign F12A31H A&EE A& Y
currency forward exchange contracts hedging R TE ORI X 5 B iR B AN E &
forecast transactions with a net fair value of EFEAREDNRBARE
RMB57,846,000 (2012: RMB nil), recognized as 57,846,0007T (20124 : A
derivative financial instruments recorded in “trade REEZ L) BRBLER
and other receivables”. [8 5 & E A fE WGRIE | 8y

PTESRTA -
(i) Recognized assets and liabilities (i) ERZZEREE

Changes in the fair value of foreign currency
forward exchange contracts on monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in profit or loss (see note 6). The net fair
value of foreign currency forward exchange contracts
used by the Group on monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at December 31,
2013 was RMB84,486,000 (2012: RMB(4,703,000)),
recognized as derivative financial instruments
recorded in “trade and other receivables”.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

3. MKEBEERARE (&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥Ebs (&)

(ii) Recognized assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) EEZFLZEREE (&)

(iii)

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognized assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency are excluded.

PEMAINESHENEEE
ERBEME @ ARBERER
BANUERUNBAEXE
AN BER H N DA R SR A ER R
T < FRREFE—E
AR HKF o

(iii) & & Bz i O

TRAEANEERARBR
HBERRABRABENEE
BN ERFBENE R
BEXREMELENEER
B0 o SLEIRM S - ER
WOMTRERFRE AR
BIHIE =BT - MARKS
R o NEFRIBINEB RIS
BERBEAAEENZ2IE
BEENER -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. BEREERANRE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥E (&)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (iii) E¥ RO (E)

The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
SHNERBHA (UARKESITR)

usD EUR HKD Others
En 5 BT Hith
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBETFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At December 31, 2013 #2013%512A31H
Cash and cash equivalents ReKBeEEY 1,234,298 191,737 2,090,973 520,316
Restricted deposits R HER 1,309 36 = 1,915
Trade and other receivables &% R E f fEUFIA 1,946,787 183,720 7,019 1,607
Construction contracts B2iEAR KRR 5,411,217 15,421 - 98,525
Borrowings BE (278,589) (619) - (22,124)
Trade and other payables 5 RAEMENTIR (2,129,788) (65,543) (1,579) (83,422)
Gross exposure arising BRREERARE
from recognized assets EEmBRBmO
and liabilities 6,185,234 324,752 2,096,413 516,817
Notional amounts of foreign & HIMES &)
currency forward HEREHE
exchange contracts (2,875,085) - - -
Net exposure arising from BERREERARE
recognized assets EERF R O
and liabilities 3,310,149 324,752 2,096,413 516,817
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 1. IKEREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E#RE (&)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (iii) BRSO (&)
The Group (Continued) rEE (4F)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
SN R A AARESITR)

usD EUR HKD Others
X BT BT Hith

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

At December 31, 2012 M2012%12831H
Cash and cash equivalents B kB EEY 1,786,327 227,344 3,024,959 159,547
Restricted deposits R 14,229 9,610 - 9,466
Trade and other receivables B % M HE YR 1,807,280 306,968 - 253
Construction contracts BESREWFIE 6,657,999 76,269 = 104,041
Borrowings BE (223,366) (12,105) - -
Trade and other payables B 5 KA R F0R (2,239,753) (135,225) (44) (46,090)
Gross exposure arising BHEREEREE

from recognized assets ELnBEBRKO

and liabilities 7,802,716 472,861 3,024,915 227,217
Notional amounts of foreign = HISNEA FIKY

currency forward 2ETH

exchange contracts (1,909,305) - = =

Net exposure arising from BEREEREE
recognized assets = A ) E ik B
and liabilities 5,893,411 472,861 3,024,915 227,217
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

1. EBEERARE (F)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E#¥REP (&)

(iii) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

(iii) B RO (&)

The Company

AATF

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
SHERBRHA (AARKETIR)

usbD EUR HKD Others
EH B BT Hth
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT AREFT ARETFT
At December 31, 2013 M2013F12831H
Cash and cash equivalents ReKReEEY 1,086,062 180,279 2,090,973 500,012
Restricted deposits ZRHER 209 24 = -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E i fEZIE 1,443,318 172,369 7,019 753
Construction contracts BESREKZIE 5,170,107 15,421 = =
Borrowings Ep (142,668) = - -
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H A ER FRIE (1,805,866) (31,977) (1,414) (82,534)
Gross exposure arising ERAEEKRERE
from recognized assets EERBRERD
and liabilities 5,751,162 336,116 2,096,578 418,231
Notional amounts of foreign ~ EHISMNEA FH
currency forward HEEHE
exchange contracts (2,744,267) - - -
Net exposure arising from ERRAEERAE
recognized assets B AR R B i
and liabilities 3,006,895 336,116 2,096,578 418,231
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

1. AMEERARE (F)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥Eps (&)

(iii) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (iii) BRSO (&)

The Company (Continued)

KT (H#)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
SN RO AARESITR)

usD EUR HKD Others
eI BT BT Hth
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At December 31, 2012 R2012%F12A31H
Cash and cash equivalents BRI EEY 1,722,072 219,903 3,024,959 151,577
Restricted deposits XBRHER 215 14 = -
Trade and other receivables & 5 N H fth JE U8 1,241,758 304,608 - -
Construction contracts BiaA eI 6,388,141 76,269 - -
Borrowings BE (216,850) - - -
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFE (2,213,681) (72,784) - (41,970)
Gross exposure arising BRREAERARE
from recognized assets E AR BRI D
and liabilities 6,921,655 528,010 3,024,959 109,607
Notional amounts of foreign ~ =HISNES R
currency forward HEEHE
exchange contracts (1,909,305) = = =
Net exposure arising from EHEREEREE
recognized assets B R RE R D
and liabilities 5,012,350 528,010 3,024,959 109,607
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. IEREERARE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E#REP (&)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv) BB
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRETWERNEBRFE
change in the Group’s and the Company'’s profit after &S R A EAMO /N
tax and retained profits that would arise if foreign PEE RNz 5 H AR &
exchange rates to which the Group has significant g BERMEEMERE S
exposure at the end of the reporting period had RETE  NEERAAQF
changed at those dates, assuming all other risk FR B3 12 Sk B K2 AR B8 % 71 7T B
variables remained constant. EANEREE -
The Group The Company
158 RAR
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 2012F 20135 2012%
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) in (decrease)  (decrease)in  (decrease) (decrease) in (decrease)  (decrease) in
in foreign profit after tax in foreign  profit after tax in foreign profit after tax in foreign ~ profit after tax
exchange and retained exchange  and retained exchange and retained exchange  and retained

rate profits rate profits rate profits rate profits
REENR RN R REEANR REENR
NEEZ REEH SHEE RER ﬂ NEEZ RERR S RE &N

Bhn/(8Y) #m/8) #m/(9) £nm/(R9) #m/(8D) #m/(69) #n/(RY) En/(5))

RMB1000 RMB’ 000 RMBI000 RMB'000

AREFT ANRETT ARETFT ANREFT
UsD £7 5% (86,552) 5% 221,191 5% (64,890) 5% 71,254
UsD £ (5%) 86,552 6% (221,191) (5%) 64,890 6% (71.254)
EUR B 10% 24,380 10% 35,486 10% 25,209 10% 39,601
EUR BT (0% (24,380) (10% (3,486 (10%) (25209 (0% (39,601)
HKD BT 5% 78,615 5% 113434 5% 78,622 5% 113436
HKD 30 (5%  (18,615) 6% (113434 (6% (18622 B%  (113436)
Others Hif 5% 19,493 5% 8,772 5% 15,684 5% 4,10
Others £t (5%  (19.499) (5%) 6772 (5%  (15,684) (5% (4,110)
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

1. AEMEERARE (F)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥RE (&)

(iv) BT H (H)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis presented in the above table
represent an aggregate of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
retained profits measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of each reporting period for
presentation purpose.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
intercompany payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2012.

ER2FNNNDTERKKRY
AEESERBOBBREN R
REEN (ZEENEER
BETE - ABIHmMEEE
BERRNEZTBRERAR
%) MEAERTE -

BURME D ITIRRIMEE R &
BEREAREHNTEARE
B AT ARER HE
REERIMNER RS BT
- BRAKEARRHED
BT ETT T E A
ShEYE M ETE RO IR K
FEWRIR » DT A BRI
XN BREIBE/AE
BH2IEEELNER -
DT HE201 24 Ry HE R R HE
i o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. EREERARE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (e) AARE
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value () URAREIRHEHTA

The following table presents the carrying value of TREIAAABFENE

financial instruments measured at fair value at the BT A RS B RERERES

end of the reporting period across the three levels of BREENFERI[Em T

the fair value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial B BEIARENAAE

Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each BN =(EERNEEE -

financial instrument categorized in its entirety based ZEEeMIAENARBETRIK

on the lowest level of input that is significant to that BHZAREFEMS BE
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as ENREERBAL2HE
follows: HeBRERWT :

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured e FIR (ZmER) : &E
using quoted priced (adjusted) in active markets RS T ALEER
for identical financial instruments; 3% IS & 1 35 3 (B

(AL FTENDR
B

e level 2: fair values measured using quoted o Fom:(FRBELUER
prices in active market for similar financial THAEEREMS LM
instruments, or using valuation techniques LHRE ERAMEE
in which all significant inputs are directly or T AR EE LR
indirectly based on observable market data; BRERIBRMSEE

B ERNEN AR
A :

e Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using o ZFEIR (HEEAR) : &
valuation techniques in which any significant AEREZNHE A2 E
input is not based on observable market data. HIEER AT B RTIHE

BOEERMGSAENA
M e
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 1. IKEREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (Continued) (e) ARE (&)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (i) HUAZEIRHE@MT A
(Continued) (#&)
The Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value K £ B 720124 K&20134F
as at December 31, 2012 and 2013 are all measured 12A31AEARESIENS
under level 2. BT AL oGt E -
The Group The Company
rEH NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012

20135 20124 20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

ABRFR ARETT ARETT ARETRT

Level 2 PR
Assets EE
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMTA
— foreign currency forward —RHINES R
exchange contracts 142,332 15,117 118,165 15,117
Liabilities &
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A
— foreign currency forward —RHINES R
exchange contracts - 19,820 = 19,820
— interest rate swaps — =z 6,279 13,388 6,279 13,388

Annual Report 2013
2013FF5H 301



Notes to the Financial Statements

Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. MKEBEERARE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)
(e) Fair values (Continued) (e) ARE (&)
(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at (i) FEAZEIRYELHTA
other than fair value BAZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial M201245 2013412 A 31
instruments carried at cost or amortized cost are B - A& B A S K
not materially different from their fair value as at AHERNS R T EMNREE
December 31, 2012 and 2013 except as follows: HENABETESKEZE
LATRBRAN ¢
The Group The Company
pis-1 | O
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20126 20138 20128

Book value  Fairvalue  Bookvalue  Farvalue Bookvalue  Fairvalue  Bookvalue  Fairvalue
KR M RHE M BEE M HEfA A
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RVB000  RMB000
ABRTE ARBTR AEHTT ARETT  ARETR AREFZ ARETT  AREFL

Construction BEAR

contracts 5574518  5381,350  70306,183  7,160490 5,195,689 5,001,265 6,879,121 6,725,164
Long-term REE

borrowings (151,361) (146,943) (236,116) (224,068) (142,668) (138,250) (216,850) (204,802)

(f) Estimation of fair values () AAREHM-HET
(i) Receivables and borrowings (i) FERZEREE

The fair value is estimated as the present value of the AREMFARKRESRE
future cash flows discounted at the market interest BREARNTISHEITR
rates at the end of the reporting period. HIRME -
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. BEREERARE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(f) Estimation of fair values (Continued) () 2ARENMKE (&)
(i) Derivatives (i) 7T4£TA
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts EHMNESRER ™S
are either marked to market using listed market B ITIRE Rz B ERK HE
prices or by discounting the difference between the W T 5 R HERNE R
contractual forward price and the current market o MEXEHHAREFER
forward price. The fair value of interest rate swaps is IRB & REEAIE -

obtained using discounted cash flow models.

32. COMMITMENTS 32. &
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the year end not (a) B mERAPRTFEERNERK
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: EREEARAENT :
The Group The Company
rEH KAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 2013%F 20124

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFTT ARETT

Contracted for EHES) 310,055 82,128 53,735 56,297
Authorized but not BEERRETL
contracted for 1,411,810 1,476,172 908,259 918,493

1,721,865 1,568,300 961,994 969,790

The Company’s capital commitments outstanding as at R2013F 128318 &k E 1 B &
December 31, 2013 represented capital commitments NE|EREESEF EIL =R E
amounted to RMB961,994,000 for the planned BE—BRFHAENEEAAR
construction of a new office building located in Beijing #961,994,000 T HY & AN EHE o
in the PRC.
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

32. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 32. &iE (&)
(b) At the year end, the total future minimum lease payments (b) REXR W RIBTAHEHLEE

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as g ARENSERERBEE

follows: R
The Group The Company
rEE RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 2012%F 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT AREETT AREFT ARETT

Within 1 year 1 AR 12,493 13,549 6,653 10,103
After 1 year but within 5 years 14ELA_F{B5EIARA 6,415 6,119 711 4,545
18,908 19,668 7,364 14,648
The Group leases certain buildings through AEBERBIAIHELSCEHENR
non-cancellable operating leases. These operating leases EETEF ZSLEHEELR
do not contain provision for contingent lease rentals. None BEdkBHeEE HEHBZEH
of the rental agreements contain escalation provision that BEESERRERRKRELNEL
may require higher future rental payment. 1&&5K °
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. ZBEEE
(a) Legal contingencies (a) EERBEH
The Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group EEBEBBES  AQRIRA
are defendants in certain lawsuits as well as the named SENETHEB QR ARELIFA
parties in other proceedings arising in the normal course H R R AR B AR R B
of business. While the outcomes of such contingencies, e o BABRIREBEZS
lawsuits or other proceedings cannot be determined at SBEEMN  FRAKEMERER
present, the directors of the Company believe that any MER  AAAESHEEMA
resulting liabilities will not have a material adverse impact IS BB ET TS B AEER
on the financial position, liquidity, or operating results of B - MEBESHEEEEE
the Group. HEBEARNFFZE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 33. REEE (&)

(b) Guarantees (b) #EF

For some agency business, the Group worked with banks
to issue irrevocable letter of guarantee to buyers, which
guaranteed the repayment of advances paid by the buyer
plus interest if applicable if and when the total or part of
the advances becomes repayable to the buyer from the
seller in accordance with the relevant contracts.

As at December 31, 2013, the maximum liability of the
Group and the Company under these guarantees issued
are the outstanding amount of letter of guarantee issued
through certain banks to the buyers of RMB179,889,000
(2012: RMB662,039,000) and RMB179,889,000 (2012:
RMB662,039,000), respectively, which are secured by
certain assets of the sellers or letter of guarantees
through certain banks from sellers.

The Company has issued guarantees to banks in respect
of the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries for
issuance of letter of credit, letter of guarantees, bills and
bank loans etc.

As at December 31, 2013, the maximum liability of
the Company under these guarantees issued for its
subsidiaries are the banking facilities drawn down
by the subsidiaries of RMB1,433,894,000 (2012:
RMB744,105,000).

The directors of the Company do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Group under any
other guarantees.

BN — LIRS - ARERR
TR (ERIE 77 3 A AT BUH R 4R
B AEREZEHXEBOBET
XA BN AR IZAERE & R & i
ETMELEER  BEHEEER
P TR FOINFS (AEA) »

R2013F12A31H ' A& B &
AR RZEEFELERET
MEERAESRBRE LR
MEFZELNSESIAIAAR
#5179,889,0007T (20124 : A
R #¥662,039,0007T) & A R #
179,889,000t (20124 : A R
#662,039,0007T) AR K EREE -
NEFWNETEESEFBAR
LEERITENAS MR BRI TEHELR o

ARAREMBARELER
&R RERBITEREE
EORTTERBRERRITEHLTE
* o

M2013%F12831H » &N A 7 B
ZEBENB AR ELHER
BETHWEBERABEANE QA
EFANRITEABEEARY
1,433,894,0007T (20124 : A R
#744,105,0007T) °

ARBEZYTRBAEAERR
RAE A B b HE AR (7] AN SR [ 12 i AR
/% o
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. EXEBWERZ

(a) Transactions with SINOMACH and fellow (a) BHERKRERAMBEQRNRS
subsidiaries

BUMBHRREMBOARES
S REERBBIETEEEK
Rl 2P B A RETTH 2R 7

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the principal related party transactions with
SINOMACH and fellow subsidiaries, which were carried

out in the ordinary course of business are as follows: RE5WT
2013 2012
20135 20126
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥FT AREFT
Non-exempt continuing TEEBHRRGE
connected transactions HERS
Provision of engineering services M T3 &FRETRE
and products to R REm
- SINOMACH — B - 826,472
Receipt of engineering services and BXRERTHE R
products from IERBERER
~ Fellow subsidiaries —RZNBAF 749,998 466,757
Trading procurement from M TEIE A H#TE SRR
- Fellow subsidiaries - RAZERBAH = 11,688
Provision of integrated services to [ F5I1% 5 fe i r & B
— Fellow subsidiaries eI 15,274 12,067
- SINOMACH — B 7,713 -
Net deposits placed with/(withdrawn from) RTHEHNESR
(B#) 55
— A fellow subsidiary - —RAZHBAA 501,160 (1,452,642)
Interest income charged to [\ T3 & FWERRF S 4 A
- A fellow subsidiary - —XRAZMB LA 8,525 13,029
Exempt continuing connected BB FERERS
transactions
Lease expenses paid to ST TS HHEEER
- A fellow subsidiary - —RKAZHBAF 318 315
Exempt connected transactions EEBHRABMERS
Working capital received from RETISTNEEES
- A fellow subsidiary ——RRAZHBAF (26,268) (50,441)
Guarantees revoked by A NBIE T ERBR MR
- SINOMACH — B - 357,891
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with SINOMACH and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

()  The related party transactions listed above constitute

connected

transactions or

continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on HKSE (the “Listing
Rules”). The detailed disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in the “Report of Directors”
section of the annual report for the year ended December

31, 2013.

(b) Outstanding balances with SINOMACH and

AARESIR)

34. EXBMERS (&)

(a) HEERERNBLARANRS
(&)

i) LEREIEBARSBEEES
PR P REA LR ([ EMR
Al)) FUUAEFTEENBER
SPEFEBERS - ETHHRA
FBIAAZFTRENBEBABHR
HZE2013F12A31B L EEF
HmE [ESE®RE] BH -

(b) ERHER: [ A D RAY 4 K ER

fellow subsidiaries ]
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Cash deposits placed with RT3IEHERSFER
- A fellow subsidiary — —ZRAZXWBAT 501,160 -
Trade and other receivables due from EW T FSHEE S M
H R U R IE
- SINOMACH — B 10,159 265,913
— Fellow subsidiaries —RZRKBAR 22,029 208,741
Receipts in advance from B T51% 5 WA T8 I 58
~ SINOMACH B 47,541 _
Trade and other payables due to RETEFMES R
H A 308
- Fellow subsidiaries — RARMEAR 553,658 238,806

The directors of the Company confirm that all amounts
due from/to related parties as at December 31, 2013 are

all trading in nature.

AN A ESERN2013F12 A
31BZFTAEY ~RIFEEEE T
HHYBESHE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B& 58 zERAS) -

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Contributions to defined contribution plans

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans organized by relevant local government
authorities of the PRC and SINOMACH for its employees.
As at December 31, 2013, there was no material
outstanding contribution to post-employment benefit
plans. Details of the defined contribution retirement plans
are set out in note 28(b).

Transactions with other state-controlled entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through
its numerous authorities, affiliates or other organizations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). For the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, the Group had
transactions with State-owned Enterprises including,
but not limited to, sales of goods, rendering of services,
purchase of goods and services. The directors consider
that the transactions with these State-owned Enterprises
are activities in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the
Group and theses State-owned Enterprises are ultimately
controlled or owned by the PRC government. The Group
has also established pricing policies for services and
products, and such pricing policies do not depend
on whether or not the customers are State-owned
Enterprises. Having due regard to the substance of the
relationships, the directors are of the opinion that none of
these transactions are material related party transactions
that require separate disclosure.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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AARESIR)

4. EXNBMERE (&)

(c)

(d)

R EMKET BB HER

AEEBHEEELEBTEHAH
Hh 75 BT A R e B R O SR E
M FGRIRET & - 2013512 A
318 - BEBERBEAFEUEEX
REAEF o BRERBGRIKETE
B EF B ST 5E28(b) °

RABEEHZEREFER
MR 5

AREBETHPEBRNBBRERE
Mg MERELEMARERE
S EEEA ST N (5B
[EERE]) BAEERNKBERR
T &8 o R E =20124F k2013
F12A31BLEFE  ANEEHEE
BRELENRZBHE (ETR
R HEMm - RERSARE
BEEmERE - EERE HZ
EHECENRZIBEAEERE
XBEARPNEE  WAAREHE
MRS ERARNEBE RZEEE
1k 28 =2 Hp B IR A A 4% 428 ol sk
ENEEMEIXEAXTEER
FE o NEBINE KRG RER
SV EBBER - BAEEBERL
THARBEFEE ABB R -
BADZRABENLEER =
ERB RERFHWIHEATIAE
HEBRHNENER GRS o
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Bt 755 R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. EXBEEAIRS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Transactions with other state-controlled entities (d) RPEEHEMZEREGER
in the PRC (Continued) RS (&)
Apart from transactions mentioned above, the Group has Br P2 S AN - ANER E R ER H A,
transactions with other state-controlled banks, including ZEREGHMWRITHETIRS - &
but not limited to depositing and borrowing money. FETBRAGERLEE - EER
The directors are of the opinion that these related party BBEBEMIBEIRIZFHIEER
transactions require disclosure as other state-controlled STFURBENZERE S50
entities transactions as follows: T -
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARETF T
Interest income IS PN 319,602 305,029
Interest expense TR 6,771 9,875
Borrowings received BlEE 67,094 90,390
Borrowings repaid BEEEEE 173,103 174,553
Net deposits FROEEE (3,501,307) 11,007,951
The balances due from/to other state-controlled entities U RIS EM TR RS TS
transactions are as follows: RGFIBAMEERIT
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR Fr
Bank deposits RITHER 14,832,742 18,334,049
Borrowings gTE 169,762 275,771
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Br B ER AR B aE

For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 9, and certain of the highest paid employees as

4. EXBMERS (&)

() FEEEAEHM

TEEBABNERAFEREN
MERE  TERDHAEEE
HOBE OB AL - BEE
ATEE -

TEEBEABNEL 0 BENE
IOFTBESL N FARGES KM
FI0MEENS N T ETRSH

disclosed in note 10, is as follows: B EMEREuT
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREF T
Short-term employee benefits EHE B BT 13,384 15,413
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH R 353 328
13,737 15,741

35. PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider its parent and ultimate
holding company to be SINOMACH, which is a state-owned
enterprise established in the PRC. SINOMACH does not
produce financial statements available for public use.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 ® Z/Z2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBELIR)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 36. CEMENB2013F1 510 B
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS BN SR RERWIBET
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR A FATEARZREBNTRES
THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD BEGINNING &

JANUARY 1, 2013

BEZSMBHRERTNEAY  BEE
AAEAIEEE D BMZ AN B2013F
1TATERB ST AR R ARER - M
ZEVERRITARRBIOBETA - #
FIEA R - TXHEEAER

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting
period beginning January 1, 2013 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the Group:

SEER -

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
RT3 B#S
ZERmIEs
BEEX

IFRIC 21, Levies

BRmERERERE 5215 - 47

January 1, 2014

20141818
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, BB B A5 S 2Bl 551 05 January 1, 2014
- Investment entities BB B RS R 1 2% R Bl 25 20141 B18

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities
Amendments to IAS 36, Impairment of Assets
- Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2009)

ERE2TH (B K)-REEE
BIRR@RHERIE32%: (BR]A) 2B T A -
2 -BHLHEERTHRE

B & T ERE36 (BIA) -
BERE - FE2BEEZ TN 2 FRE

BFR @ EAIE305% (BFIA) -
ERTA: ERRAE - TETEH
EERH o AniE

BRI BRE RN - M LA (2009F)

January 1, 2014
2014F1H18

January 1, 2014
2014F1H18

January 1, 2014
2014F1H18

January 1, 2015

2015F1R1H

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010) BRETSRERRIES - 2B LA (2010%) January 1, 2015
2015F1A1H

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments BRET RS ERIEON, - 2H T A KEIFREI January 1, 2015
and IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures ERUNETRLBIR - KFE — BHEAH 20151 A1H

- Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures

KRR G5RE (EF17)
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 » Z/E£2013F 124318 ILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (fk S AFERASN © AARBESIR)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD BEGINNING
JANUARY 1, 2013 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

37. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
(a) Dividends distribution
On March 24, 2014, the directors of the Company have

proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed
in note 30(b).

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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“AGM”

“Articles of
Association”

“Board”

“CG Code”

“China Machinery
R&D”

“China United”

“CMEC Comtrans”

“CMEC Expo”

the annual general meeting of the Company

the articles of association of the Company,
adopted on February 14, 2011 and as
amended from time to time

the board of Directors of the Company

the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

China Machinery International Engineering
Design & Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (#
BERIREXAMREAEREMELA), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
established in the PRC on October 5, 1993
with limited liability

China United Engineering Corporation* (&
BlEtS TI2A 7)), an enterprise established
in the PRC on January 21, 1984 and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of SINOMACH,
our connected person and our Promoter
who holds 1.00% equity interest in our
Company as at the date of December 11,
2012

CMEC Comtrans International Co., Ltd.*
(FHREENBERREEREELA), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
established in the PRC on March 5, 1997
with limited liability

CMEC International Exhibition Co., Ltd.*
(AEZEHERESREMEAF), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company
established in the PRC on January 9, 1995
with limited liability
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Glossary of Terms

7] [ 3R}

“CMEC
International

Engineering’

“CMEC
Machinery &
Electric”

“CMEC Tendering”

“CNCEC”

“CNEEC”

CMEC International Engineering Co.,
Ltd* (FXBEBRIRAREMERQA), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
established in the PRC on September 9,
1997 with limited liability

CMEC Machinery & Electric Equipment
Import & Export Co., Ltd.* (P RET#H
O AR AR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company established in the PRC on
January 16, 1995 with limited liability

China Machinery and Equipment
International Tendering Co., Ltd.* (F &%
FEERBIZERETAR]), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company established
in the PRC on April 29, 1996 with limited
liability

China National Complete Engineering
Corporation* (FEKETIREABRAF), a
corporation established in the PRC on
September 5, 1985, which is wholly-
owned by SINOMACH, which entrusted
the Company to manage its 100% equity
interests pursuant to the Equity Custodian
Agreement entered into by the SINOMACH
and the Company on June 26, 2013

China National Electric Engineering
Co, Ltd. #FHE N TR BER A A, a
limited liability company established in
the PRC in October 1979 and wholly-
owned by SINOMACH, which entrusted
the Company to manage its 100% equity
interests pursuant to the Equity Custodian
Agreement entered into by the SINOMACH
and the Company on June 26, 2013
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Glossary of Terms

7] B 3%

“Company”, “Our China Machinery Engineering Corporation* NGRS ¥ HEERREIEZROER

Company” or FEHBZELIERODERQA), a [RRA N —FKK2011F1 718
“CMEC” joint stock company with limited liability gk [ BEHEEMRA L OR DB
incorporated in the PRC on January 18, M T2 | AR BRIEXESEM
2011, and except where the context 15 BAIBIE - ()VEMIE A
indicates otherwise, includes (i) our B R(i)FAAR AKX AHBER
predecessors and (i) with respect to the Bt 2 RIAIIERR A R AT A HR
period before our Company became the BimE @ AREBRREA
holding company of its present subsidiaries, Ak (RIERME) EaTH
the business operated by it and its present BT
subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
predecessors
“Companies Law”  Company Law in the PRC (F ¥ A R # [AR)%] ZEARREREEHZE
A B A 7 %), adopted by the Standing & R2005F10 827 B % 4
Committee of the National People’ I A2006F1 18 £ &
Congress on October 27, 2005 and which hEARLREARE (&
became effective on January 1, 2006, as NEHERT » R A LM
amended, supplemented or otherwise A EH)
modified from time to time
“Controlling has the meaning ascribed thereto under the [ AR A% o BB Fm# AR T HRE
Shareholder” Listing Rules
“Core Sectors” the core sectors of our International EANGES IR BIRR TIR s 2R 758
Engineering Contracting Business which BOATE - RENRIRT
are the power sector, transportation sector ¥ RBEHTERETH
and telecommunications sector HATE
“developing according to the World Bank, developing [B#ES BREHRBITHEN  FR
countries” countries can refer to the countries with e B R AT 5 4 A BE I A BE R
low- and middle-income economies, which KR FKTHEIR - EAH
are those with a gross national income per Bl R @ A D 12,2755
capita of less than US$12,275 7T
“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company [E%] RARES
“Domestic Shares” ordinary shares in our capital, with a [AER] BABRAFHLER  FK&

nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are
subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi

EEAARE1.0070 * J5IA
ARERERH R
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Glossary of Terms

7] [ 3R}

“ENR”

“EPC” or
“engineering,
procurement and
construction” or
“turnkey”

uGDPu

“G Eu

“Global Offering”

“Group”, “Our
Group”,
“we” or “us”

Engineering News-Record magazine, a
publication that provides news, analyses,
commentary and data about the global
construction industry and an independent
third party

a common form of contracting arrangement
whereby the contractor is commissioned by
the project owner to carry out such project
work as design, procurement, construction
and trial operations, or any combination of
the above, either through the contractor’s
own labor or by subcontracting part or all
of the project work, and be responsible for
the quality, safety, timely delivery and cost
of the project

gross domestic product (all references to
GDP growth rates are to real as opposed
to nominal growth rates of GDP)

General Electric International, Inc. @M=
FBEEAA], acting through its GE Power
& Water division, a corporation organized
and existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, USA

The offering by the Company of
825,700,000 H Shares for subscription
by the public in Hong Kong and placing
with professional and institutional investors
outside the United Stated in December
2012

the Company and, except where the
context otherwise requires, all its
subsidiaries

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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“H Share(s)”

“HK$”

“IFRS”

ulMFu

“independent third

party(ies)”

“INED(s)”

“International
Engineering
Contracting
Business”

“|DSOS"

overseas listed foreign shares in our
ordinary share capital with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are listed on the
Stock Exchange and subscribed for and
traded in HK$

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency
of the Hong Kong Special Administration
Region

International Financial Reporting Standards

International Monetary Fund

person(s) or company(ies) which is (are)
independent of the directors, supervisors,
controlling shareholder, substantial
shareholder and the chief executive (such
terms as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or an
associate of any of them

the independent non-executive Director(s)
of our Company

the international engineering contracting
business conducted by our Group with a
primary focus on EPC projects

Ipsos Hong Kong Limited, an independent
third party, is part of Ipsos SA and it
conducts research on market profiles,
market size, share and segmentation
analyses, distribution and value analyses,
competitor tracking and corporate
intelligence; it is responsible for conducting
a research on the industry information
included in this annual report and providing
the relevant data
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7] [ 3R}

“lpsos Report”

ulSAn

“p\”

SN

“Listing”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Model Code”

MW

a report prepared by Ipsos Hong Kong
Limited, an independent third party, on the
global infrastructure engineering industry
and international trading industry in general,
and the infrastructure engineering industry
and international trading industry in the
developing countries in particular, which
was commissioned by us and issued on
March 20, 2014

the United States Iran Sanctions Act, as
amended (P.L. 104-172, August 5, 1996)
(formerly the Iran and Libya Sanctions Act
of 1996)

unit of electric potential, kilovolt. 1kV =
1,000 volts

unit of energy, kilowatt. 1 kW = 1,000 watts

listing of our H Shares on the Stock
Exchange

December 21, 2012

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended from time to
time

the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

unit of energy, megawatt. 1 MW = 1,000
kW. The installed capacity of power plants
is generally expressed in MW
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Glossary of Terms

7] B 3%

“non-Core any sectors that do not fall within the Core B2 B EETEBRRMEEIE
Sectors” Sectors of our International Engineering 7] EABEBIZOTENTE

Contracting Business

“NSSF” National Council for Social Security Fund of [HREE 3 FEARENBEZELZR
the PRC (FEAREFMBEZ2EASREES BEg] BESBEES
EER)

“OFAC” the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the SNEEE 3 FEPHIBTINEEEE
US Department of the Treasury EH3] il

“Other the other businesses conducted by [HmER| 8 AEEREMHMER (F
Businesses” our Group, other than the International BRIBAPEBRESE

Engineering Contracting Business and the
Trading Business, which include, among
others, logistic services, exhibition services,
tendering agency services, export-import

BRI - B BEYIRR
% RERS - AEAER
% EHORERY - &R5
R R Bt AR5

agency services, design services and other

services

“PRC” The People’s Republic of China [ ] B HREARLRER

“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated [HBRER] & ZA2AAABHAE20124128
December 11, 2012 11HABRER

“RMB”or Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the [ARE B ARE BBAEEK

“Renminbi” PRC

“SASAC” State-owned Assets Supervision and [BEZ | £ PREARENBEERRE
Administration Commission of the State BEEEERELE®
Council of the PRC (FF# A R 50 B B %Pt
HEEEEEEEZE®)

“SFO” the Securities and Futures Ordinance [BER e BB EMESTIEEA L

(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), HAE &) |
as amended, supplemented or otherwise

B0 (BT EER] - 7T
AR T AER)

modified from time to time
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Glossary of Terms

7] [ 3R}

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“SINOMACH”

“SINOMACH Group”

“Sinosure”

“Supervisor(s)”

“Supervisory Board”

“Stock Exchange”

“SZSE”

“Trading Business”

share(s) in the share capital of our
Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, including our Domestic Shares and H
Shares

holder(s) of our Share(s)

China National Machinery Industry
Corporation* (FEI# % T & BB R A F),
a state-owned enterprise established in
the PRC on May 21, 1988, our controlling
shareholder

SINOMACH and its subsidiaries, which
excludes our Group

China Export & Credit Insurance
Corporation (F B & A {5 B & k& 2 7)),
a policy-oriented insurance company
specializing in export credit insurance in the
PRC and an independent third party

one (or all) of our Company’s supervisors
the supervisory board of our Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Shengzhen Stock Exchange (FIIFEH% 5
FT), a self-regulated legal entity established
on December 1, 1990 and supervised
by the China Securities Regulatory

Commission

the international and domestic trading
business conducted by our Group

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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“United States” or
“U.S.”

“United States
dollars” or
”US dollars” or
“US$”

“Zhongnan”

u%n

*

the United States of America, its territories,
its possessions and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction

United States dollars, the lawful currency of
the United States

China Power Construction Engineering
Consulting Central Southern Corporation*®
(FEENEXRIEZATEARRIAF) that
was 50% held by China Power Engineering
Consulting Group Zhongnan Power Design
Institute* (PEEH TIEBEHEETEE R
=1B2) and 50% held by us

per cent. or percentage

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or

entity or vice versa and is provided for identification purposes only.
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Corporate Information

NCIE-F

LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY
REI R E TR D BR A

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY
China Machinery Engineering Corporation*
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chun (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zhian
Mr. YU Benli
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Li

Ms. LIU Hongyu

Mr. FANG Yongzhong
Mr. WU Tak Lung

SUPERVISORS

Mr. QUAN Huagiang (Chairman)

(Shareholder representative supervisor)
Mr. QIAN Xiangdong (Shareholder representative supervisor)
Mr. BAlI Ming (Staff representative supervisor)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. CHEN Minjian
Ms. TSANG Fung Chu

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. ZHANG Chun
Mr. CHEN Minjian

*  For Identification Purposes Only
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Li (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian
Ms. LIU Hongyu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Ms. LIU Hongyu
Mr. FANG Yongzhong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. FANG Yongzhong (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Bai
Mr. LIU Li

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chun

Mr. YU Benli

Mr. LIU Li

OPERATION AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHANG Chun (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian

Mr. ZHANG Fusheng

Mr. FANG Yongzhong

AUDITORS

International Auditors
KPMG

PRC Auditors
Da Hua Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China Limited

The Export — Import Bank of China

CITIC Bank

China Merchants Bank (Beijing Branch)

Bank of Communication (Beijing Dongdan Sub-branch)
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Corporate Information
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REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

No. 178 Guang’anmenwai Street
Beijing, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 804, 8/F, Tower 1
South Sea Centre

75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Laws
Shearman & Sterling

As to PRC Laws
Jia Yuan Law Firm

STOCK CODE
01829
INVESTOR INQUIRIES

Investor Hotline: 86 10 6331 2662
Fax No: 86 10 6332 1086

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.cmec.com
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